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PLEADING DATEFILED| VOL. PAGE NO.
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 03-02-10 3 407
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 449
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 450
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 451
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 452
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 453
ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTED FOR FILING 06-09-10 3 454
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION TO PROCEED IN FORMA 07-21-09 10 2-3
PAUPERIS

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY 07-07-09 3 301-303
OF RECORD AND TRANSFER OF RECORDS

AMENDED INFORMATION 02-28-08 2 205-208
ANSWER TO PETITION AND SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF 05-05-10 12 624-626
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 01-05-17 8 891-893
(POST-CONVICTION)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 02-16-17 8 914-916
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 05-20-21 9 1081-1083
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 10-07-10 12 634-636
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE THE PRISONER 02-23-17 9 926-929
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 07-03-07 2 4-5
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 09-26-07 2 177
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 10-08-07 2 178
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 01-24-11 4 540-541
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 03-11-11 4 543-544
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 07-01-10 12 632
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 11-03-10 12 647-648
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 03-11-11 12 653-654
APPLICATION TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 07-21-09 10 1
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BAIL BOND POSTED 07-24-07 2 161-166
BAIL BOND POSTED 07-24-07 2 167-169
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 09-09-08 3 273-276
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 03-01-10 3 401-402
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 12-30-11 4 708-712
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 05-19-17 9 968-969
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 11-30-21 9 1150-1151
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 12-30-11 13 813-817
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 09-10-08 3 277
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 03-02-10 3 404
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK — RECORD ON APPEAL 06-09-10 3 446
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL 08-17-17 9 1003
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL 09-05-12 13 844
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF APPEAL 12-30-11 4 714
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF APPEAL 05-19-17 9 970
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF APPEAL 11-30-21 9 1152
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF APPEAL 12-30-11 13 820
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — RECORD ON APPEAL 08-31-17 9 1010
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 02-22-17 9 923
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 02-17-10 3 398
CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL 09-10-08 3 278
CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL 03-02-10 3 405
CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL — RECORD ON APPEAL 06-09-10 3 447
CORRECTED ORDER 05-31-11 4 567-569
COURT SERVICES REPORT 07-03-07 2 1-3
DEFENDANTS RESPONSE TO STATES OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO 11-03-10 4 495-508

WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA, SUPPLEMENTAL TO MOTION TO WITHDRAW
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GUILTY PLEA AND SUPPLEMENTAL IN CONSIDERATION OF MOTION TO
WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA
DESIGNATION OF RECORD ON APPEAL 05-16-17 9 961-964
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 04-01-10 14 28-37
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 06-30-10 14 38-45
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 11-01-10 14 49-57
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 02-10-11 14 64-72
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 06-21-11 14 76-85
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 02-03-12 14 89-98
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR INTERIM CLAIM FOR FEES 01-03-13 14 102-113
EX PARTE MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL AND REQUEST FOR 07-21-09 10 4-6
EVIDENTIARY HEARING:-
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND JUDGMENT 06-29-17 9 976-982
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND JUDGMENT 12-29-11 13 787-793
GUILTY PLEA MEMORANDUM 03-06-08 2 211-217
INFORMATION 07-12-07 2 6-10
JUDGMENT 08-11-08 2 239-240
LETTER FROM DEFENDANT 06-17-20 9 1029-1040
MINUTES — ARRAIGNMENT 07-18-07 2 12
MINUTES - CONFERENCE CALL — TELEPHONIC DECISION - 08-12-11 08-18-11 4 695
MINUTES - CONFERENCE CALL — TELEPHONIC DECISION - 08-12-11 08-18-11 13 785
MINUTES — CRIMINAL PROGRESS SHEET 07-12-07 2 11
MINUTES - ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AND IMPOSITION OF SENTENCE — 09-16-08 3 280
08-05-08
MINUTES - EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON PETITION FOR HABEAS CORPUS 08-08-17 9 996
TO EXHAUST STATE CLAIMS/ORAL ARGUMENTS ON MOTION TO DISMISS
PETITION — 04-27-17
MINUTES - MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF GUILTY PLEA - 07-26-11 4 693
06-03-11
MINUTES - MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL DATE/ARRAIGNMENT ON 06-26-08 2 234

AMENDED INFORMATION
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MINUTES - MOTION TO CORRECT ILLEGAL SENTENCE 10-04-21 9 1108
MINUTES - PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION) 07-26-11 13 782-783
- 06-3-11

MOTION FOR DEFAULT BENCH DECISION FOR THE MOTION(S) TO 03-18-11 4 546-553
WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA, AND SUPPLEMENTALS IN CONSIDERATION OF

MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

MOTION FOR FEES FOR COPY COSTS 10-25-10 12 641-646
MOTION FOR JUDGMENT IN THE INTEREST OF JUSTICE 11-25-09 3 382-390
MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF SENTENCE 07-08-09 3 304-337
MOTION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE THE PRISONER 10-11-10 12 637
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION OF SETTING 03-28-11 4 554-559
MOTION FOR SETTING OF ORAL ARGUMENTS ON MOTION(S) TO 01-21-11 4 533-539
WITHDRAW PLEA

MOTION FOR SUBMISSION BASED UPON THE MOTIONS ON FILE 06-01-21 9 1090-1094
MOTION FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW DEFENDANTS’ 11-17-10 4 512-518
GUILTY PLEA, MEMORANDUM, SUPPLEMENTAL TO MOTION TO

WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA, AND SUPPLEMENT IN CONSIDERATION OF

MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA

MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF GUILTY PLEA 03-03-10 3 409-423
MOTION TO ALLOW LEAVE TO FILE A BELATED NOTICE OF INTENT TO 02-04-08 2 182-188
SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL

PURPOSES

MOTION TO CORRECT AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE 12-24-20 9 1041-1049
MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 03-01-17 9 930-937
(POST-CONVICTION)

MOTION TO GRANT PETITIONER’S UNOPPOSED WRIT FOR HABEAS 01-11-17 8 898-903
CORPUS TO EXHAUST STATE CLAIMS

MOTION TO STRIKE STATES OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS MOTION(S) 12-30-10 4 519-524
TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA MEMORANDUM

MOTION TO SUBMIT MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA ANS ALSO 09-21-10 3 475-478
DEFENDANTS SUPPLEMENTAL MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA

NOTICE OF AND ORDER FOR AUDIO/VISUAL HEARING 06-17-21 9 1097-1100
NOTICE OF APPEAL 09-08-08 3 270-272
NOTICE OF APPEAL 03-01-10 3 399-400
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NOTICE OF APPEAL 12-30-11 4 700-706
NOTICE OF APPEAL 05-16-17 9 957-960
NOTICE OF APPEAL 11-29-21 9 1148
NOTICE OF APPEAL 12-30-11 13 795-806
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS 11-05-10 4 509-511
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS 05-16-17 9 965-967
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS 02-16-12 13 835-837
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF RESPONSIBLE ATTORNEY 01-05-17 8 888-890
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF RESPONSIBLE ATTORNEY 01-04-21 9 1052-1053
NOTICE OF DOCUMENT RECEIVED BUT NOT CONSIDERED BY THE COURT 08-05-08 2 235-238
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 06-30-17 9 985-993
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 11-08-21 9 1140-1145
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 01-11-12 13 824-832
NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER ACTS EVIDENCE FOR 02-04-08 2 189-200
PURPOSES OF REBUTTAL
NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY OF 07-07-09 3 297-300
RECORD AND TRANSFER OF RECORDS
NOTICE REGARDING TRANSCRIPT AT PUBLIC EXPENSE 01-11-12 14 26-27
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF SENTENCE 11-04-09 3 361-363
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CORRECT AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE 01-04-21 9 1054-1058
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO GRANT PETITIONER’S UNOPPOSED WRIT 01-23-17 8 904-906
FOR HABEAS CORPUS TO EXHAUST STATE CLAIMS
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STRIKE STATE’S OPPOSITION TO 01-03-11 4 525-527
MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA AND SUPPLEMENT IN
CONSIDERATION OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA, SUPPLEMENT TO 10-21-10 4 490-493
MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA AND SUPPLEMENT IN
CONSIDERATION OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA
ORDER 10-23-09 3 354-356
ORDER 10-27-09 3 358-359
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ORDER 02-10-10 3 391-393
ORDER 04-12-10 3 438-440
ORDER 04-23-10 3 442-444
ORDER 07-08-10 3 461-463
ORDER 10-15-10 4 480-482
ORDER 01-07-11 4 529-531
ORDER 05-31-11 4 563-565
ORDER 11-21-16 8 884-885
ORDER 02-15-17 8 909-911
ORDER 03-28-17 9 952-954
ORDER 04-12-21 9 1071-1073
ORDER 05-19-21 9 1076-1078
ORDER 09-10-21 9 1103-1105
ORDER 10-28-09 12 587-588
ORDER DENYING MOTION TO CORRECT AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE 11-05-21 9 1134-1137
ORDER DENYING MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEAS 12-29-11 4 697-698
ORDER GRANTING IN FORMA PAUPERIS 10-28-09 12 584-586
ORDER GRANTING STIPULATION FOR CONTINUANCE OF HEARING DATE 03-11-11 12 655-656
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 02-21-17 9 919-920
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 10-12-11 12 638-639
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER VIA SIMULTANEOUS AUDIO/VISUAL 05-20-21 9 1086-1087
TRANSMISSION
ORDER TO SET 06-17-10 12 628-630
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION) 07-21-09 10 7-83
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS TO EXHAUST STATE CLAIMS 11-07-16 5,6, 734-883

7,8

PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT 08-05-08 14 1-25
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PRETRIAL ORDER 07-20-07 2 155-160
PROCEEDINGS 07-19-07 2 13-154
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-23-09 3 357
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-27-09 3 360
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 11-04-09 3 364
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 11-25-09 3 381
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-10-10 3 394
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-01-10 3 403
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-02-10 3 406
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-02-10 3 408
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-04-10 3 425
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-18-20 3 434
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 04-12-10 3 441
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 04-23-10 3 445
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06-09-10 3 448
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06-09-10 3 455-456
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06-16-10 3 458
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-08-10 3 464
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09-16-10 3 474
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09-21-10 4 479
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-15-10 4 483
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-15-10 4 489
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-21-10 4 494
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-03-11 4 528
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-07-11 4 532
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-24-11 4 542
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PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-11-11 4 545
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 05-31-11 4 566
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 05-31-11 4 570
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-13-11 4 692
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-26-11 4 694
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08-18-11 4 696
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-29-11 4 699
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 4 707
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 4 713
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 4 715
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-03-12 4 721
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-09-12 4 723
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-11-12 4 724
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-24-13 4 727
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-14-13 5 733
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-28-09 12 589
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-14-09 12 593
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-17-10 12 596
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 05-05-10 12 627
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06-17-10 12 631
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-01-10 12 633
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 10-12-10 12 640
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 11-03-10 12 649
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-14-11 12 652
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-11-11 12 657
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-11-11 12 658
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PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06-21-11 12 659
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-13-11 13 781
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07-26-11 13 784
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08-18-11 13 786
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-29-11 13 794
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 13 812
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 13 818
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 13 819
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12-30-11 13 821
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-09-12 13 823
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-11-12 13 833
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-03-12 13 834
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-16-12 13 838
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03-12-12 13 839
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08-13-12 13 841
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09-04-12 13 843
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09-05-12 13 845
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-03-13 13 846
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01-24-13 13 852
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-06-13 13 853
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02-14-13 13 862
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL 12-14-09 12 590-592
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 07-16-10 14 46-48
ATTORNEY'S FEES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 11-15-10 14 61-63
ATTORNEY'S FEES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 03-08-11 14 73-75

ATTORNEY'S FEES
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RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 07-01-11 14 86-88
ATTORNEY'S FEES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 03-12-12 14 99-101
ATTORNEY'S FEES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF INTERIM 02-06-13 14 114-116
ATTORNEY'S FEES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER GRANTING DEFENSE FEES 11-09-10 14 58-60
REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE, STIPULATION AND ORDER 03-03-08 2 209-210
REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT 10-13-08 3 282-285
REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT 01-03-12 4 716-720
REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT 12-30-11 13 807-811
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 11-25-09 3 379-380
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 02-17-10 3 395-397
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 05-09-11 4 560-562
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 03-14-17 9 948-949
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 09-30-09 3 352-353
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 03-22-10 3 435-437
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 06-17-10 3 459-460
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 02-08-21 9 1067-1068
REQUEST, STIPULATION AND ORDER RE PRE-PRELIMINARY HEARING 02-25-08 2 201-204
AND PRE-TRIAL RECIPROCAL DISCOVERY (FELONY AND GROSS
MISDEMEANOR CASES)
RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S NOTICE AND MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL 07-23-09 3 338-347
OF ATTORNEY OR RECORD AND TRANSFER OF
RECORDS
RESPONSE TO STATE’S MOTION TO DISMISS 03-13-17 9 940-947
RESPONSE TO STATES OPPOSITION 01-26-21 9 1061-1066
RESPONSE TO STATES OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF 11-13-09 3 365-378
SENTENCE
RETURN OF NEF 11-21-16 8 886-887
RETURN OF NEF 01-05-17 8 894-895

10
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RETURN OF NEF 01-05-17 8 896-897
RETURN OF NEF 01-23-17 8 907-908
RETURN OF NEF 02-15-17 8 912-913
RETURN OF NEF 02-16-17 8 917-918
RETURN OF NEF 02-21-17 9 921-922
RETURN OF NEF 02-22-17 9 924-925
RETURN OF NEF 03-01-17 9 938-939
RETURN OF NEF 03-14-17 9 950-951
RETURN OF NEF 03-28-17 9 955-956
RETURN OF NEF 05-19-17 9 971-972
RETURN OF NEF 05-23-17 9 974-975
RETURN OF NEF 06-29-17 9 983-984
RETURN OF NEF 06-30-17 9 994-995
RETURN OF NEF 08-08-17 9 997-998
RETURN OF NEF 08-17-17 9 1001-1002
RETURN OF NEF 08-17-17 9 1004-1005
RETURN OF NEF 08-29-17 9 1008-1009
RETURN OF NEF 08-31-17 9 1011-1012
RETURN OF NEF 01-19-18 9 1014-1015
RETURN OF NEF 04-12-18 9 1019-1020
RETURN OF NEF 05-09-18 9 1027-1028
RETURN OF NEF 12-24-20 9 1050-1051
RETURN OF NEF 01-04-21 9 1059-1060
RETURN OF NEF 02-08-21 9 1069-1070
RETURN OF NEF 04-12-21 9 1074-1075
RETURN OF NEF 05-19-21 9 1079-1080

11
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RETURN OF NEF 05-20-21 9 1084-1085
RETURN OF NEF 05-20-21 9 1088-1089
RETURN OF NEF 06-01-21 9 1095-1096
RETURN OF NEF 06-17-21 9 1101-1102
RETURN OF NEF 09-10-21 9 1106-1107
RETURN OF NEF 10-04-21 9 1109-1110
RETURN OF NEF 11-04-21 9 1132-1133
RETURN OF NEF 11-05-21 9 1138-1139
RETURN OF NEF 11-08-21 9 1146-1147
RETURN OF NEF 11-30-21 9 1153-1154
RETURN OF NEF 12-10-21 9 1156-1157
RETURN OF NEF 12-16-21 9 1160-1161
STIPULATION AND ORDER FOR EXTENSION OF TIME IN WHICH TO FILE 03-17-10 12 594-595
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
STIPULATION AND ORDER VACATING HEARING 10-19-07 2 179-181
STIPULATION FOR CONTINUANCE OF HEARING DATE 02-14-11 12 650-651
SUPPLEMENT TO MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA 03-04-10 3 426-432
SUPPLEMENTAL IN CONSIDERATION OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY 07-14-10 3 465-471
PLEA
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 03-23-10 12 597-623
(POST CONVICTION)
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR PETITIONERS POST-CONVICTION 07-21-09 10 84-209
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS PETITION — PART Il
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR PETITIONERS POST-CONVICTION 07-21-09 11 210-301
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS PETITION — PART I
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR PETITIONERS POST-CONVICTION 07-21-09 11 302-443
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS PETITION — PART IV
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR PETITIONERS POST-CONVICTION 07-21-09 12 444-583
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS PETITION — PART V
SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE & JUDGMENT 06-03-09 3 291
SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE & JUDGMENT 10-15-10 4 485

12
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SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE & JUDGMENT 02-14-13 5 731
SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE & JUDGMENT 05-09-18 9 1022
SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE & JUDGMENT 02-14-13 13 855
SUPREME COURT NOTICE OF TRANSFER TO COURT OF APPEALS 01-19-18 9 1013
SUPREME COURT NOTICE TO FILE DOCKETING STATEMENT AND 10-06-08 3 281
REQUEST TRANSCRIPTS
SUPREME COURT ORDER DIRECTING ENTRY AND TRANSMISSION OF 08-17-17 9 999-1000
WRITTEN ORDER
SUPREME COURT ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD 03-18-10 3 433
SUPREME COURT ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD 08-29-17 9 1006-1007
SUPREME COURT ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD AND 12-16-21 9 1158-1159
REGARDING BRIEFING
SUPREME COURT ORDER GRANTING MOTION AND DIRECTING DISTRICT 08-13-12 13 840
COURT CLERK TO TRANSMIT DOCUMENTS UNDER SEAL
SUPREME COURT ORDER GRANTING MOTION AND DIRECTING DISTRICT 09-04-12 13 842
COURT CLERK TO TRANSMIT DOCUMENTS UNDER SEAL
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 05-11-09 3 286-289
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 06-03-09 3 292-296
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 09-16-10 3 472-473
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 10-15-10 4 486-488
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 01-24-13 4 725-726
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 02-14-13 5 728-730
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 04-12-18 9 1016-1018
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 05-09-18 9 1023-1026
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 01-24-13 13 847-851
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 02-14-13 13 856-861
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 09-15-08 3 279
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 03-04-10 3 424
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 06-16-10 3 457
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 01-09-12 4 722
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APPEAL INDEX
SUPREME COURT NO: 83867
DISTRICT CASE NO: CR07-1728

STATE OF NEVADA vs BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

DATE: JANUARY 6, 2022

PLEADING DATE FILED VOL. PAGE NO.
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 05-23-17 9 973
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 12-10-21 9 1155
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 01-09-12 13 822
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 06-03-09 3 290
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 10-15-10 4 484
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 02-14-13 5 732
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 05-09-18 9 1021
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 02-14-13 13 854
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS — ARRAIGNMENT —JULY 17, 2007 08-16-07 2 170-176
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS — MOTION TO CORRECT ILLEGAL 11-04-21 9 1111-1131
SENTENCE —JUNE 25, 2021
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA - 07-13-11 4 571-691
FRIDAY, JUNE 3, 2011
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA - 07-13-11 13 660-780
FRIDAY, JUNE 3, 2011
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS — SENTENCING — AUGUST 5, 2008 09-05-08 3 241-269
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS —MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL — 04-02-08 2 218-233
MARCH 6, 2008
WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY 07-23-09 3 348-351
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FILED

RONALD A. N, JR,, CLERK
By

Code 1491

"“DEPUTY CLERK

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No. CAp P- /778

VS. Dept. No. 4[

ecnvan Dinert £y

Defendant.

COURT SERVICES REPORT
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Washoe County Pretrial Sergices
V2.2 3 Assessment Report w
Case Filing
Filed Name

DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN

Arrest

Booked Name Arresting Agency

Booking Number

Arrest Date

DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN RENC PCOLICE DEPT 07-09242 04/30/2007
Case Number NOC Type Description Counts Court Bail Amt/Type
07-167896 04346 M ASSAULT 1 RMC 356 B
Defendant Information
Sex Race Birthdate Age Height Weight S5 Number
M WHITE 07/04/1976 31 5' os" 178 On File
Address Residence Born
L, NY
4458 HIGH, PLAINS DRIVE Gounty: 07 ¥r 06 Mo C.ARME r '
RENCO, NV 88523
Telephone Time at Current Address Primary Language
(775) 787-1961 01 ¥r 00 Mo ENGLISH
Lives With Relationship D Number Type Expiration Date
MORGAN DUNCKLEY WIFE
Marital Status How Long Military Service Discharge
MARRIED NONE
Employment/Support Status How Long
Employed 01/0C
Employer Employer Telephone
ESSENTIAT, PARKING (775) 378-7657
Defendant Justice Identifier Codes/Criminal History
FBI Number " | SID Number
Arrests Violent Fels Felonies Violent Misd ~ Misdemeanors MMSD Traffic pul Pending
Comments

MR DUNCKLEY REPORTS HE HAS BEEN IN THE AREA FOR 7 1/2 YRS.
ADDRESS FOR 1 YR. HE LIVES WITH HIS WIFE.

HE HAS BEEN AT HIS CURRENT
THE DEFENDANT AND HIS WIFE ARE EMPLOYED AT

ESSENTTIAL PARKING CONTROL (BOOTING). THE DEFENDANT HAS A HISTORY OF VIOLENCE. HE IS
CURRENTLY PENDING FELONY CHGS IN DC. DANGER TO THE COMMUNITY WOULD APPEAR HIGH.
NOTHING VERIFIED.

Assessment Status

Assessment tnitials
MISD NR RLOVATO

Incident No. HO0008940

Vgl



07/03/2007

V2.3 D@rmination of Indigency Reffft | Page 1 of 1

Client: DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN ' SSN:Cn File
Caseff: 07-167596 DOB:07/04/1976

Identification
Court:
RENO MUNICIBAL COURT
Charge(s):
ASSRULT
Address: : Length: Phone:
4458 HIGH PLAINS DRIVE RENQ, NV 85523 01 Yr 00 Mo - 7T5 787-1981
Cccupation and Employer:
DIRECTOR OF QPERATIONS
ESSINTIAL FARXING CCNTROL

Financial Iinformation

Asset VEH 5,000 ‘

Income EMPLOYMENT 1,600 DEF 1,600/ SPOUSE 2,000

Expense RENT AND UTL 1,000

Expenss CAR PAYMENT 500

IXpense CHILD SUPPORT 375

Liability ~ CREDIT CAEDS/ L 22,300

SUMMARY : - ASSETS: 5,000 ‘ INCOME : 1,600
LTABILITIES: -22,300 EXPENSES: -1,875

NET WORTH: -17,300 CASH FLOW: -275

Determination: INDIGENT

Recommendation

The abaove constitutes my recommendation to the court. | have explained my recommendation to the party.

Screening Agent/Witness: Date:
Comments:
Mr. Dunckley claims no money or assets to retain private counsel. He iives with his

mother in law who helps him financially.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

VS.

BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

Defendant.
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FILED

JUL -3 2007
RONALD IN, JR., CLERK
By: '

DEPUTY CLERK

OF

Case No. CR07-1728
Dept No. D4 |

APPLICATION FOR SETTING

TYPE OF ACTION:

MATTER TO BE HEARD:

DATE OF APPLICATION:

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT(S):

Setting at 09:00:00 on 7/17/2007

Criminal
Arraignment
71312007

David C. O'Mara, Esq.
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Hp Y A&AEMIET 3150 . ND CONFIRMATION REPORT FOR
PRINTER/FAX/COPTER / SCANNER D JUD DIST COURT CLERKS OFFICE
775325 6620
JOL-3-07  1:35PM

JOB| START TIME |USAGE |PHONE NUMBER/ADDRESS TYPE PAGES | MODE STATUS
297| 7/ 3 1:34PM| 0’30" 775 323 4082 (SEND.............. 1/ 1{EC 96|COMPLETED...........ooiii
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CODE 1800 ROKALD A
Richard A. Gammick
#001510

P.O. Box 30083

Reno, NV 89520-3083
(775) 328-3200
Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE CQOUNTY OF WASHOE.

* * %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No. CRO7-1728
V.
: Dept. No. 4
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
Defendant.
/
INFORMATION

RICHARD A. GAMMICK, District Attorney within énd for the
County of Washoe, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority
of.the State of Nevada, informs thé'above entitled Court that BRENDAN
DUNCKLEY, the defendant above named, has committed the crimes of:

COUNT I. SEXUAL ASSAULT ON A CHILD, a violation of NRS

200.366, a felony, (F1000) in the manner following:

That the said defendant on or between the 14th day of
August A.D., 1998, and the 13th day of August A.D., 2000, or
thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at and within
the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,.did willfully and unlawfully .

subject ASHLEY V., a female child under the age of fourteen years,

V2.6
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having a date of birth of August 14, 1986, to sexual penetration,
against the victim's will or under conditions in which the defendant
knew or should have known that the victim was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of the defendant's
conduct, to wit, sexual intercourse, in a parking lot at or near
Longley Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada;

or in the alternative,

COUNT II. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN

YEARS, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, (F650) in the manner
following: |

That the said defendant on or between the 14th day of
August A.D., 1998, and the 13th day of August A.D., 2000, or
thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at and within
the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully, unlawfully, and
lewdly commit a lewd or lascivious act upon or with the body of
ASHLEY V., having a date of birth of August 14, 1986, a female child
under the age of fourteen years at éhe time that the said act was
committed, in that the said defendant engaged the victim in sexual
intercourse at or near Longley Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada,
and/or put his hand down her pants to fondle her genital area in an
elevator at the Atlantis Hotel and Casino, 3800 South Virginia
Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of
himself or the child; -

or in the alternative,

/7
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COUNT TII. STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION, a viclation of NRS

200.364 and NRS 200.368, a felony, (F1010) in the manner following:

That the said defendant on or between the 14th day of
ZAugust A.D., 1998, and the 13th day of August A.D., 2000, or
thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at and within
the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully and unlawfully;
being over 21 years of age, commit an act of statutory sexual
seduction with the person of ASHLEY V., having a date of birth of
August 14, 1986,, who was then and there under the age of 16 years,
in that the said defendant engaged in an act of sexual intercourse
with the said ASHLEY V. in a parking lot at or near Longley Lane,
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.

COUNT IV. SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a

felony, (F1000) in the manner following:

| That the said defendant on the 10th day of March A.D.,
2007, or thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at
and within the County of Washoce, State of Nevada, did willfully and
unlawfully subject JESSICA H. to sexual penetration, against the
victim's will and/or under conditions in which the defendant knew or
should have known that the victim was mentally or physically'
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of the defendant's
conduct, to wit, fellatio at 1675 Sky Mountain Drive, #827, Reno,
Washoe County, Nevada. |
/17
/17
/11
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All of which is contrary to the form of the Statute in such
case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the

State of Newvada.

RICHARD A. GAMMICK
District Attorney
Washce County, Nevada

St ces

DAVID W. CLIFTON /
1653
Chief Deputy District Attorney
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The following are the names and addresses of such witnesses
as are known to me at the time of the filing of the within

Information:

RENC POLICE DEPARTMENT

DETECTIVE T.K. BROOME
OFFICER SCOTT HEGLAR

ASHLEY V., Silver Springs Conservation Camp

JESSICA RAE H.

The party executing this document hereby affirms that this
document submitted for recording does not contain the social security

number of any person or persons pursuant to NRS 239B.230.

RICHARD A. GAMMICK
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

St 1 o

DAVID W. CLIFTON/ —
1653 ,
Chief Deputy District Attorney

PCN RPD0O726517C
PCN RPD0726524C

07068446
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V2.12

CASE NO. CR07-1728

FILED

Electronically
07-18-2007:11:53:59 AM
Ronald A. Longtin, Jr.
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7032

TITLE: THE STATE OF NEVADA VS. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

DATE, JUDGE
OFFICERS OF
COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONT'D TO
7/117/07 ARRAIGNMENT
HONORABLE Deputy District Attorney Kelli Viloria, Esq., represented the State. Defendant 10/19/07
CONNIE present with counsel David O’Mara, Esg. Probation officer Lupe Garrison also 9:00 a.m.
STEINHEIMER present. Pre-Trial
DEPT. NO.4 Defendant handed copy of Information; indicated to the Court that name as set Motions
M. Stone forth on same was his true name; waived reading and entered a plea of not (3 Hours)
(Clerk) guilty to the charge set forth therein.
S. Loder Defendant waived the 60-Day Rule and COURT ORDERED this matter set for 3/13/07
(Reporter) jury trial. 9:00 a.m.
COURT FURTHER ENTERED ORDER that all pre-trial motions shall be filed ptn to
and served no later than September 17, 2007; all responses to those pre-trial Confirm Trl
motions shall be filed and served no later than September 28, 2007; and all
replies to those responses shall be filed and served no later than October 5, 3/24/07
2007. _ 10:00 a.m.
Defendant remained out of custody. Jury Trial
(5 Days)
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=/uif IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
T IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF COUNTY OF WASHOE
8
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10 || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
11

12 Plaintiff, Case No. O(Z/O 7 - {723

13 Dept. No. ‘4

L

14 VS,

15

16 BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

17
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PROCEEDINGS
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26
27
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STATE OF NEVADA vs. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY — RCR 2007-033884
July 19, 2007

Received of Justice of the Peace of Reno Township Documents to be filed:

—

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HELD ON JULY 2, 2007

2. SECOND AMENDED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT; ARREST REPORT AND DECLARATION OF PROBABLE
CAUSE (RPD 0726517C); CRIMINAL COMPLAINT; ARREST REPORT AND DECLARATION OF
PROBABLE CAUSE (RPD 0726524C);

3. APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENDER; WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
CASE CONFLICT NOTIFICATION

4. CERTIFIED COPY OF COURT DOCKET |

5. ACTION BAIL BOND IN THE SUM OF $15,000.00 (POWER NO. A25-00325488); ACTION BAIL BOND IN
THE SUM OF $18,500.00 (POWER NO. A25-00325487) :
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IN THE JUSTICES COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

HONORABLE HAROLD ALBRIGHT, JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintitftf,
vs.
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

Defendant.

Case No. RCR2007-0332884

Dept. No. 4

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION

Monday,

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:

For the Defendant:

Reported by:

July 2, 2007

DAVID W. CLIFTON, ESQ.,
Deputy District Attorney
One South Sierra Street
Reno, Nevada 89520

DAVID C. O'MARA, ESQ.,
Attorney at Law

P.O. Box 2270

Reno, Nevada 8838505

EVELYN J. STUBBS, CCR #3586

V2.
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WITNESSES:

JESSICA H.
MICHELLE A.
ASHLEY V.

TOM KEITH BROQOME

EXHIBITS:

None Marked

I NDE X

DIREET CRGCSS

REDIRECT RECRGCSS

5 25
43 54
61 76
90 110

Marked for
IDENTIFICATION

38
56
85

40
58

Admitted into

EVIDENCE
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RENO, NEVADA; MONDAY, JULY 2, 2007; 2:47 P.M,.

--o00o--

THE COURT: This is the time set for Case Number
RCR 2007-033884, State wversus Brendan Dunckley, who 1is
present in court with his attorney, David O'Mara.

Mr. Clifton is here on behalf of the State.

Are we ready to proceed to preliminary hearing?

MR. CLIFTON: State's ready, Your Honor.

MR. O'MARA: Ready, Your Hcnor.

THE CQOURT: Thank you.

MR. CLIFTON: We will have up to four witnesses.
I'm not sure if we will call them all or if all of them
are here, I have three victims in this case I have not
met, so0 I'm not sure on the exact dates, so I may have to
juggle some dates on motions to amend or depending on how
the testimony goes.

Right now you can see the counts are charged
fairly broadly as far as the dates as far as cases more
than two-years old.

We're prepared to go forward with our first
witness who 1s here and ready to be sworn.

Will there be a Rule of Exclusion bkeing invoked?

MR. O'MARA: Yes, there will be, Your Honor.

V2.
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THE COURT: All right. The Rule of Exclusion
has been invoked, and that's a rule to preserve the
purity of the testimony on the stand.

So you're ordered to step out of the courtrocom.
You cannot discuss the case with any other person, except
the two attorneys, until vou're released from the rule
later today.

MR. O'MARA: Your Honor, if you could please
advise all of the witnesses as they come in and out of
the courtroom. I only see that there's one witness at
this time, but if there's subsegquent witnesses, if they
could also be given the exclusionary rule as they leave.

THE COURT: Is there only one witness in the
courtroom?

MR. CLIFTON: No, there's two right now.

THE COURT: QOkavy. What's your name, ma'am?

AUDIENCE MEMBER: Jessica.

THE COURT: Jessica. Qkay. What's your name?

AUDITENCE MEMBER: Jolene,

THE CQOURT: Is she going to be a witness?

MR. CLIFTON: No. : v

THE COURT: 1Is Jessica going to be a witness?

MR. CLIFTON: Yes, and Detective Broome.

THE COURT: All right. Detective, thank you.

V2.18




V2.19

10
11
12
13
14
15
1s
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

Who is going to be your first witness?

MR. CLIFTON: Jessica.

THE COURT: If you'll come forward, Jessica. If
you'll step out, please, Detective, and I'll try and
watch for witnesses.

MR. O'MARA: Thank you very much, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: If you'll come around here. There's
a little door handle that will let you into the witness
stand. When you step in you may feel some movement, but
it's kind of a leveling device.

Let me swear you in, please.

JESSICA H.,
called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,
being first duly sworn, was examined

and tegtified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATICN

BY MR. CLIFTON:

Q Please tell us your first name.

A Jessica.

Q Is that standard spelling?

A Yes.

Q And your last name begins with what letter?
5

V2.
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A H.

Q What's your date of birth?

A 8-5-83.

Q Are you currently a resident of Washoe County,
Nevada?

A Yes, I am.

Q How long have you resided here?

A Five vyears.

Q I want to direct your attention to March 10th of
this year, 2007. Do you recall your whereabouts, say, in

the evening of that particular date?

A Yes.

Q Did you have a boyfriend at that time of the
yvear? |

A Yes.

Q On March 10th, did you become inveolved in a

fight that day or any type of breakup?
A Yes, I did.
Q Do you recall having occasion to go for a walk

because of that breakup?

A Yes.

Q Was he living with ycu at the time?
A Yes.

Q What was that address?

V2.
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1 A 1675 S5ky Mountain Drive, Apartment 827.
2 MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, that's my first
3 amendment . I notice on Count VI, which is Page 4 of the

4 amended criminal complaint, it has the apartment listed
5 as 287. It has the first two numbers transposed. I

& would ésk it be amended by interlineation to "Apartment
7 827," please, on line 12.

8 THE COCURT: All right. 827 has been substituted
9 for 287.

10 MR. CLIFTON: Thank you.

11 BY MR. CLIFTON:

12 Q Jessica, was that in Reno, Washoe County,

13 Nevada?

14 A Yes.

15 Q Were you upset over this fight or breakup with

16 your boyfriend?

17 pa\ Yeah.

18 Q Which was it? Was it both --

19 A It was Jjust an argument.

20 Q Let's call it that, an argument. What's his
21 | first name?

22 A Emialiano.

23 Q Okay. E-M --

24 A E-M-I-A-L-I-A-N-O.

V2. 21
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1 Q Had you had anything tc drink that evening or
2 afternocon?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Was 1t because of the argument or even before
5 that?

6 A Nc, it was just before that.

7 Q Okay. So you weren't drinking because of the

8 argument or fight?
9 A No.
10 Q Did ycu have occasicn then to go for a walk from

11 that particular apartment?

12 A Yes.
13 Q Do you remember where you went?
14 A I was going to walk to my brother's house and I

15 decided not to.

16 Q Did you stop anywhere before coming back to the
17 apartment?

18 A I walked down the street and turned around and

19 came back,

20 Q So you didn't stop anywhere else; at a store or

21 anything like that?

22 A No.
23 Q So you only went a block and started coming
24 back?
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A Yeah.
Q As you were coming back do you recall anybody
that you thought was a little out of place or unusual as

far as behind you or following you?

A Yes.
Q Can you describe?
A I was just walking down the street and someone

wag in the car and asked me if I needed a ride.

Q And that was on vyour way back to the apartment?
A Yeah.

Q So you were going back toward your apartment?l
A Yes.

Q Waé it a male or female?

A Male.

Q Was he in a vehicle?

A Yes.

Q What type?
A It wag a minivan.

Q And he pulled up alongside of you?

A Um-hum.

Q Did he have his window down?

A Yes.

Q Was it the passenger window or the driver's
window?

V2.
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1 A The passenger.

2 Q He said what to you?

3 A "Do you need a ride?"

4 @] What did you respond, if anything?

5 A I just kept walking.

6 Q You didn't say anything?

7 A No.

8 Q What happened next?

g A Then he asked me again, and I Jjust kept walking.
10 Q You didn't say anything again?

11 A (Shakes head.)

12 Q Answer out loud for the reporter.

13 A No.

14 Q What happened after that, the second time?

15 A I just walked to my apartment.

16 Q Okay. Was he still fecllowing you or along Side

17 of you or what?
18 A Not that I knew of.
19 Q So you thought when you were goling to your

20 apartment he wasn't behind you anymore?

21 A Yeg, s8ir.

22 Q Did anything happen as you approached your
23 apartment?

24 A No.
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Q

anything?

A

Q

Q
left for

A

wouldn't

A

Okavy. Are yvou on the first floor, second, what?
Second.

Stairs or elevator?

Stairs.

Is there a name for these apartments or

Vista Ridge.

And you're still alone, correct?

Yes.

You're not carrying anything?

No.

Do you even have a purse, do you know?

No.

Was your boyfriend at the apartment when you
this walk?

Yes.

How long were you gone?

20 minutes, 15 minutes.

Did you know whether he would be there or not
got back?

Yeg.

All right. Did you think he would be or

be?

Yeah, I suspected he would be there. He

11
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wouldn't have gone anywhere.

Q When you got home you went up the stairs, I take
it?

A Yes.

Q And you approached your door?

A Um-hum.

Q Was your door locked or open?

A It was unlocked.

Q Did you go inside?

A Yes, I did.

Q Can you tell us what happened next?

A I walked into my apartment and said, "Josh,"

walked straight back --

Q Who ig Josgh?

A That's what I call my ex-boyfriend.

Q Did you yell it out like you were looking for
him?

A Yeah, and I walked straight back --

Q Into the apartment?

A And to the right is the bedroom. And I said his
name one more time, He wasn't there. I turned to the

left, and I looked into the bathroom, and I heard the

front door. And there he was standing right there.
Q When you say "he," are you referring to Josh?
12
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1 A No.

2 Q Somebody else?

3 A Somebody else.

4 Q Let's stick with Josh for a minute. Did you

5 find Josh?

& A No.

7 Q So you expected him to be there, but after this
8 20 minutes he had left?

9 A Yeah.

10 Q Sometime during that 20 minutes that you were
11 gone?

12 A Yes.

13 Q So you call out to him, walk around the

14 apartment, and don't find him?

15 A Yeah.

16 Q Something drew your attention to your front

17 dooxr?

18 A Um-hum,

19 Q What wasg it?

20 A I heard someone come into my apartment.

21 Q Did you close the door behind when you went in?
22 A I c¢losed the door behind me, but my door, if you

23 just let it swing closed, it will bounce right back open,

24 it will stay cracked.

13

V2. 27




V2. 28 ® o

1 Q :So yvou didn't latch it or leck it, deadbolt it

2 or anything like that?

3 A No.

4 Q Even when you came back from this walk it was in

5 that condition also?

6 A No.

7 Q It was shut?

8 A Yeah.

] Q Was it locked?

10 A No.

11 Q Were you able to just turn the handle and walk

12 in, that's what you mean by open?

13 A Yes,.

14 Q The door itself was closed, though?

15 A Um-hum.

16 Q So when you looked back and you see this person,

17 he wouldn't have needed a key to get in?

18 A No.
19 Q Was the door part way open or all the way open?
20 A It doesn't latch all the way closed. You can

21 just push.
22 Q When you see him, was the door all the way open
23 Oor part way open?

24 A It was closed, like behind him was the door.

14
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Q So he had come into the apartment?
A Um-hum.

Q ind the door closed behind him?

A Yes.

Q Or he closed the door?

A (Nods head.)

Q And vou didn't agree to this?

A No.

Q You didn't even know he was behind you?
A No.

Q You didn't even know he'd come into the

apartment?

A No.
Q How did you react?
A I was startled, I was scared.

Q What did you do?

A He told me -- he stood right there and he told
me to suck his dick.

Q Did you recognize this person from any earlier
occasion that night before you saw him in the apartment?

A No.

Q Was i1t the same man that was in the van outside
that had approached you on the street?

A I didn't really look at him that good when T was

15
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walking down the street.

Q So you don't know cne way or the other?
A No.
Q And that's the person you never answered anyway,

correct?

A Um-hum.

Q So this person that comes in the door, you don't
know if you're seeing him for the first time or if he
could have been the person in that van; is that what
you're saying?

A Yes.

Q  Did you recognize this person from anytime,

anywhere that you'd seen him befcre?

A No.

Q Didn't think you knew him?

A No.

Q So after he says that and you're shocked or

startled, what did you do or say?
A I had no choice but to. He was in the front

door and the cther way to get out is off the balcony.

So I went and -- to do it, but I bit him.
Q OCkay. Where were you when this happened?
A I was in the back part of my apartment.
Q Did you try to lock yoursgelf in a bathroom or
16

V2.

30



V2. 31

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

bedroom or anything?

A

Q

offtr

A

Q

No.

Did he come to you or did you go to him?
I went to him.

This person you never met before?

Yes.

All right. Did you take any of your clothes

No.

Did he take any of his clothes off?
No.

Was it a zipper, buttoned?
Buttoned, it wasg his pants.

Ckay. And who undid his ﬁants?

He did.

When he said that to you, did he already have

his penis exposed?

A

Q

He was exposing it.

As he was saying it?

Yes,

Were you scared, frightened?

Yes, I was very scared, very frightened.
Did he threaten you?

No.

17
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Q Did you argue with him, say anything to him?

A No, I didn't know what to do. He told me to do
it and --

Q What were you afraid of?

A Of him.

0 Did he have any weapon?
A No.
Q Did he threaten to hit you, strike you, anything

like that?

A No.

Q All right. And you didn't try to aveoid him or
get away or say, "I'm going to call the cops," or

anvything like that?

A I didn't have any way to.

Q I mean, you didmn't say that though, either?
A No.

Q You had no way to call anybody or --

A No.

Q Was it close proximity, him to you?

A Um-hum. It's a very small apartment.

Q Do you have a phone in the apartment?

A No, I don't.

Q Okay. So when you went toward him --

A Um-hum.

18
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Q

-- were you both standing? Wer

was somebody on a chair?

A

Q

A

Q
anything
A

Q

A

Q

erection?

A

Q

A

tried to

e you kneeling or

He was standing, I was standing.

Okay. And you just bent down?
Um-hum.

And you said you bit him?

Yes.

Did he have an erection?

Yes.

Was this consensual in any way?
No.

You're certain you hadn't seen
before this happened at all?
No, I've never seen him before.
When you went down on him, you
Um-hum.

He had an erection?

{Nods head.)

After you bit him did he still

No, no.
Did he say anything?
He said "stop" or -- you know,

run out of the apartment and I

19

him in a bar or

bit him?

maintain the

that was 1it. He

chased him.
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1 Q Don't go that far yet.

2 He said stop or said something?

3 A He said "ow." |

4 Q Ow or stop?

5 A Um-hum.

6 Q Did he strike you, hit you?

7 A He slightly hit me upside my head so that I

g would stop.
2 Q Okay. He was blocking your only realistic exit

10 to the apartment; is that what you said before?

11 A Yes.

12 Q And your boyfriend was not there?

13 A No.

14 Q So you had nowhere else you could go. And

15 you're afraid of him, but he didn't have a weapon. What

16 were you afraid of?

17 A I didn't know what would happen.

18 Q That he might strike you?

19 A Yes.

20 Q Okay. After you bit him, his penis went

21 flaccid?

22 A Yes,
23 Q It was no longer erect, correct?
24 A No.
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Q

remember?

A

Q

Did you still try to keep biting him or do you

No, he ran.

That chair --

THE COURT: That was the movement I was trying

to warn you about.

BY MR. CLIFTON:

Q That chair just dees it on its own. I never
noticed that before. I'm sorry, Jessica.

A He pulled up his pants and ran out.

Q Were you glad to see that, that he left?

A Yeah, but I was angry. I chased him.

Q Okay. Chased him. Were you yelling?

A Yes.

Q What were you yelling?

A "Stop him. Stop him.™"

o] Were you yelling that to other people?

A Yeah.

Q Do you know if they were men or women?

A As we were going down the hallway and I looked

down at the parking lot, I saw two guys walking,

told them, "Help me. Stop him."

Q

A

And did they?

Yes.

21
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Q And were the police called?

A Yes.

Q And they came and interviewed you?

A Yes.

Q Did you tell them about the stranger that came

into your apartment and told you to, dquote, suck his

dick?
A Yes,
Q Is tha
A Yes,

Q Do you

a description o
A No.
Q Okay.
A He was

Q Did he

A Yeah.
Q Was he
A No.

Q Do you
A Brown.
Q Okay.

chance?
A In his

t the way you explained it to them?

recall this person well enough to give us

f him?

Was he black or white?

white.

have hair?

wearing a hat?

remember the color of the hair?

Do you know how old he was, by any

30s,

22
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Q Okay. That's a description. Do you remember
anything about what he was wearing?
A He had on jeans and a black leather jacket that

I kept trying to grab.

Q To grab when?

A When I was chasing him.

Q So you actually were like right behind him?

A Yes.

Q When these men caught him or tackledrhim, did

you tell them what he had done to you also?
A I tried hitting him in his face and that's the
time when my boyfriend at the time came running up and

asked me what happened, because he was in the parking

lot.
Q But he didn't hear or see any of this happen --
A No.
Q -- to your knowledge?
A No.
Q He didn't come in and interrupt while it was

happening or anything like that?

A No.

Q If you saw this person again do you think you
would recognize him or remember him?

A {Nods head.)
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today?

A

Q

You need to answer out loud.

Yes.

OCkay. Do you see him here in the courtroom

Yes.

Igs he in front of this bar toward me or is he

behind the bkar?

A

In front.

Can you tell me what he's wearing today?
A black suit.

Where is he seated in relation to me?

To the side of you.

Right side or left side.

Left.

How many people over, one or two?

Cne.

The person right next to me?

No, next to the person, s0 two people over.
Second person over?

Yeah.

ME. CLIFTON: Your Honor, 1f the record could

reflect identification of Defendant Dunckley.

/77

THE COURT: Record will so reflect.
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1 BY MR. CLIFTON:
2 Q Do you remember being interviewed by Detective

3 Broome of the Reno Police Department; do you remember

4 him?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And you teold him what had happened to you that

8 A Um-hum.

S 0 Were you still angry?

10 A Yeah.

11 o] Were you more angry at the argument you had with

12 your boyfriend or what this stranger made vou do with

13 him?

14 A What the stranger made me do with him.

15 ] And you didn't know this person's name, correct?
16 A No.

17 MR. CLIFTON: Thank you. No further.

18 THE CQURT: Mr. O'Mara.

19

20 | CROSS-~EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. O'MARA:
22 0 Jessica, good afternoon. My name is David
23 O'Mara. I'm an attorney representing Mr. Dunckley. If

24 you cannot hear me or you don't understood a gquestion I

25
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1 ask you, please just ask me to restate it or speak up

2 louder --
3 A OCkay.
4 Q -- 8o that you have a better understanding of

5 what I'm asking and we can get a good record for the

6 court reporter.

7 Do you need a break or anything?
a8 A No.
9 Q Ckay. In the beginning of your testimony vou

10 talked about leaving your apartment because of a breakup
11 with your boyfriend --

12 MR. CLIFTON:. Your Honor, I think the word was
13 argument. I accidentally used the word breakup, she

14 corrected me to argument.

15 BY MR. O'MARA:

16 Q So it was just a mere argument?
17 A Yes.
18 Q Prior to your breakup -- excuse me, the argument

19 with your boyfriend, what did you do during that day?
20 a That day I went to the mall, and after that I

21 went to my brother's house.

22 Q What time of the day were you at the mall?
23 A Around, 11:00, 12:00.
24 Q Then you went to your brother's house?
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I'm sorry. Let's back up. Is the mall the
Meadowood Mall or --
A Yes.

Q And after the mall you went to your brother's

house?
A Yeah, my brother's house.
Q What is your brother's name?
A Justin.
Q And does he have the lastrof "H" as well?
A Yes.

Q And what did you do at your brother's house?

A Hang out.

Q Did you drink?

A Yes,

Q What did you drink?

A Beer,

Q And how many beers did you drink?

A I don't know. I wasn't counting.

Q Were you not counting because you lost track or

because you just don't normally count how many beers?

A Just because I don't normally count how many
beers.
Q How long were you at your brother's house?
A Probably for -- I mean, all day and all
27
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afternoon, up until the evening.

o Up until what time?

A Around 95:00, 8:30.

Q So would it be fair to say that you were at your
brother's house between 12:00 and 8:30, for eight-
and-a-half hours? |

A Yeah.

Q During those eight-and-a-half hours did you
continually drink?

A Yeah.

Q And if you went back, would you say that you had
two, three beers an hour?

A Maybe, like, two.

Q Two beers. So by 8:00 o'clock you had

approximately 16 beers in the eight-hour period?

A Yes.

Q And what type of beers were they?

A Budweiser and Corona.

Q Did you have any shots of hard liguor?

A (Shakes head.)

Q Did you do any other recreational drugs?
A No.

Q How did you get back to your apartment?
A My brother.

28
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1 Q Why did your brother take you back?

2 A Because I don't -- I didn't have a car to drive.
3 I couldn't drive.

4 Q After you left your apartment, you said you were

5 gone 20 minutes, how far did you think you traveled?

6 A Just like maybe two blocks.
7 Q Do you remember exactly the route that you took?
8 A ‘Yeah, I just got out of the gate of my

] apartments and took a left and went down the street,

10 turned around and came back.

11 Q Do you remember falling down during any period
12 of time?

13 A No.

14 Q As you entered your apartment, you talked about
15 going into your apartment and going toe the back of your
16 apartment, correct?

17 A Yes,

18 Q I'd like you to try and draw a diagram of your
19 apartment and explain to the Court how you went about

20 going from your apartment.

21 I guess we will have to use the board.

22 If you can come over here. Just start with the
23 entrance of the door.

24 A (Witness complies.)

29
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1 Q If you could explain as you're going.
2 Is that the entrance?
3 A This is the front door (indicating}. This here

4 is the living (indicating).

5 e And what are you drawing now?

6 A That's the balcony door (indicating.)

7 This is the room (indicating). This is the

8 bathroom (indicating). This is the kitchen {indicating).
9 Q Okav. So just stand there, if you can, just

10 stand there for a few minutes.
11 You testified earlier that you walked all the

12 way back to the right bedroom, correct?

13 A Um-hum.

14 o} And vou turned left, correct?

15 A Um-hum.

le | THE COURT: You have to answer with a word,

17 please.

18 THE WITNESS: Yes.

19 BY MR. O'Mara:

20 Q How loud were you screaming your boyfriend's

21 name?

22 A Josh {(indicating).
23 Q S0 you weren't really screaming it?
24 A No.
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1 Q Where were you standing when you heard the front
2 door open?

3 A I was standing right here (indicating).

4 Q S0 you were in the middle of the two doorways,

5 one between the bathroom and the bedroom?

6 A Yes.

7 Q If you could describe the distance from the

8 front door to where you're standing in regards to where

S You were standing at the board to somewhere in this

10 courtroom and the distance, pleasef

11 A From me to the -- to that (indicating).

12 Q Toc the bar?

13 A Yes, to the bar ig where my front door would be.
14 Q Okay. You can go ahead and sit down now. Thank

15 you very much.
16 At the time that you claim that an individual

17 walked in the door why didn't you scream?

18 A I was scared, I didn't know what to do.

15 Q There was no weapon, correct?

20 A No.

21 Q You testified that he merely said -- the

22 individual merely said suck his dick, correct?

23 A Yes.

24 Q Did he say, "Suck my dick or something is going
31
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1 to happen to you"?
2 A No.
3 Q So after that period of time that he said, "Suck

4 my dick," you walked from what appears to be at least 10

5 to 15 feet to him, correct?

6 A (Nods head.)}

7 Q Did yvcu try to avoid him?

B THE COURT: Hold on, pleage. Is that a word?

9 You have to answer with a word, please.

10 THE WITNESS: Yes.
11 THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
12 MR. O'MARA: Thank you, Judge.

13 BY MR. O'MARA:

14 0 How long did that take?
15 A Couple of seconds.
16 Q Did you ever think about just running as fast as

17 you can to try to get through him?

18 A Yeah, I thought of a lot of things.

19 Q Why didn't you go as fast as you can to try to
20 get to the dcor?

21 A I didn't think I could. He wag standing right
22 there.

23 0 When you come into your apartment complex from

24 the parking lot can you see your apartment complex?
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1 2 Yeah.

2 Q Can you gee the front door?

3 A No.

4 Q Can you describe for the Court, from the parking

5 garage where someone would park, what they would have to
6 do to get to your door.
7 A You park, you walk up the stairs, and you walk

8 to the back of the hallway.

9 Q So you're apartment complex is on the other side
10 of --

11 A Yes.

12 Q -- of the parking lot. Okay. So there's no

13 zigzagging or going in between other apartment complexes?
14 A No.

15 Q At no time did you go into the bathroom and lock

16 the door?

17 A No.

18 Q Do you have locks on your bathroom door?
19 A Yeah, but it doesn't work.

20 Q Did you ever go into your bedroom?

21 A No.

22 Q Are there locks on that door?

23 A No.

24 Q You testified that Mr. Dunckley, after vyou
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identified him, -had a button for pants. 3Is that correct?
A Yeah, like all jeans, you know, button and then

a zipper.

Q So there was one button at the top and then a
zipper?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You also talked about.this was not

consensual, correct?

A Correct.

Q But isn't it true that you actually bent down?

A Yes.

Q Did he force you down?

A Nco, but he demanded it.

Q How did he démand it?

A He told me to. He was in my apartment and told
me to

Q Did he say, "Bend down"?

A No.

Q Did he say, "Get down on your knees"?

A No.

Q You testified that after you went down on him

you bit him, correct?
A Yes.

Q How many times did you bite him?
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A Once.
Q Okay. Do you know if you broke the skin?
A No.

Q And after that how long did it take before his
erection actually subsided?

A A couple of seconds.

Q You testified today that you could not give a
description of the individual that night, correct?

A What was that?

Q I'm sorry. You testified this afternoon that
you could not give a description of the individual,

correct?

A I know what hisg face looks like, but I can't
really -- I just know he has brown hair and, you know --
Q Do you recall getting a report back from the

police about your blood alcohol?

A No.

Q Could you imagine that your blood alcohol was
.22 percent?

A Um-hum.

Q Do you think that could have skewed vyour
identification of an individual that night?

A No.

Q You testified that if you saw this person you
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would recognize him, correct?

A

Q

A

Q

guestion

That I would recognize him?

Yes.

Yes.

But you can't give a description. And my

to you: Are you just giving a description of

the individual that is sitting to my left or are you

actually

person?
A

a lineup.
Q

A

100 percent sure that this individual is the

Yes, I'm 100 percent sure. I picked him out in

What?

I'm sorry.

Keep going?

When Detective Broome called me to his office.

When did Detective Broome call you to his

It was about two weeks after it had happened.
How many individuals did the lineup include?
It wag ~-- it was, I think, six.

Were they all white males?

Yeah.

Did they all have brown hair?

Yeah.
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Q When the police interviewed you that night did
they take any pictures of you?

A No.

Q Did they ask you about any bumps or bruises on
your head?

A They asked me if I was hit or anything.

Q And what did you tell them?

A No.

Q S0 now is it your testimony today that you were

actually hit?

A Yeah, I was, you know, smacked a little bit,
but --

Q You're giving a gesture of smacking right.above
your eyes. Is that the gesture you're talking about?

A Yes.

Q Dc you consider a smack and a hit different?

A Kind of, yeah.

MR. O'MARA: I have no further guestions, Your

Honor.
| THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Cliften, do you have any
redirect?
MR. CLIFTON: Just very little.
Iy
/77

37

V2.

51



V2. 52

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

BY MR. CLIFTON:

Q

that's his words and that's a quote, and you put your
head down toward his penis, did you insert his penis into

your mouth?

A

Q

A

that's when I bkit it.

Q

A

Q

correct?

A

Q

REDIREECT EXAMINATION

Jessica, we're just about done.

When he demanded that you suck his dick, and

Nco, he did.
How did he do it?

I just went down and he was holding it. And

Did he grab ydur head?

No.

S50 he had a hold of his penis?

Um-hum,

When you said you bit it, was your mouth around
of the penis or on the side or on the shaft?
The shaft.

Did your mouth go onto the penis?

Yes.

When you bit, you said the erection went down,

Yes.

All right. Did you still try to keep biting or
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did you just bite once and get out of there?

A I just bit once, but it shriveled up.

Q He lost his erection?

A Yes.

Q Was your intent to keep biting?

A I tried to, but he pulled away.

Q Okay. So as I understand it, correct me if I'm

wrong, he's demanding that you suck his penis and he was

placing his penis into your mouth or trying to?

A Yes.

Q By the way he was manipulating himself with you
there?

A Yes.

Q And rather than put your mouth over the head of

his penis onto the entire penis, you bit the side of it?

A No, I put my mouth over the head and bit the
shaft.

Q So the head of the penis was inside your mouth?

A Yes.

Q And your teeth were down far enough to bite the

shaft of the penis?
A Yes.
Q S50 your teeth marks or your teeth would have

made contact with the entirety of the penis, top and
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bottom, correct?
A Yes.
MR. CLIFTON: Okay. Thank you. No further.
MR. O'MARA: Just a fecllow-up guestion, Your

Honor,

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. O'MARA:

Q You previously have testified that when you were
slapped on your head above your eye it was because yoﬁ
believed he said -- let me rephrase.

You said that he hit you on your head so that
you would stop, correct? |

A He said, "Stop, get off," like that, yeah, as I

was biting him.

Q So he actually said "stop"?
A Yeg.
Q Okay. Do you recall on the night how many times

you told the cfficer you bit him?
A No, I don't.
Q Would you be surprised if you told him --
MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, this is beyond the
scope of the redirect.

MR. O'MARA: 1It's going to the bite of the
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1 redirect.

2 THE COURT: Overruled. I'll allow it.

3 BY MR. O'MARA:

4 Q In your testimony or in your statement to the

5 police officers do you recall telling the police officers
6 that you bit him four times?

7 A No.

8 Q Do you recall that when you went in to talk to

9 Officer Broome do you recall him saying there were no

10 teeth marks on this individual?

11 ¥y Yes.

12 Q Do you recall telling him that you know for sure

13 there would be teeth marks on that?

14 A I figured there should have been,

15 Q And why do you say that?

16 A Because I know I bit pretty hard.

17 MR. O'MARA: No more guestions, Your Honor.

18 THE COURT: Well, thank you very much. You can
19 step down. I appreciate your testimony.

20 MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, I know we have one

21 witness coming in from Yerington and two coming in from
22 the Nevada State Prison.
23 Would it be possible to check to see who is

24 presently here?
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THE CCOURT: I was going t¢ advise that
Mr. Molina was going to bring the in-custody person in.

MR. CLIFTON: I guess it doesn't matter which
order I put them on.

THE COURT: I'm not trying to compel you to do
anything in any particular order. Do you, want to check
and see 1f there's a witness cutside from Yerington?

MR. CLIFTON: No, I don't want to waste the
Court's time. 1I'll go ahead and call Michelle. She is
one of the witnesses in the hoclding cell. How do we go
about getting her in here?

THE BAILIFF: Mr. Clifton, do yvou care which one
is first?

MR. CLIFTON: Michelle.

THE CQOURT: Please raise your hand the best you
can. Other hand.

{Witness Sworn)

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

MICHELLE A.,
called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,
being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CLIFTON:
Q Good afternoon, ma'am. Can you tell us  your
first name.

iy Michelle.

Q Spelled M-I-C-H-E-L-E?

A E-L-L-E.

Q And your first initial of your last name?

A A,

Q Can you give us your date of birth, please.
A 10-13-87 -- or '86 sorry.

Q 867

A Um-hum.

Q So that would make you almost 21°?

A Yeah.

Q I want to direct your éttention back to 1999,

going back guite a ways, so you would have been 12 and

turn 13 in that year. 1Is that correct?

A Yeah.

Q 12 up to October and then turning 13, correct?

A I didn't know them when I was 12.

Q Okay. Do you know a person named, Lura,
L-U~-R-A7?

A That's my best friend.
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1 Q And her last name startg with an "gn"?
2 A Yes,
3 Q When you knew her, and you say you didn't even
4 know them, when you say, "them," are you referring to
5 someone in the courtroom?
6 A Yeah.
7 Q Is it a he or a she?
8 A He.
9 Q Do you know his name?
10 A Yes.
11 Q What 1is it?
12 A Brendan.
13 Q Do you know his last name?
14 A Yes.
15 Q What is that?
16 a Dunckley.
17 Q When you say you didn't know them when you were
18 12 or 13, when you said "them," who are you referring to?
19 He and who.else?
20 A Morgan.
21 Q Who is Morgan?
22 A His wife.
23 Q Still to this day?
24 A I'm not sure.
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Q All right. Fair answer. When did you first
meet him?

A Probably when I was like 13, maybe 14.

Q 80 going into the year from 1999, Cctober, into

the year 2000, and the year 2001, then?

A Correct.

Q Did you meet them through Lura?

A Well, me and Lura met them together the same
night.

Q How old was Lura at the time?

A We are only a couple months different. She

could have been the same age, maybe a couple months
yvounder than me.

Q That's good enough. And Morgan and the
defendant, which is Brendan Dunckley, were married at the
time you met them?

A No, I don't think so.

Q Girlfriend/boyfriend?

A Yes,

Q " But they were together?

A Yes.

Q How did it come about that you met them; do you
remember?

A Not exactly. I think that more or less we
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started talking on the phone, and then Morgan and Brendan
said that they would come get us. And they came and

picked us up over at Lura's mom's house at the time.

Q Were you the same age as Brendan or Morgan?
A No.

Q Were they older than you?

A Yes.

Q Why were you talking to them on the phone?

What's the reiationship here? 1Is there any?

iy No.

) Were you or Lura related by blood, marriage,
anything to either one of these two?

A No.

Q How did you call them? How did you become
friends? Do you remember?

A I think that when I called, I think that I got
the wrong number at first. I don't exactly remember, but
this is what I'm thinking.

I think that T called and I was calling for
somebody else, and I happened to get Morgan on the phone.
I was talking to Morgan, and I thought it was somebody
else. And her and I just started talking. And we were
both pregnant at the time with their son Jacob, and I Was

pregnant with my daughter.
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Q How ©ld is your son now?

A My son? I have a daughter. She's six. -

Q Do you have a son?

A No, they have a son.

Q I see. They're son, your daughter. You were

both pregnant at the same time?

2001

A Yes.

Q And your daughter is six?

A Six.

Q Six now. All right. So we're going back to

+ 80 you would have been 13 or 14, like you said a

little bit ago --

A Yeah.

Q -- 1f you were pregnant with herxr. What's her
birthday?

A September 23, 2000. Mine's October 13th.

Q I'm just trying to figure out the dates here.

were

were

some

So the two of you were both pregnant, and you
talking to basically a complete stranger when you
talking to her on the phone at first, but you struck
conversation. You guys started talking, you had
things in common?

A Right.

Q But she's older than you?
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Yeah.

So at some point she said that she'd come over
you guys up, and you were going to go somewhere?
Yeah, just to hang out.

She was with her boyfriend/husband whatever he

was at the time, and that was the defendant, correct?

A

Q

Q
pregnant

A

Q

A

Q

Right.

That's yes on both of those gquestions?

Yes.

So the four of you kind of hung out together?
Yes.

Lura was your best friend, but she wasn't

at the time, wag she?

No.

She was within a couple months of your age?
Right.

So you wouldn't have turned 14 until October of

2000, cocrrect?

A

Q

A

Q

Yes.
All right.
Because I had my daughter when I was 13, yeah.

Okay. So this all happened before you were 14,

because you had your daughter?

A

When I met them, yes, it happrened when I was 13.
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Q And you had your daughter when you were 137
A Yeah.
Q So you were pregnant with vour daughter at the

time, so you couldn't have been any older than 137

A Right.

Q And the four of you guys would hang out for
what, couple weeks, months, years? How long would you
say you were friends?

A For the longest time. Probably about two years
ago I started getting into my own thing, I guess.

Q How much older than you was Morgan and Brendan,
do you know?

A Maybe -- I don't remember, but it was gquite a
bit, maybe like seven to ten, maybe, years. |

Q Years older?

A Um-hum.

Q Each of them?

A Yeg.

Q Was Brendan older than Morgan?

A To be honest with you, I think so, ves.

Q Okay. So they were adults, you were kind of --

you and Lura were kind of kids?
A Yes.

Q But the fact that you and Morgan were both
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1 pregnant was something you had in common?

2 A Right.
3 Q I need to kind of cut to the chase here and ask
4 some pointed questions. Did there ever come a time you

5 were in the same bed as Morgan and Brendan?

6 A Yes.
7 Q ~ Why or how was that coming about?
B A Me and Morgan were begt friends for, like, the

9 longest time, and it wasn't anything out of the ordinary
10 or anything like that for me, Morgan, and Brendan to be
11 in, like, the same bedroom or even in the same bed. It
12 was okavy.

13 Q Did you have your own boyfriend or the father of
14 your child as a boyfriend or anything like that?

15 A No.

16 Q All right. So while you guys were together do
17 you remember any time where there was anything sexual

18 happening between you and Brendan?

19 A Yes.

20 Q Okay. Was Lura involved in that too or was she

21 in bed with you at the same time?

22 A No, Lura wasn't there.

23 Q And can you tell us what it is you remember?

24 A Me, Morgan and Brendan, we were laying down and
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we just got done watching a movie, and Morgan fell asleep
before  me and Brehdan did. And me and Brendan, I guess,
kind of started fooling around or whatever.

When I asked him to stop he stopped, like,
touching me, and that was the end of it. We never really
had anything after that like that.

Q Was this before or after your daughter was born?

A After,

Q Do you remember how much after?
A Probably about six months, maybe.
Q Okay. And the date of your daughter's birth

again, I'm sorry?

A September 23rd, 2000.

Q Do you know if it ever happened before you
turned 14 that you were with Brendan?

A Do I know -- can you repeat that?

Q Do you know if anything sexual ever happened

when you were with Brendan before you turned 147

A Nope, never.

Q It didn't or you don't remember?

A Never anything.

Q Was there any other instances other than the one

you just described?

A No.
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Q Okay. Lura may think it happened earlier than
you turning 14. Why are you so sure it was after you
were 147

A Because of my daughter's birthday and my birth
date. I just turned 14 on October 13th. And the dates,

I had my daughter when I was 13, and my birthday was when

I was 14.

Q Right, but you said your daughter was six months
old.

2 I don't know the exact timing. That's my

guesstimation.
Q Okay. Your daughter's six months old, you're
still 13 --

A No, I was 14.

Q You had your daughter when you were 13?

A Yeah.

Q Then you turned 14 right after that?

A Yeah.

Q I see. ©So you were l4-and-a-half from your hest

recollection of when this happened?

A I'm going to say yeah.

Q OCkay. How about Lura, do you know if she had
any sexual relations at all with Brendan?

A As far as I knew, no.
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Q Consensually or not or otherwise?

A None.

Q You don't know of any time he forced himself on
her?

A I remember coming home, probably maybe back in

2005, to my mom and dad's house, and there was a cop car
there asking me if I knew Brendan. And as far as I knew
I forgot like kind of somewhat about them, because I
haven't been talking to them for a little while. I was
under a lot of drugs back then.

Q So this was in 2005, you were aware of some

situation or incident involving the police?

A Yes,

Q And that was involving Lura and Brendan?

A Yeah.

Q Going back to 1999, 2000, 2001, you're not aware

of any cirecumstances then?

A None.
Q Qkavy.
A They didn't really hang out that much as far as

I was concerned, becausge me and Morgan were, like,
inseparable for, like, the longest time. And it was just
her and I for, like forever, and Brendan would always be

at work. And I know that Lura wasn't coming around and
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she was doing her own thing at that point in time.

Q Lura is about two or three months --
A Her birthday is in May and mine is in October.
Q So a few months, five months, older than you or

younger than you?

A Younger.

Q So she was born in 19877

A Yeah.

Q And you first said you were born in 1987, and

then changed it to 1986. I'm wondering how you did that.

A I don't know why I mixed it up.
Q But which one is correct?
A 86 .

Q Okay. All right.
ME. CLIFTON: I have no further questions, Your
Honor., |
THE CGOURT: Ckay. Mr. O'Mara.

MR. O'MAERA: Yes, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. C'MARA:
Q Michelle, my name is David O'Mara. I represent
Mr. Dunckley in this matter. If you can't hear me or you

can't understand me or any of my guestions, please speak
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1 up and I'll rephrase them as best as I c¢an to help you

2 out.
3 You testified today that you first met Morgan,
4 Mr. Dunckley's wife or girlfriend at the time, and

5 Mr. Dunckley when you were pregnant, correct?

6 A Yeah.
7 Q How many months pregnant were you?
8 A It had to have been maybe seven, eight months,

9 maybe more, maybe a little bit less.

10 Q So if you gave birth to your child on September
11 23rd, 2000, then would it be correct to think that it

12 would be sometime in July or August of 2000 that you met

13 them?

14 A Yeg, it would be.

15 Q So you didn't know Mr. Dunckley in 19%9%, at allv?
16 A No.

17 Q And you're testifying today that he never

18 touched you inappropriately before you were of the age of

1% 147
20 A Right.
21 MR. O'MARA: I have no more gquestions, Your

22 Honor.

23 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Clifton.
24 MR, CLIFTON: If I may have just a moment, Your
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Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BEY MR. CLIFTON:

Q Do you remember being interviewed by Detective
Broome?

A Yeah.

Q Do you remember telling him that you were 12

when this happened with Brendan? Do you remember that?
A No.
Q Okay. When you were 12, he fondled your vagina

at night; do you remember saying that?

A No.

Q And he told you not to tell?

A I didn't say that. I know that I didn't say
that.

Q When you said you guys were fooling around and

went a little too far and told him to stop, what was it

he was touching?

A My wvaginal area.
Q Ingide or outside of the c¢lothing?
A To tell you the truth, I don't really remember.

it could have been the inside and it could have been on

the outside of the clothing.
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1 Q Was it with his hand, I take it?

2 A Yes.

3 Q Was there any kind of penetration?

4 A I don't think so. I don't believe =so0.

5 Q Was it fondling,‘rubbing?

6 A Yeah.

7 Q And you tcld him to stop and he did?

8 A Yes.

9 Q So the only issue left, I guess, is how old you
10 were at the time. And you don't recall saying you were
11 12, and you think now it was --

12 A I could have said that I was 12, but I wasn't
13 12. I could have said the years, and he could have

14 estimated it to me being 12 or something like that.

15 But T didn't meet him until I was pregnant. And
16 I got pregnant in '99, into 2000, on New Year's night. I
17 know that for a fact. So there's no way possible.

18 Q Did you tell him that you were born in 198772

19 You think maybe the math was screwed up because of that?

20 A Maybe.
21 Q Why would you tell him you were born in 139877
22 A To be honest with you, I've done a lot of drugs

23 in the past and --

24 Q And forgot your birthday?
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A No, I didn't forget my birth date. But you guys
are making me nervous, to be honest with yoﬁ guys.

g I'm just kind of curious why the first thing I
asked you here today after yoﬁr name was your date of
birth and you got it wrong. I'm just kind curious. I'm

just trying to find out.

A I don't have a good answer for that.
Q Well, thank you for being candid with us,
Michelle.

MR. CLIFTON: No further guestions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Mr. O'Mara.

MR. O'MARA: Just a few guestions, Your Honor.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. O'MARA:

Q You just mentioned that you did a lot of drugs.
When did you begin your drug use?

A After I hung out with them.

Q Can you give me a date?

A No. Pfobably around mavbe my 18th birthday. I
didn't even know them. I didn't hang around with them

around then.

Q And the District Attorney mentioned that you got
your date of birth wrong. When you first met
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1 Mr. Dunckley, isn't it true that you told him you were 16
2 years old?

3 A Yeg, I did.

4 0 Did he have any reason to believe that you

5 weren't 16 years old?

6 A No.

7 Q The District Attorney also brought up your

8 interview with Detective Broome. When did this occur?
9 A When I talked to the detective?

10 Q Correct.

11 A I don't know, like, April maybe.

12 Q April of this last year, 2007°?

13 A Yeah.

14 Q So you've never reported any type of

15 inappropriate behavior?

16 A Never.

17 Q The police officer came to you?

18 A He called me. I was in prison, and he called my
19 case worker in prison.

20 Q Did he offer you a deal to come in here today

21 and testify?

22 A No, he just said to help Brendan get behind

23 bars.

24 Q Do you have some type of anger issue against
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1 Mr. Dunckley?

2 A No, I den't.

3 MR. O'MARA: No other questions, Your Honor.
4 THE COURT: All right.

5 Thank you very much. You can step down. I

6 appreciate your testimeny very much.

7 MR. CLIFTON: Your Hconor, I know that on that

8 count, specifically Count IV, we have it alleged as the

g entire year of 1999, but before I make any‘motions to

10 amend I want to wait to hear from Lura and put her on the

11 stand, just so Your Honor can kind of keep it in mind.

12 Next we might as well call Ashley.

13 MR. O'MARA: We will obviously cbject to any
14 moticns, Your Honor.

15 MR. CLIFTON: That's fine. When I make the

16 motion, Your Honor, we'll cover that.

17 But Ashley, since we have her in the holding
18 cell, and then we can let the prisoners go back to the
19 Nevada State Prison.

20 THE COURT: Go ahead and raise your right hand

21 the best you can.

22 {(Witness sworn.)
23 THE CQURT: Thank vou.
24 Iy
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ASHLEY V.,
called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,
being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CLIFTON:
Q Please tell us your first name.
A Ashley.
Q Spell it.

A A-S-H-L-E-Y.

Q And your first initial of your last name?

A V. |

Q "V" as in Victor?

A Yes, gir.

Q Ashley, my name is Dave Clifton. I'm with the
District Attorney's office. We've never met, correct?

A Correct.

Q We've called you in here to testify on a case,

and you should have been subpoenaed and brought here from

the Nevada State Prison regarding a case involving a

Brendan Dunckley. Do you know that name?
A Yes, sir.
Q How would you know this person?
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1 A I knew him when I was a younger girl.

2 Q What is your date of birth?

3 A 8-14-86.

4 o) So you're gcing to be 217

5 A In August.

6 Q How did you know Mr. Dunckley; was there any

7 relationship blood-wise?

8 A No.

9 Q Was it just friendship?

10 A Yes.

11 C Is he older or younger than you?

12 A Older.

13 Q How long wculd you say you've known him? Going

14 back to what age?

15 A 12.

16 Q What is it about being 12 or what is it about

17 that year, which would have been 1998, when you turned 12
18 | that makes you think that's when you knew him?

1% A Me and my friend Michelle used to hang out all
20 the time at him and his wife's house.

21 Q Is Michelle the girl that just preceded you here
22 and testified?

23 A I think soc.

24 Q I don't know if you two crossed in the hall

62

V2.76




V2.77

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

there or anything, but is she also a Nevada State Prison

inmate, to your knowledge?

A Yes.

0 Are you housed together?

A We're at the same camp.

Q She was friends with you since you were 12 or

even before that?
A Since, like, the beginning of middle school.
Q All right. Did you start middle school at 11 or

12 years old?

A Yeah, like 11.

Q Ckay. How did you come to know Brendan
Dunckley?

A I don't remember how we met. I don't recall.

Q Do you remember Michelle having a child?

A Yes.

Q Did you also know a Lura, L-U-R-A, or still do?

A Yes.

Q Were all three of you friends?

A We all went to the same middle school.

Q When did Michelle get pregnant; do you remember

how ¢ld she was?

A I believe she was 13.
Q When she was 13, would that be middle school or
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high gchool?

A

him?
A

fiancee,

Q

A

Middle school.

Toward the end of the middle school years?
Yeah,

You knew Mr. Dunckley before she was pregnant?
Yes.

Before Michelle was pregnant?

Yes.

You're sure of that?

Yes.

Okay. Do you know Morgan?

Yes.

What was her relationship to any of you or to

She was also our friend and his wife or his
I believe.

All right. When you first met him?

I think so.

And they eventually got married?

Yes.

To your knowledge, did you ever stay at their

Yeg.

Do you know when that first occurred, what year
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you were in school or anything?

A No.

Q Do you remember any tiﬁe that Brendan Dunckley
touched you in a sexual manner?

A Yes.

Q And this is while he had a girlfriend Morgan,
fiancee Morgan or a wife named Morgan?

A Yes. I don't recall if they were married yet.

Q Right, but what I'm saying is the whole time you

knew him, he either had a girlfriend, fiancee or a wife?

A Yes.

Q Same girl?

A Yes.

Q And during this time he touched you in some way?
A Yes.

Q Was it ever or did it start out consensually?

A Yes. I never told him no.

Q Okay. So it wag always consensual?

I need a yes or no out loud.
A Yes.
THE COURT: We might explain it. She's
transcribing what we say, so she can only take down
words. It's hard to do gestures or nods.

In normal conversations you can use those
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expressions, but she really needs a word.

I guess I was a little negligent. Maybe I

should have explained this better to the prior witnesses.

If you could answer with a word, I would really
appreciate it.
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
MR. CLIFTON: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. CLIFTON:
Q Tell us where you were and to the best of your

recollection the date or the time period that it

happened.
y:y I can't give a date. I don't really remember.
I remember one time we were in the back of a car. He was

getting ready to drop me off at my mom and dad's house.

Q Was there anyone else in the car?

A No.

Q Just you and him?

A Yeg.

Q He was driving. You were in which seat?
A Pagsenger.

Q What kind of car?
A Taurus, Ford Taurus.
Q Why was he dropping you off there?

A Because I had spent the night at his house.
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1 Q With his girlfriend, fiancee or wife?

2 A Yes.

3 Q Were there any other people at the house?

4 A I don't remember.

5 Q Were there times when you Michelle and/or Lura

6 would stay over at the same time?
7 A Yes.
8 Q Were there times you would stay over there

] without them?

10 A I don't remember.

11 Q And he is younger or older than you?

12 A He is older.

13 Q How much?

14 A I don't know.

15 Q Could it be ten vyears?

16 A Could bhe.

17 Q Was this the first time in the car that the two

18 of you had any romantic involvement, sexual involvement

19 at all?

20 A That was the first and only time we had
21 intercourse.
22 Q Intercourse. Were there times where it might

23 have started before the car gituation, like at the

24 Atlantig?
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A Yeah.

Q Let's start with the first one. When's the
first time you kissged him, if you can recall?

A I don't recall the first time.

Q Okay. How old were you, would you say, when any
of these happened?

A Probably 12.

Q In middle school?

A Yes.

Q And is that a guess or a pretty good
recollection of some of the things that were going on in
school that you --

A 'Pretty good recollection.

Q Can you attribute it toc things; either your
birthday or things that happened in school or things you
were doing that gives you an idea of the date?

A Hum-um,

Q Which was the first one, the Atlantis or the car

A At the Atlantis.

Q Was there anything before that?
A No .
Q At the Atlantis in the elevator?
A Yes.
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1 Q Who else was in the elevator?

2 A Just him and I.

3 Q Tell us what happened.

4 A I had mentioned that I had never been in the

5 elevator, and we went up in the elevator together. And

6 as we were coming back down he put his hands in my pants,
7 fand -- you know. I never said no, though.

8 Q Okay. I'm not worried so much about that right
9 now. I'm just trying to get a feeling about what

10 happened, and then we'll talk about heow it happened.

11 A Okay.

12 0 Was this the Atlantis here in Reno, Washoe

13 County, Nevada?

14 A Yes.

15 Q So you're going down the elevator, to the-best

1le of your recollection?

17 A We had gone up, and then we were on our way back
18 down.
19 Q The elevator is going down, and just the two of

20 you were in there, and he puts his hand down the front of

21 your pants?

22 A Yes.
23 Q The front of your pants or the back?
24 A The front.
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Q Vaginal area?

A Yes.

0 Under your panties or over or were you wearing
any?

A Under,

Q So under everything. Skin to gkin?

A Yesg.

Q When he did that were you kissing?

A No.

Q Did he just do it like right when the door shut

or did he just do it as you were going down?

A As we were going down.

Q You didn't see it coming? You didn't know he
was going to do it?

A No.

Q I know you're saying you didn't voice an
objection and you're maintaining it was consensual, but
he just reached over and put his hand down your pants?

A Yes.

Q Didn't say he was going to do it, didn't ask if
he could do it; anything like that?

A No.

Q When he does that does he make any penetration

te your wvagina?
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1 A No.

2 Q Doeg he rub?

3 A Yes,

4 Q With his hand?

5 A Yes.

6 Q And you don't tell him to stop?

7 A No

8 Q And yéu believe you were in 7th grade at the

10 A 8th grade.

11 Q And you were 12 or 13 now?

12 A I was 12.

13 Q But definitely less than 147

14 A Yes.

15 Q You turned 12 on August 14, 1588, so it would

16 have been within how much time of that, would you say?

17 A I don't know.

18 Q Within a year?

19 A I'm sorry, I don't understand what you're asking
20 me .

21 Q If we start at August 14, 1986, when you were

22 born, and you turn 12 on August 14, 1998, would it have
23 been within that next year that this happened, while you

24 were 127
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1 A Yeah.

2 Q So before August 14th of 199%, it happened in
3 that year, correct?

4 Tiy Yes.

5 Q Why were vou in the Atlantis elevator without

) Morgan or the two of you together?

7 A I had just made a statement that I've never been
8 in there. It was him, I, Michelle, and Morgan, and we

9 were all at the Atlantis. I don't remember why we were
10 there and what we were doing.

11 Q What happened to Lura and Michelle?

12 A I don't think Lura was there.

13 Q Michelle, what happened to her?

14 A Her and Morgan stayved downstairs while we went

15 in the elevator.

18 Q So Morgan wouldn't have known, you didn't tell
17 her?

18 A No.

19 ] Brendan didn't tell her?

20 A No.

21 Q Did anything else happen in the elevator?

22 A No.

23 Q Just put his hands down your pants and fondled

24 or rubbed, and you get down and the elevator opens, and
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that was

A

Q

A

Q

off at your parents. That's off Longley Lane, south

the end of it?

Yes.

And nobody tells anybody what happened?

No.

Going now to this next time where he drops you

Reno?

A Yeg, by Mira Loma.

Q In the apartments there or in a house?

A It's apartments.

Q He drops you off, just the two of you in the
car. What happens there?

A We parked at the cul-de-sac before we went into

the apartments.

Q

A

I see.
And we
Was it
No, it
Was it
Light,

How ol

both got into the back.
at night?
was in the morning.

dark or light out?

d were you now?

I think about the same age.

So between August 14, 1998, and August 14,

Yes.

73

192997

V2. 87



V2. 88

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

Q So your 12 years old, to the best of your
knowledge?
A Yes.

Q Michelle hasn't had her bkaby yet?

A Are you asking me?

Q Yes.

2 No.

Q She has not had her baby yet; 1is that a correct

statement?

A I don't believe so. I can't really remember too
well,

Q Okay. Are you older than Michelle or younéer?

A I'm older.

Q 'All right. And what happened in the back of the
car?

A We had intercourse.

Q But this was not against your will is your
testimony, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And that's the only time you two had

intercourse, correct?

A Correct,
Q And nobody told Morgan, I take it?
A No.
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Q Was there any other times that the two of you

had had any type of sexual relations at all?

A No.

Q Would you recognize him if you saw him?

A Yes.

Q Is he here in the courtroom?

A Yes.

Q Where in relation to me?

A Over there (indicating;} Where 1is he?

Q Yegs, in relation to me. My right, my left,
front --

A - To yvour left.

Q Left. Person next to me or the one over from
that?

A One over from that.

MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, if the record could
reflect identification of defendant Dunckley again.
THE COURT: The record will so reflect.
MR. CLIFTON: Thank vyou.
No further gquestions.
THE COURT: Mr. O'Mara.
MR. O'MARA: Thank vyou.
/77
/77
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. O'MARA: |

3 Q Good afternoon, Ashley. My name is David

4 O0'Mara. I'm Mr. Dunckley's attorney. I'm going tc ask

5 you a bunch of guestions today. If you'can't hear me or
6 don't understand the guestion, please let me know. I'11
7 try to speak up or at least rephrase my questions so we

8 can get a proper record.

9 A Okay .

10 Q You testified today that you were housed at the

11 same camp as Michelle; is that correct?

12 A Correct.

13 Q How long have you been housed at the same camp?
14 y: Only for about two weeks.

15 Q Have you discussed this case with Michelle in

16 that two-week period?

17 A No.

18 Q Have you been detained with Michelle recently?
19 A I don't understand what you're asking me.

20 Q How long have you been in prison?

21 A Since November.

22 Q November 20007

23 A No.

24 Q November 2007, I'm sorry.
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A

Q

besides the two weeks, were you housed with Michelle?

A

Q

met Mr.

A

Q

metft Mr.

A

Q

A

Q

went to the same school; is that correct?

A

Q

Lura?

A

Any time between November 2006, to today's date

Dunckley; is that correct?

Dunckley at the same time-?

200¢.

NC.

You testified that you don't remember how you

Correct.

Would it be fair to say that you and Michelle

I don't remember.

Would it be plausible --

Yeah.

-- in that you both met them at the same time?
Yes.

You tegtified that you, Lura, and Michelle all

Correct..

What school did you go to?

Dilworth Middle School.

Have you kept in contact with this Lura?
I haven't, no.

When was the last time you had contact with

I think I was maybe about 14.
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Q Did you have contact with Lura at the time you
claim these incidents happened?

A I don't understand. I'm sorry.

0 Did you have contact with Lura during the time

when these incidents happened?

A Like were we all together?

Q Correct.

p:y Not at the time, but those are the days we were
still hanging out. I don't understand.

Q So you were still hanging out with Lura at the

time you claim these incidents happened?

A Yes.

Q Going back to the time period in which you claim
that these events happened; you cannot give us a specific

date, correct?

A Correct.

Q Can you give us a specific month?

A No.

Q During your elevator ride, how far up did you go

on the elevator?

A I don't know specifically how far up we had
gone.
Q Do you remember which elevator you went to?
A The conly thing I remember is that it was the one
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that was all glass that you can see through.

Q So if I asked yoﬁ to go to the board and
diagram --

A I couldn't.

Q You couldn't do it. BHow long did the elevator

ride last?
A Not more than a couple minutes.
Q Okay. And in these dates you claim that these

incidents happened between 1998 and 1999, correct?

A Correct.

Q How sure are you of those dates?

A Pretty sure.

Q Can you.give me a percentage; 100 percent sure,

would it be 757

A Like, maybe 80 percent.

Q And at this time that these claimed incidents
occurred was Michelle pregnant?

A Not that I recall.

0 Could she have already had the baby?

A No.

Q If you were told Michelle earlier today claimed
that the first time she met Mr. Dunckley was when she was
pregnant, would that be a true statement?

A I don't know. I don't recall.
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Q Michelle testified earlier that she would have
met Mr. Dunckley for the first time seven or.eight months
while she was pregnant. Do you recall that as being

correct?

A No.

Q Do you know the date of birth of her child?

A No.

Q Do you know the year of the birth of her child?

A I think it's '9% -- I'm not exactly sure -- oY
2000.

Q What were you wearing on the day which you took

the elevator ride?

Y2 I don't recall.

Q Were you wearing a skirt?

A No.

Q Were you wearing a biouse?

A I don't know exactly what I was wearing.
Q Do you recall if you had buttons?

A No.

Q A zipper?

A (Shakes head.)

Q Were they baggie pants?

A I really don't remember.

Q So you don't know if they were tight?
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1 A No.
2 Q You testified that you were driven home in a

3 Ford Taurus the first time that aﬁ incident occurred.

4 A Yes.

5 Q Was that Mr. Dunckley's Ford Taurus?

6 A I don't know exactly whose it was.

7 Q Could you describe what the Ford Taurus looked
8 like?

9 A I think it was blue, but I can't recall.

10 Q You testified today that Michelle was at the

11 Atlantis, correct?

12 A Yes.

13 Q So if Michelle testified that she had not met

14 Brendan before 2000, do you think you may be incorrect on
15 the datesg?

16 A No.

17 o} So it's either you're right and she's wrong or
18 she's right and your wrong?

197 MR. CLIFTON: OCbjection, Your Hconor. That's

20 something I think goes beyond the scope of what you're

21 allowed to ask one witness about what another witness is

22 correct or wrong on or lying about.

23 . That's new Nevada Supreme Court case law.

24 MR. O'MARA: I'm unaware of the case law.
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1 MR. CLIFTON: You can't ask one witness if

2 another witness is lying, and I think that's what he's

3 getting at.

4 THE COURT: Well, I think there's a discrepancy
5 in the testimony. To the extent he's trying to say

6 someone.is lying, I don't know if that is where he's

7 headed.

8 ' I'll ask you to rephrase the gquestion.

9 BY MR. O'MARA:

10 Q I'm trying to figure out the dates in which this
11 occurred.

12 '~ If an individual told you they had met this

13 person in 2000, would they be correct?

14 A Yeah. I don't know. All I know is that when I

15 met him I was, like, 12 vyears old.

16 Q But you're not sure?

17 ¥iy 0f what?

18 Q When you met him?

19 A I'm not sure of how I met him.

20 O But you're sure of how you met him?

21 A I'm not sure how I met him. I'm sure of how old

22 I was when I met him.
23 C So if someone says you met him for the first

24 time in 2000, they would be incorrect?
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1 A Yes.
2 Q When did you first notify the police department

3 in regard to this incident?

4 A I never did.

5 Q How did this incident come about?

6 A What incident? Why I'm here today?

7 Q Correct.

8 A I got a call while I was in camp incarcerated, I

9 guess, pertaining to another case that's going on or

10 whatever.

11 Q And who contacted you?

12 A A Detective Tom Broome, I believe.

13 Q And what did he tell you?

14 i He just asked me some gquestions about what I

15 could remember or if I could remember anything. Kind of
16 like the same guestions you guys are asking me now.

17 Q Was this at the camp?

18 A Yeg, it was a telephone call.

19 Q So he was not at the camp?

20 A No.

21 Q Do you know if this conversation was recorded?
22 A It was recorded.

23 Q When you first met Mr. Dunckley did you tell him

24 that you were 16 years old?
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A I don't think so.

Q When you talked about getting in a car when
going to Longley Lane and Mira Loma apartments where
another incident occurred, do you know what type of car

that was?

A That I got into?
Q Yes.
A I'm almest positive it was a Ford Taurué.
Q It was the same blue Taurus?
A It was either silver or blue. I can't remember.
Q You testified that you had intercourse with
Mr. Dunckley. Can you explain what occurred in the back

of this vehicle?
A We got into the back seat and he set in the
back. He pulled down his pants and he put me on top of

him and helped me pretty much, helped me have sex with

him.
Q Was this your first time having sex?
A No.
Q Did you ever tell him that this wasn't your

first time?

A Did I ever tell him that it wag?
Q That it wasn't your first time?
A No.
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Q Did you notify the police department that you
had sexual intercourse with Mr. Dunckley?
A No.
Q Did this incident come up only when Detective
Broome called you?
A Yeé.
MR. O'MARA: I have no other questions, Your
Honor.
THE COURT: Mr, Clifton, any redirect?

MR. CLIFTON: I think just one question.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CLIFTON:
Q Ashley, I'm sorry, but we have to make this very
specific.

In the back seat of the car when you were on top
of him, yvou said he helped you -- and you called it --
have sex, have intercourse. Are we talking his penis in
your vagina?

A Yes.
Q When you say he helped you, does that mean he

was able to insert his penis in your wvagina?

4 He was holding my hips and guiding me.
Q Through the act of sexual intercourse?
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1 A Yes.

2 MR. CLIFTON: Thank you. No further.

3 MR. O'MARA: I don't have any other questions,
4 Your Honor.

5 THE COURT: &All right. Thank you very much.

6 You can step down. I appreciate your testimony.

7 MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, if I may, a couple

8 amendments now to make, so we don't get them confused

9 with later possible amendments.

10 On Count I, II, and III, you can see that the

11 charges are charged alternately. And to be consistent

12 with her date of birth, which is what I tried to

13 concentrate on, focus on with her testimony, I would move
14 to change the dates on all three of these counts to the
15 1l4th day of August 1998, which is when she turned 12, and
16 I'd like to go to the 14th day of August 2000, rather

17 than 1999, which is when she turned 14.

18 and, Your Honor, I'd like to make it the 13th

19 day rather than the 14th day on the second ohe.

20 THE COURT: You're at line 167

21 MR. CLIFTON: Yeah. So it would be the 14th day

22 of August 1998.

23 THE COURT: 13th or 147?
24 MR. CLIFTON: This one is the 14th.
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THE COQURT: The 14th day of August.

MR. CLIFTON: August 1228,

THE COURT: So January to August on line 177

MR. CLIFTON: Yes. And then i1t should read,

"And the 13th day of August 2000." So between those two

dates, 1l4th day of August 1998, to the 13th day of August

2000, which would be the day before she turned 14.

And that would be consistent with the lewdness

charge, which is the alternative Count IT.

MR. O'MARA: Your Honor, is the District
Attorney moving to amend this?

MR. CLIFTON: Yes, but I'm not guite done.

moving to amend all three.

I'm

THE COURT: He's moving to amend the complaint.

MR. CLIFTON: 173.085% --

THE COURT: Mr. Clifton, just a minute. He's

moving to amend the complaint at line 16 on Page 1,
striking the word first or the letters, "lst through

L4th." And then it says, "day of," and then on line

the

17

he's changing January to August. And then he's changing

the word 31st to 13th. And then December he's changing

to August, and he's changing the year from 1298 to 2000.

MR. CLIFTON: .Correct.

MR. O'MARA: We obviously object to this, Your
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Honor. This complaint is completely vague and doesn't
give any notice tc Mr. Dunckley as to what the charges
are he's being charged with. They can't come back out
and say that within a 10-year period of time this
incident happened. There has to be a standard of notice
in the complaint that allows Mr. Dunckley to defend
himself.

Thig is so far out, he doesn't have the proper
notice to defend himself.

MR. CLIFTON: And NRS 173.09% allows, with leave
of Court, for the State to amend a complaint, information
or indictment -- a complaint or information I should
say -- up until the time of verdict.

We have had many cases where an amendment 1is
made to a date, even at trial, based upon the evidence.
To conform to the evidence, Your Honor --

THE COURT: Okay. ©Okay. I'm going to overrule
the objection.

MR. CLIFTON: Thank you.

Lastly, just for the record, I wanted to mention
that we are dealing with a child here when this happened.
So the courts are much more lenient with that.

With respect to Count II, the dates would be the

same on lines 4 and 5, the same changes that we just
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made.

minute.

to 14th. Line 5, I've changed January to August, 31lst to

13th, and December to August, and the year 1998 to 2000.

line 8,

be August 14th, not March 14th of 1986.

August.

I at line 207

it on Count I. Yes. Thank vyou.

amendments?

date.

top on

strike

That would be the State's motion.
In addition, line 8 --
THE COURT: Just a minute. Givé me just a
I have to write very carefully.

All right. Line 14, I've changed the word 1st
MR. CLIFTON: And additionally, Your Honor, on‘
it has Ashley's birth date incorrect. It should
So I'd make the amendment to change March to

THE COURT: Do you want to do that also on Count
MR. CLIFTON: Oh, I didn't even realize we had
THE COURT: Then on Page 2 at‘line 21, same

MR. CLIFTON: Yes. And line 26 for her birth
THE COURT: Okay. I have made those aﬁendments;
MR. CLIFTCN: On FPage 3, four Honor, at the very

line 2, the fifth word is "at." If we could just

that word so that it reads, "Ashley V., in a
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parking lot."

THE COURT: All right. I've stricken the word

“at- n

MR. CLIFTON: And that's all I have based upon

her testimony, Your Honor. And if there's no objéction

is that "at" being deleted, I take it?

MR. O'MARA: I don't have an objection to the

"at," but I still maintain my objection to the others.

THE COURT: So noted. Thank vyou.

MR. CLIFTON: I would like to call Tom Broome to

the stand, please.
THE COURT: Good afternoon. There's a door

handle that will let you into the witness stand there.

When you step in you may feel a little movement, but it's

a leveling device that works by itself.
(Witness Sworn)
TOM KEITH BROOME,
called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,
being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CLIFTON:

Q Pleagse state your name.
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P

A Tom Keith Brcome.

Q Spell your last.

A B-R-O0-0-M-E.

Q Your occupatiocn, please.

A I'm a detective with the sex crimes unit for the

Reno Police Department.

Q How long have you been with Reno Police?

A Just short of 27 years.

Q How long as a detective?

A In this particular unit about seven-and-a-half
yvears.

Q How about toctal years?

A About half my career.

Q Okay. And in this particular unit did you have

cccasion to become involved in the investigation of a
Brendan Dunckley, D-U-N-C-K-L-E-Y?

A Yes, sir, I did.

Q I want to direct your attention -- let's start
with the most recent incident of March 10th, 2007,
involving a Jessica H. Are you familiar with this
investigation?

A Yeg, sgir.

Q Did you know Mr. Dunckley even before this

investigation based upon other prior possible
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1 investigations?

2 A Yes, sir, I did.

3 ) All right. In this cne, with Jessica H., when

4 were you first called into it?

5 On March 10th, in other words what was happening

6 when you got involved?

7 A The patrol sergeant called me. We have two

8 on-call sex crimes detectives every week. 2And I was the
S primary on-call detective. So we usually get calls

10 either giving us a heads up or asking advice or for

11 whatever reason, we decide whether or not we come out and
12 start an investigation right then or take a look .at it at
13 a later time.

14 Q Well, this happened in the evening hours of

15 March 10th. Would it be safe to say you got involved on
16 that date; do you remember?

17 A Sure.

18 Q Did you have occasion to‘see Jessica at the

19 scene of her apartment?

20 A No, sir.

21 Q Did you have occasion to see the defendant any
22 time that night?

23 i\ No, sir.

24 Q Did you get briefed by the police officers,
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patrol ocfficers,
A I did.
Q

Let me

start with her,

on what she claimed had occurred?

just jump right ahead to -- well,

even before we get to hig interviews.

let's

You did have occasion at some point to interview

her, correct?
A I did.
Q Did she explain what happened at her apartment

that night?

A Yes, she did.

Q Did she indicate in any way, shape or form that
it was consensual or there was any consensual sexual

activity between her and the defendant?

A No, sir.

Q Is that "non?

A No.

Q And the defendant I'm referring to is

Mr. Dunckley, you're aware of that?

A Yes, s=sir.

Q Did she indicate she knew him from any past
occasions?
A

No, she gaid she didn't.

Q Did she indicate that she believed she had

bitten his penis?
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A She said that, yes, sir.

Q Okay. When was it, would you say, that you had
occasion to interview him in relation to the time of the
event?

A About 10 days later.

Q Do you know hig date of birth?

A I believe it's July 4th of 1976.

Q So he'il be 31 in two days?

i\ If I'm correct, yes, sir.

Q Okay. Are you familiar with Michelle, Lura,

Ashley, the names of some of these people in
Mr. Dunckley's life?

A I am.

Q And they're all significantly younger than him,
approximately ten years?

A Yes.

Q Okay. On this case, let's say approximately
March 20th, that's based on your reccllection when you
interviewed him, was it at his home, at the station, at -

his work or what?

A My first interview with him was at his home on
the 20th.
Q Was it there or was it over the phone?
A It was there in person.
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Q Was he consensual to being interviewed?

A Yes.

Q Did you indicate to him what this interview was
about?

A T did.

Q And the allegatién that wés being made by
Jessica?

A Yes, sir.

Q Go ahead and, T guess, just jump to it and tell
us what his first explanation was as far as what occurred

that night with her.

A His first explanation was, as he originally
reported, that it was -- that there was no sex act of any
kind.

Q When you say when he first reported, you're

talking about the patrol cfficers on scene that night?

A That's correct.

Q And that was because she had chased him or given
chase to him outside of her apartment, two people had

tackled him or jumped him?

A He was detained, ves, sir.
Q The police came and he was still there?
A Yes.
Q But no arrest was made?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q She had been drinking, that was clear?

3 A Yes.

4 Q You know what he has told the police, you'd been

5 briefed on that, correct?

6 A Yes.

7 Q And he gives a similar statement now to you?

8 A Yes.

9 Q In this first statement he claims there was no

10 sex act at all?

11 A That's correct.

12 0 Did he indicate why he happened to be at her

13 apartment?

14 A That he was just trying to help her. He'd seen
15 her staggering down the road. He was just trying to make

16 sure she got home okay.

17 Q He was not in custody with you even on this

18 interview, correct?

19 A That's correct.

20 Q At this time you made this clear to him?

21 A Sure. I was in his home and he invited me in.
22 Q And he was not arrested after the interview on

23 that date?

24 A That's correct.
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1 Q So he was free to stop the interview at any

2 time?

3 A Sure.

4 Q He indicated no sexual act whatsoever. Did he

5 indicate he had tec help her in any way, shape or form?

6 A Yes.
7 Q To do what or why?
8 A Help her up the stairs into her apartment, and

9 that she had passed out and had fallen down, and he was
10 rendering medical assistance to her.
11 Q Did that include rubbing her chest? He called

12 it sternum, I should be fair.

13 A That's correct.

14 Q Rubbing her sternum?

15 A Yes, sir.

16 Q Did he indicate that she came to?

17 A He did.

18 Q And then’she passed out again or went

19 unconscious seemingly again?

20 A That's correct.

21 Q Then he had to rub her chest back to

22 consciousness again?

23 A I'm not sure. There was two chest rubs, but she

24 did wake up.
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Q Woke up a second time, and then what happened?

A She just went crazy -- according to him -- that
she just went crazy and started screaming at him and
started chasing him down the stairs. Said that "you
raped me."

Q Anything about that interview that's noteworthy
or that we need to cover?

A We had started in his living room. &and I told
him that -- I asked him if he remembered that we took
swabs o0f his penis that night, and he said he did. He
indicated that he was very uncomfortable talking there,
because his wife was just in the other room. I asked him
if he wanted to go out on the front steps. He said yeah,
g0 we did.

Walked out on the front steps, at that point is
when he told me that everything was kind of the same,
except that when she woke up she unzipped his pants, tock
his penis out, put it in her mouth before he knew whét
was happening.

Q And this was after you told him about some type
of DNA evidence?

A I reminded him that we had swabbed his penis énd
he was fully aware of that. That happened -- the initial

patrol guys did that.
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Q Did he say anything about why he didn't say
anything of this to the police, because his wife wasn't
there at that time, right, on March 10th?

A She might have been in the area.

Q Did he indicate why he didn't tell the police
the correct version, the truth, what he's saying now is

the truth?

A He said several times it was a bad judgment
call. I don't believe he wanted his wife to know.

Q But he admitted he lied to the patrol officerg?

B Yez.

0 And he admitted he lied to you the first time in

giving you the events?

A It was clear he lied to me, because I was the
one there that he had lied to.

Q S0 now he's saying that in her state of
intoxication and semiconsciocusness she unzips his pants,

pulls his penis out, and puts it in her mouth?

A Yes, sir.

Q You didn't arrest him though, correct?

n I did not.

Q You went back to the station?

A I asked him if he would meet me the following
day for an interview in our office, again. And I
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happened to be on call that week and was on my way to
another sexual assault.

Q 'And did there come a point in time when he met
with you?

A I met with him at about 10:00 o'eclock the

following day at the sex crimes office.

Q Did he drive himself there?

A He did.

Q Did you make it clear he was not in custody?
A I did.

Q Did you make it clear he was free to leave at

any time?

A Yeg, sir.

Q Were any of these interviews taped?

A All of them were.

Q Audio? Visual?

A The ones in the office are audic and video, the

one at his house was just audio.

Q On this audio and videotape in your office dia'
he give another version of events?

A It was pretty similar to what we had talked

about the day before.

Q Do you remember at any time during these two
interviews him saying that she -- the reason that the DNA
100
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or the penile swab might show poésitive had something to
do with her hand down his pants? Not oral copulation,
but her hand down his pants?

A He did say that at some point, yes, sir. I'm
not sure if that was in the initial interview or the
other one. I reminded him we were talking about saliva;
we were not talking about any other sort of transfer of
DNA but saliva.

Q That's what I'm referring to. You told him
about a saliva test that either did or could come out
positive regarding the victim's saliva on his penis; is

that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And his answer was, "Well that could be because
she put her hand down my pants," correct?

A Correct.

Q Then you reminded him what?

A That we were talking gspecifically about her

saliva on his penis.
Q So that couldn't be explained by her hand, then,

correct?

A Yes, sgir.
Q Is that what you were getting at?
A Yes.
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Q So we have no sex, her hand she forcibly put
down his pants, and thirdly she pulled out his penis and
put it in her mouth. Those three different scenarios?

A And kind of an addition to that one: When he
came to the coffice he said that wﬁen ghe woke up she
wanted to thank him for helping her up the stairs.

So that was in addition to the interview from
the day before that that's why she did that.

Q Why she did --

A Why she put his penis in her mouth was to thank
him.

Q The oral copulation?

A Correct.

Q Was the arrest of him made at that time?

A He was arrested at the end of that interview,

yes, sir,

Q For?

A Sexual assault,

Q on-?

A On Jessica H.

o) And this was at Sky Mountain, I believe the

apartments off --

A 1670 Sky Mountain, I believe.
Q Good enough. So that was the March loth, 2007,
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incident. Can you explain tc the judge how you connected

some of these previous cases to Mr. Dunckley?

A Well, as we talked about before, I was aware of
Mr. Dunckley from a previous investigatiocon in 2005. Now,
when I got called the night of March 10th, when this
occurred I was not told it was Brendan Dunckley involved.
I didn't learn that until I came to work on the 12th
after days off. So I initially didn't know it was him.

When I saw that cagse, and of course I was the

investigator on the '05 case, I saw some similarities in
the two cases.

Q Including drunken or intoxicated wvictim?

A Intoxicated victim, the age of the victim, the
bizarreness in the stories, the fact that he made the
victims somewhat the aggressors and him somewhat of a

victim in both cases.

Q The 2005 case, what's the victim's name in that
case?

A Lura.

Q L-U-R-A?

A Correct.

Q And she's friends with Michelle?

A She is friends with Michelle.

Q Now Michelle has already testified here today
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and Lura has not yet. Lura then, in 2005, would have

been approximately the same age you're saying Jessica was

in 2007, Is that what you were saying, they're similar
ages?

A That's correct.

Q But Lura actually goes back, with respect to

Mr. Dunckley, to way before 2005, correct?
A That's correct, as does Michelle, I believe.
Q But in 2005, the case you were investigating was

an actual sexual assault, correct?

A It was a reported sexual assault, yes, sir.
Q By Lura?

A Correct.

Q In other words, sex against her will?

A Yes, sir.

Q Similar to Jesgsica?

A Right.

Q Because Jessica was reported?
A Correct.
Q In further investigation or in your previous

knowledge of Mr. Dunckley in these cases, did you know of
an instance with Lura even before 20057?
A Yeg.

Q Okay. And did that include Mr. Dunckley and
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some type of sexual acts or relations with Lura while she
was under 147

A Yes, sir.

Q And did it also include Michelle?

A It did.

Q Did you interview Michelle?

A Cn the phone.

Q Ckay. Would this be in 2007, now?

iy Yes, sir.

Q Sc when you took over that investigation from

the earlier cases in 2007, you called Michelle where?

A At -- I don't recall which facility, but the
Nevada Department of Correcticns. I believe it was 1in
las Vegas.

Q When you talked to her by the phone was any of
that recorded, do you kncw?

A I don't recall right now.

Q Okay. That's fine. But when you spoke to
Michelle did you find out that something happened when

she was 12 or 13 with Brendan Dunckley?

A I did.
Q Now she came in here today and said she's pretty
sure she was older than that. Did ycu attempt to tie

down the dates or age in any way? Did she mention she
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was 12 or 13 or how did this go?

She said she had a baby when she was 13, a
daughter. Did she indicate to you whether it was before
she had the child or after, anything like that?

A I just don't remember exactly what she --
Q All right. You did a five-page report. You

have done several, but one being a five-page report

dealing with Michelle. Are you aware of this report?
A Yes, sir.
Q And it's just a short portion that's on
Michelle. Page 3 of 5 of your report. I want to give

you a date on this report, but I don't know if you've
done more than one on thig date, and I don't want to get
it confused.

But it'g the report that you have, "Phone
interview with Lura." You talked to Ashley and you
talked to Michelle. Are you familiar with this

supplemental report?

A Yes, sir.

Q Go ahead and review a little bit of Michelle, on
Page 3, and also onto Page 4. It's only about two
paragraphs.

A {Witness complies.}

MR. CLIFTON: Your Honor, I apologize. I should
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have asked to approach him with his report to refresh his
recollection. That's my intent in doing this when he
said he couldn't remember, if that's all right with the
Court.

THE COURT: All right.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
BY MR. CLIFTON:

Q Does that help refresh your recollection a

little bit about the interview with Michelle? You said a

minute ago you couldn't quite remember some of the

details.

A Yes.

Q All right. Let me ask you a few guestions on
that. Does she indicate how old she was when this sexual

conduct happened with Mr. Dunckley?

A She talks about two different times, actually.
One time when she thought that she was older, 16 or 17,
and then an incident when she was 12.

Q And the time that she was 12, did that inveclve
sleeping with him and his girlfriend or wife named
Morgan?

A Yes, gir.

Q What did she say he did to her while she was

sleeping over at their house?
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1 A He reached over Morgan and fondled her vagina in

2 the bed.

3 Q Reached over Morgan an fondled whose vagina?

4 A I'm sorry, fondled Michelle's vagina.

5 Q While she was 12°?

6 .Y Yes, sir.

7 Q Did she, Michelle, indicate she was aware of

8 Ashley also being sexually assaulted -- that's the words
9 used 1in your report -- by Dunckley?

10 A Yes.

11 Q And she was the one that told you about Ashley?
12 A She was.

13 Q And then you went and interviewed Ashley?

14 a Same w%y, via telephone.

15 Q And you found out Ashley was how old when she

16 had some type of sexual contact with the defendant?

17 A She was 12 or 13 also.

18 Q And Mr. Dunckley is the defendant here in the

19 courtroom today?

20 A He is.

21 Q Did you use photographic arrays cor photo lineups
22 or anything like that with any of fhese witnesses in

23 dealing with the defendant identity? Would that include

24 Jessica?
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iy Yeg, sir.
Q Was she able to pick cut Mr. Dunckley in that

photo array/lineup?

A She was.

Q How many people were in that array?

A I vary them. I den't always use six. Sometimes
I use eight. I don't recall how many was in this, but I

usually don't stick to a specific number.

Q But either way, you talked to Mr. Dunckley and-
he admitted he had contact with this person at that
location that appeared to be Jessica that he was talking
about, correct?

A Oh, sure.

Q So there's no question now that we're talking
about the right person that Jessica was with that night
at her apartment?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

MR. CLIFTCN: No further guestions.
THE CCURT: Mr. C'Mara.
MR. C'MARA: Thank vyou.

/77
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. O'MARA:

Q Detective Broome, my name ig David O'Mara, and I
represent Mr. Dunckley. If you can't hear me or you
don't understand a guestion, please speak up so we can
get a proper recording of the court record.

A Sure.

Q You talked about Mr. Dunckley stating that the
saliva could have been on his penis from a hand; is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q Could it have been a misinterpretation between
Jessica's hand and Mr. Dunckley's hand?

A No.

Q Did Mr. Dunckley ever inform you that he had to
do a finger sweep of Jessica in order to stop her from
choking?

A No. I have heard that story, though.

Q When did you hear that?
A Lagt time I was here I heard that story.
Q So at no time during your investigation or your

interviews with Mr. Dunckley he never mentioned that he
did a finger sweep of Jessica?

A Ee told another Reno police officer that. He
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® e
never told me that, no, sir.

Q all right. Great. If we can go to Michelle and
the questions we just went through and how you just
reviewed your incident report, number 0534027706; do you
have it in front of vyou?

A I don't.

Q Do you recall why Michelle was over at Brendan
and Morgan's house?

A Not specifically. I got the impression they
were all --

Q Let me rephrase my guestion, because there's two
sections in here.

In your statement it talks about Michelle
sleeping over when she was 12, and then it later goes on
and says the reason why she was over there. Do you
recall why?

A Specifically that time, no, sir.

Q If it said she said that Brendan and Morgan were
babysitting her at the time, would that fresh your
memory?

yiy That's what I was going to say when you stopped
me is that all these girls were friends, more with Morgan
at the time. So they spent a lot of time together at

that time of their life. So, yeah.
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1 Q So Michelle could have had her baby being at

2 Brendan and Morgan's to be babysat?

3 A She coculd have, yes, sir.

4 Q Do you know when Michelle had her baby?

5 A I don't.

6 Q Did she ever talk about her baby in the

7 interview?

8 A No. My interview was very short, and they were

9 trying to pull her away while 1 was talking to her, the

10 correction people.

11 Q Did you ever go into Michelle's past?

12 A Not in specifics, no.

13 Q Did you ever go into her drug habits?

14 A I knew why she was incarcerated, i1f that helps.

15 I knew she had a rough childhood, if that helps.

16 Q If you were told that she had a baby in 2000,

17 would your numbers be correct now about the age of 127?

18 A Without having the dates of birth in front of

19 me, I --

20 Q Let's see. Michelle was born on October of

21 1986. Do you recall that birth date?

22 A I don't, but I certainly believe you.

23 0 And her baby was born on September 23rd of 2000.

24 So if she had a baby in 2000, and she was born in 1986,
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she couldn't have been 12 years old, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Did you look into when her baby was born?

A No, I didn't.

Q Are you aware that -- obviously you're not
aware. Would it surprise you if Michelle testified today
that she never said that Mr. Dunckley told her never to

tell anyone?

A Would it surprise, me?

Q Yeah.

A Somewhat, I guess, yes, sir.

Q In regards to -- let's go back to Jessica. 1In

regards to the incident in which she claimed happened,

did she ever acknowledge how long the incident occurred?

A I'm not sure specifically what part of the
incident.

Q Did she ever talk about the incident in the
apartment between the alleged -- her and the defendant
here?

A Yeg, sir. Aré you talking about the part about

the fellatio?
@  In between the period of time when she entered
the apartment to the end of this alleged incident where

she ran out of the apartment.
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A Just that it was a short time, yes, sir.
Q But she didn't give you any 5, 10 minutes?
A I don't believe sco, and I don't know that she

could have.

Q Did she describe what happened when she entered
the apartment originally?

A Yes.

Q What did she say?

A That she opened the docor, walked to the back
part of the apartment, called for her boyfriend, was
looking for him, and when she turned around Brendan was

standing between her and the door.

Q And then what happened?
A And he told her to "suck his dick," and she said
that she had no way out. She said he was between her and

the door and she was scared.

Q What did she do after he allegedly said, "Suck

my dick"?
A She did what she was tocld to do.
Q Did you measure the distance between the back

room and the door?
A No.
Q Do you have any recollection of how far the back

room and the front docr is?
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A No, I don't.

Q Do you know of any report that measured the back
door?

A No, sir.

Q Do you know of any police officer that has been

inside of the apartment?
A Sure.
Q Is there any report that sets forth the distance

between the back rocom and the front door?

a Could be an FIS report that I don't have.
Q If you mean FIS report, what is that?
A The lab people, the county crime lab people. If

they were called they would have prepared something like
that.

Q And whén Jessica informed you of the alleged
incident did she mention how many times she bit the
defendant?

iy If she did, I don't recall how many times.

MR. O'MARA: May I have a few minutes, Your
Honor?
THE COURT: Certainly.
MRﬂ O"'MARA: Thank vyou.
&
BY MR. O'MAﬁA:

Q In your review of other detectives' or officers!
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reports, did any of the other officers in their reports
mention how many times she allegedly bit the defendant?
A If they did, I don't recall that.

MR. O'MARA: T have no other questions, Your

Honor.

TEE COURT: OQkay. Mr. Clifton.

MR. CLIFTON: No additional.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you wvery much.

MR, CLIFTON: Your Honor, the State's last
witnegs is Lura. She lives in Yeringten. And apparently

she had car trouble getting out of Yerington or is having
trcuble finding a car ride out of Yerington, T don't know
which. So she has not been able to make it here.

I guess my first motion or opticon would be tq
ask, sinée it's this late of an hour anyway, to continue
the rest of the prelim to a date that would allow us time
to drive her here, get her a ride here, whatever it
takes,

I know this is the second time she's been
subpoenaed for court. She is cooperative. She's
available. We know where she lives. She answers the
phone. We've talked to her two or three times today.

(Deputy District Attorney Sworn)

THE CQURT: Is Lura subpoenaed?
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MR. CLIFTON: Yes, she was, Your Hcnor. She was
subpoenaed for the May preliminary hearing and she was
subpoenaed again for today. I have not checked to see if
they were oral-service subpoenas or if they were
physically served upon her. But in either event, under
the oral service law she has been cooperative. She was
notified of today's date. She has always told us she
would be here. We expected her to be here.

And at the time of the prelim at 1:30 today, we
tried starting to.call her from 1:30 to 2:30, and were
told she's having car trouble, she's trying to find a
ride, things like that. 1I've only been able to talk to
my witness advocate during breaks just now trying to find
out 1f she's here. She couldn't make it. So I don't
know the exact reason there.

But I do know she's a necessary witness on
several counts, I think it's two counts dealing with her
and Michelle on Count IV, and then her alone on Count V.
So it's juét those two counts. But we certainly would
l1ike to have her here.

THE COURT: Also on Count VII.

MR. CLIFTON: Yes, Count VII.

At this point, Your Honor, I haven't heard

anything yet about violence or injury or threats, even

117

V2.131




V2. 132

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

from Jegsica, so I don't know if we're going to be able
to mandate Count VII. And I'm not going to be asking
Your Heonor toc bind ocver on Count VII, even if Lura
testifies it was forced and threatened. And I'm sure she
will testify the sexual assault on her was forced.

This sexual coercion charge was based on all the
witnesseg, and we have put three 6f the four on, so I am
satisfied, Your Honor, that we will not be going forward
on Count VII. But before I let Your Honor dispose of
that or make any kind of motion, I should wait and listen
to her testimony, because I can already see there's a
disparity between Michelle and Lura from what I see in
the police reports.

But that count was supposed to be for all of the
witnesses together mutually. And so far it's not looking
like there were threats involved, not to say there wasn't
sexual assaults, lewdness or other charges that are
charged here.

So¢ I would ask that vyou allow us to go to a
separate date, maybe more than tomorrow, like after the
July 4th date to find out what it's going to take to get
her here.

I think Yeringten is about a 90-mile drive, an

hour, hour-and-a-half.
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1 THE CCURT: About an hour-and-a-half, I think.

2 MR. CLIFTON: We could certainly provide a ride
3 and get her here, but doing it tomcrrow might be a little
4 tight. 50 my mction, I guess, for continuance based upon
5 Hill/Bustos is that she is a necessary witnesgs; it's not
6 for purposes of delay, of course; and we've done

7 everything we could, including subpcena her tc get her

8 here today, and now it looks like we have to physically

9 transport her, so that will take a little more doing.

10 MR. O'MARA: Your Honor, we object to allowing a
11 continuance at this time. This was set out 45 days in
12 order to get discovery on this case. Whether or not they

13 subpoenaed her multiple times, she wasa required to be

14 here today, she has chcosen not to be here today. This
15 hearing started at 1:30. It's almest four hours later.
16 She should have been in her car way before the 1:30

17 hearing before this time.

18 It isn't a good faith response by the DA to say
19 we can do this next week. This is the time set for the
20 preliminary hearing. Thig is the.time that they're

21 supposed to put on their evidence for precbkable cause.

22 They have not done so, and they should not be entitled to
23 a continuance.

24 THE COURT: Mr. Clifton, additional comments you
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1 want to make?

2 MR. CLIFTON: No, Your Honor.

3 THE CQURT: Well, looking at the file, it has

4 been gquite a period of time. May‘2nd wag the first time.
5 Stipulate to continue. Conflict group hadn't received

6 the case yet. Then there was another May 16 hearing.

7 Stipulate to continue 30 days at least.

8 Now we're here today. So I don't know.

9 I'm going to deny the motion to continue.

190 MR. CLIFTON: All right. Your Honor, we have no
11 further witnesses. As)far as argument, we'd ask Your

12 Honor to bind over based upon the amended changes to

13 Count I, II, and III, and Count VI. With everything I
14 said with regard to Count VII, I'll leave it up to Your
15 Honor as to whether you heard any evidence to bind over
16 on that.

17 Michelle, Your Honor, it would be possible to
18 bind over on Count IV, since it's charged as tand/or"
19 with Michelle. That's the other thing I'll leave up to
20 Your Honor. Of course, we did not hear any testimony

21 with regard to Count V.

22 Thank you.
23 THE COURT: All right. Mr. O'Mara.
24 MR. C'MARA: Thank you, Your Honor.
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1 In regards to Count IV with Michelle, it is

2 apparent that there is no -- they have failed to prove

3 any of the elements in this case. Michelle has testified
4 today that she was not forced. She was over the age of

5 14 when any type of actions occurred. She was never

& touched inappropriately by Mr. Dunckley.

7 Her testimony also shows it was after she was

8 pregnant, which is clearly not within the date of which

9 the complaint of 1999 is. She has testified she did not
10 meet Mr. Dunckley until at least 2000, July or August of
11 2000. Thus they have not satisfied in showing that there
12 is a reasonable probable cause to bind over on Count IV.
13 In regards to Count I, II, and III, in regards
14 Lo Ashley. Again, Ashley could not give any date, she

15 could not give any time in which she met Mr. Dunckley.

16 She could not give anvy information in regards to how she

17 met Mr. Dunckley. She could not give any information as
18 Lo any of the elements in this crime in regards to a
19 sexual assault on a child in Count I. She is unsure of

20 when she met Mr. Dunckley, but would concede that it is
21 possible that she met Michelle on the same date, which

22 would then put it back to 2000, as well.

23 She is now older than her, which would have made
24 her probably older than 14. There's no evidence to show
121
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what her age was. Thus they have not shown that this was
upon a child in this manner.

Lewdness with a child under the age of 14 in
Count II, same problems in regards to any type of date
that is given on when this alleged incident occurs.
Therefore Count IT should also be dismissed.

Count III, statutory sexual seduction, we have
no information in regards to when this occurred as well.
Thus we cannot determine when the age that she was during
this period of time.

In regards to Count VI, the sexual asgsault in

regards to Jessica. Jesgica testified today that she
could not give a description of the individual. She
could only do it today or when given pictures. And thus

they have failed tec show that the defendant on my left is
the actual person to alleged to have done these
incidents.

And as to Count VII, as the DA has already
stated, there was no threats, there was no coercion,
there was no violence or injury in regards to these
cases, and he has already submitted that he probably
doesn't have a case in that respect. And Count VII
shculd alsc be dismissed.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you., I find that
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there's probable cause to believe that the defendant
committed the crime of sgsexual assault on a child as
alleged in Count I; lewdness with a child as alleged in
Count TII; statutory sexual seduction as alleged in Count
ITTI; and sexual assaﬁlt as alleged in Count VI were
committed and the defendant committed them.

I did not find and I dismiss Counts IV, V, and
VIT. |

Thank you very much.

MR. O'MARA: Thank you wvery much, Your Honor.

MR. CLIFTON: Thank you.

MR. O'MARA: Have a great evening.

THE CCOURT: You too. Thank vou.

(Proceedings Concluded)

--o0o0--
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STATE OF NEVADA )
)ss.
COUNTY QF WASHOE )

I, EVELYN J. STUBBS, a Certified Court
Reporter, do hereby certify that I reported the
proceedings in the within entitled cause, and that I was
present on Monday, July 2, 2007, at the hour of 2:47 P.M,
of said day, and reported the proceedings had and
testimony given therein in the Preliminary Hearing of the
case of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, wvs. BRENDAN
DUNCKLEY, Defendant, Casgse No. RCR2007-033884.

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of
pages numbered 1 te 123, inclusive, is a ful;, true and
correct transcript of my said stenotype notes, so taken
in the said Preliminary Hearing, and is a full, true and
correct record of the proceedings had at said time and
place to the best of my knowledge{ skill and ability.

DATED: At Renc, Nevada, this 18th day of

July, 2007.

ol po STl

EVELYN /J. (6TUBBS, CCR #356
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DA # 373085
RPD RP07-009446, RPD RPO5- 034027
IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF RENQ TOWNSHIP

IN AND FOR THE/COBBHTY6OF WREHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

o * ok K
THE STATE OF NEV o4 .
OF NEVADA,  Jif: Grimed
Plaintiff, RCR 2007-033884
v. DEPT:HESﬁH
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, A :Sexxj ~
AMEND
Defendant . CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
/-

KELLI ANNE VILORIA of the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
verifies and declares upon information and belief and under penalty
of perjury, that BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, the defendant above-named, has
committed the crimes of:

COUNT I. SEXUAL ASSAULT ON A.CHILD, a violation of NRS

200.366, a felony, (F1000) in the manner following, to wit:

it ok
ébv?“¢f

That the said defendant on or between the 1lst day of
dantary, 1998, and the ﬁ&st day of -bedember, }998, at Reno Township,

..:W Lout

within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully and
unlawfully subject ASHLEY V., a female child under the age of
fourteen years, having a date of birth of ﬁ;;g;ui;’ 1286, to sexual
penetration, against the victim's will or under conditions in which
the defendant knew or should have known that the victim was mentally
or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of
the defendant's conduct, to wit, sexual intercourse, in a parking lot
at or near Longley Laﬁe, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada;

Or in the alternative,
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COUNT II. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF FQURTEEN

YEARS, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, (F650) in the manner

following, to wit:

ot
b
. That the said defendant on or between the 1€ day of
&SK;; (3eC Ao
, 1998, and the .33st day of , 998, at Reno Township,

within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully,
unlawfully, and lewdly commit a lewd or lascivious act upon or with
the body of ASHLEY V., having a date of birth of Memek 14, 1586, a
femaie child under the age of fourteen years at the time that the
said act was committed, in that the said defendant engaged the victim
in sexual intercourse at or near Longley Lane, Reno, Washoe County,
Nevada, and/or put his hand down her pants to fondle her genital area
in an elevator at the Atlantis Hotel and Casino, 3800 South Virginia
Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of
himself or the child;

or in the alternative,

COUNT III. STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION, a violation of NRS

200.364 and NRS 200.368, a felony, (F1010) in the manner following,

to wit: ;(,5?.
| That the said diiendant on or beEEeen Fhe st day of
§;§§§§;, 1998, and the éist day of Deeember,-i;;%, at Reno Township,
within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully and
unlawfully, being over 21 years of age, commit an act of statutory
sexual seduction with the person of ASHLEY V., having a date of birth

4
of Marth 14, 1986,, who was then and there under the age of 16 years,
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in that the said defendant engaged in an act of sexual intercourse
with the said ASHLEY V. "¢ in a parking lot at or near Longley Lane,
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.

COUNT IV. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN

YEARS, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, (F650) in the manner

following, to wit:

That the said defendant on or between the 1lst day of
January, 1999, and the 31st day of December, 1999, at Reno Township,
withih the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully,
unlawfully, and lewdly comﬁit lewd or lascivious acts upon or with
the bodies of LURA S. and/or MICHELLE A., female children under the

age of fourteen years at the time that the said acts were committed,

in that the said defendant did touch LURA S. with his hands and tried

to place them into her pants and/or said defendant did simulate
sexual intercourse on the body of MICHELLE A. with the intent of
arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, of sexual
desires of himself or the children.

COUNT V. SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a

felony, (F1000) in the manner following, to wit:

That the said defendant on or about the 20th day of August,
2005, at Reno Township, within the Couhty of Washoe, State of Neﬁada,
did willfully, and unlawfully subject LURA S. to sexual penetration
against the victim’s will or under the conditions in which the

defendant knew or should have known that the victim was mentally or

physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of the

defendant’s conduct, in that the defendant caused the victim to
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submit to sexual intercourse at 4050 Gardella Avenue, Washoe County,

Nevada.
COUNT VI. SEXUAL ASSAULT, a viclation of NRS 200.366, a
felony, (F1000) in the manner following, to wit:

That the said defendant on or about the 10th day of March,
2007, at Reno Township, within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
did willfully and unlawfully subject JESSICA H. to sexual
penetration, against the victim's will and/or uhder conditions in
which the defendant knew or should have known that the victim was
mentally'or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the
nature of 323 defendant's conduct, to wit, fellatio at 1675 Sky |

L
Mountain Drive, #283, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.

COUNT VII. SEXUALLY MOTIVATED COERCION, a vieclation of NRS

207.190 and NRS 207.193, a felony, (F250) in the manner following, to

wit:

That the said defendant on or between the 1lst day of
January, 1998, and the 10th day of March, 2007, at Reno Township,
within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully and
unlawfully, with the intent to compel another to do or abstain from
doing an act which the other person has a right to do or abstain from
doing, use violence or inflict injury upon the person, or any member
of his/her family, or upon his/her property, or threaten such
violence or injury, to wit: saidrdefendant did compel, induce or
require ASHLEY V. and/or LURA $. and/or MICHELLE A. and/or JESSICA H.
to engage in defendant’s serial sexually inappropriate and/or ongoing'

course of conduct wherein defendant forced ahd/or took advantage of
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said victims when they were not able to abstain and/or stop him from
engaging in sexually inappropriate acts with them and that said
defendant did said conduct through the use of force and/or violence,

said conduct all occurring in Washoe Co

DATED this _/ Q day of

ty, Nevada.

, 2007

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Ly
PCN RPD0Q726517C
PCN RPD(0726524C District Court Dept: 4
Custody: District Attorney: VILCRIA
Bailed: X Defense Attorney:
Warrant: Bail
Restitution:

04046446
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Page 1 of 2 | DECLARATION SUPPLEMENT ~ 07-34027

CASE# 07-34027

On August 20, 2005, Lura a then 18 year old adult female reported that sheand a
friend were walking through the apartment complex at 4050 Gardella Ave. in Reno,
at approximately 2100 hours, when they were approached by defendant Dunckley.
Lura was acqualnted with the defendant and his wife, however had not seen them for
several years. Defendant Dunckley was working at the Gardella apartment complex
in parking enforcement and asked Lura if she wanted to go to the other side of the
complex to put a boot on a car. The victim said that she had to be back in ten
‘minutes. Lura reported that the defendant drove her to a dirt field next to the
apartments and began talking to her about where she works now. Lura said the
defendant just grabbed her by the throat with his right hand and the hair with his left
hand. She fought the defendant away, at which time the defendant exited the driver’s
side of his vehicle walked to the passenger side and opened the door. Lura reported
that the defendant pulled her from the vehicle and pushed her face down on the hood
of the vehicle, pulled her pants and underwear down and forced penlle/vaglnal
intercourse from béhind the victim, to ejaculation. The victim was then driven back
to her friend’s apartment and dropped off by the defendant.. The victim entered her
- friends apartment crymg and after a short time disclosed what had happened to her

' Durmg the 1nvest1gat10n the Defendant insisted the sexual encounter was consensual
and initiated by the victim. The case was closed in 2005 due to some problems in
confirming portions of the victim’s version of events; the victim who became '
extremely depressed was somewhat uncooperative at the time.

In March of 2007 Detective Broome, who investigated the 2005 Sexual Assault
involving Lura became aware of another sexual assault allegation involving defendant -
Dunckley and another female victim. Initially the defendant denied any : sexual
contact. In subsequent interviews the defendant admitted to sexual activity, however
insisted it was consensual. There were other similarities in the two cases which
yielded additional investigative leads in the 2005 Sexual Assault. ‘Detective Broome
was able to talk to two other females who reported that they were also
inappropriately sexually touched by the defendant prior to 2005. One of the females
was 12 years old at the time and described how she was overpowered by the
defendant in an elevator at the Atlantis Casino and sexually fondled by the defendant.

1mmary

A5p9

- WHEREFORE, Declarant requests that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable causg
hearing (if charge is a felony or gross misdemeanor) or for a trial (if charge is a misdemeanoy]

REVIEWED FOR PROBABLE CAUSE (PC) DECLARANT

PCFOUND [ - PCNOTFOUND (3

DATE - MAGISTRATE , ,
DEFENDANT ORDERED RELEASED, DATE: | © MAGISTRATE
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of Lura’s disclosures. ‘Lura reported that when she was staying at the defendant and .
his wife’s house with a girlfriend, when she was 13 or 14 years old, she woke to find

the defendant fondling her vaginal area. It was this incident that broke off. relatlons '
with the defendant and his family. Michelle a now 20 year old female supports thls
disclosure as she was in bed with Lura when this occurred. Lura who was re-
contacted in March of 2007 is now cooperative and maintains that she was sexually
assaulted by the defendant in 2005 and there was nothmg consensual about the
encounter

ergof for preliminary

Rt

WHEREFORE, Declarant requests that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable gause-€=
hearing (if charge is a felony or gross misdemeanor) or for a trial (if charge is a misdesTEs

REVIEWED FOR PROBABLE CAUSE (PC) _ DECLARANT

PCFOUND 7 PCNOTFOUND [

DATE ' MAGISTRATE

DEFENDANT ORDERED RELEASED, DATE: ‘ MAGISTRATE
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DA # 373085
RPD RP0O7-009446

IN THE JUSTIiCE COURT OF RENO TOWNSHIP

TN AND FO? Tﬂﬁ S?Ug?%SgF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

* % %

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
/WGW

Plaihtiff, RCR 2007-U33884
v. - DEPT:Lx-
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
| Defendant . CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
/

STEVEN M. BARKER of the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,

verifies and declares upon information and belief and under penalty
of perjury, that BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, the defendant above-named, has

committed the crime of:

SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a felony,
(F1000) in tﬁe manner following, to wit:

That the said defendant on or about the 10th day of March,
2007, at Reno Township, within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
did willfully and unlawfully subject JESSICA H. to sexual
peﬁetration, against the wvictim's will and/or under éonditions in
which the defendant knew or should have known that the viétim was
/1
/1
/1
/1
/1
/1
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mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the
nature of the defendant's conduct, to wit, fellatio at 1675 Sky

Mountain Drive, #287, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.
Y
p

DATED this \/ ) day of CWM , 2007
/ T

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 235B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain.the social security number of any person.

PCN RPD0726524C District Court Dept: 4

Custody: District Attorney: BARKER

Bailed: X ' Defense éﬁto

Warrant: Bail 3# ff %gn;[X) }96%1071
Restitution:

04046446
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. The undersigned, ToT B weimne= a police officer, of Rt }%ULL

_ , hereby
declares under penalty of perjury, Ihatlheahove-nameddeiendamhasbeenanmledonpmbablemuseandssubpamdetenhonlormeabove-llsteduﬁense(s) Either
persnnal!yoruponlnfonnanonandbeﬁefmusofﬁcerIeamedﬂ-efdwmngfactsandumnstamesmmsq:ponmeamarﬂdelemm

SEE SvpriEreEan T~

RELS TO - | ' | Qﬂm 3%

DISSEMINATION IS RESTRICTED TO CRIMINAL JUSTICE AGENCIES ONLY. SECONDAHY DI TION TO NON-CR| L inENCIES 1S PROHIBITED.

WHEREFORE, Declarant requests that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable cause

for prellmmary hearing (if charge is a
felony or gross misdemeanor) or for trial (f charge is a misdemeanor). :

Page / of DECLARANT el S P DA A S09
REVIEWED FOR PROBABLE CAUSE (PC) - _ ) e | / - -
PC FOUND NOTFOUND [ DATE ,] 2P nwe j— /3 //?,{,. i/// : . MAGISTRATE

DEFENDANT ®RDERED RELEASED, DATE ____ ' \/2., BBTRATE
5-308 (REVISED ¥06) ' 3



V2150 @ @
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casps  07-9446

On March 10, 2007 at approximately 1900 hours R.P.D. officers responded to the
apartment complex at 1645 Sky Mountain Drive in Reno regarding multiple calls
reporting a woman screaming. Upon arrival officers met with Jessica, a 23 year old
adult female who was very intoxicated. Jessica reported that she left her apartment
at 1645 Sky Mountain # 287 as she and her boyfriend were arguing and went for a
walk. A male in a van approached and asked her to get in she refused and returned
to her apartment. After entering her apartment she turned around to find a male
standing behind her, who ordered her to perform fellatio on him. The victim |
complied, but bit the male on the penis. The male turned and ran out51de the
apartment with Jessica in pursuit yelling. '

" The male, now identified as defendant Dunckley was detained by neighbors and
interviewed by the responding officers. Dunckley reported that he saw the victim -
staggering in the neighborhood and helped her to her apartment where she passed
out. Dunckley rubbed the victim’s sternum to wake her. When the victim did wake
up she began screaming at him and trying to hit him. Dunckley said that he had his

- wife on the phone during this altercation and she could confirm his story. The

| officers spoke to Dunckely’s wife who said that she was talking to her husband about
the drunk female and did hear a commotion. Dunckley denied any sexual contact.
Dunckley was cooperative and allowed the officers to obtain penile swabs.' Dunckley
was subsequently released. - |

On March 21, 2007 Dunckley was interviewed at his home where he changed the

events of March 10, 2007 and reported that when he woke the victim after passing out -
she immediately came on to him, removing his penis from his pants and began
performing fellatio. Dunckley stated that he was talking to his wife on the phone -
before this and after this but not during the sex act. Dunckley was requested to meet N
Detective Broome in the Sex Crimes Office for a formal interview on March 22 2007
at 1000 hours.

During that interview Dunckley admitted that he did offer the victim a ride home

prior to the Sexual Assault and that after the victim passed out and after he woke her
she preformed fellatio on him as thanks for helping her into the apartment. Dunckley
admitted that he lied to the police and to his wife and called his wife before and after

WHEREFORE, Declarant requests that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable-calise exis said pe or preliminary
hearing {if charge 15 a felony or gross misdemeanor) or for a trial (if charge is a misd o ‘
REVIEWED FOR PROBABLE CAUSE (PC) - DECLARANT ST IDE ) S50

PCFOUND []- PCNOTFOUND [
DATE . MAGISTRATE _
DEFENDANT ORDERED RELEASED, DATE: _ MAGISTRATE
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the victim was so intoxicated she did not know what she was doing.

son for breiiminary

o /S0

WHEREFORE, Declarant requests that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable
hearing (if charge is a felony or gross misdemeanor) or for a trial (if charge is a misdeme

ife drin the fellatio. Dunckley also said that

REVIEWED FOR PROBABLE CAUSE (PC) DECLARANT

PCFOUND [0 PCNOTFOUND [

DATE : MAGISTRATE _ |
DEFENDANT ORDERED RELEASED, DATE: MAGISTRATE
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IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF RENO TOWNSHIP |
i COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA
2 || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
3 Plaintiff, APPLICATION FOR - _
' APPOINTMENT OF : ‘
4 il Against _ ‘ PUBLIC DEFENDER
6 Defendant. RCR C} 7 . 5 "32 ull 4
7 || I apply for appointment of the Washoe County Public Defender and state under penalty of
perjury: (1) I am indigent; and (2) I am without financial means to hire an attorney because: (a)’ ‘
8 || Ihave no personal funds and no family or friends who can hire an attorney for me and/or (b) T - |
9 have no assets of any kind in this State or elsewhere which can be used to hire an attorney. |
10 | _Mzm ﬁmz‘/’lﬁfw'
DEFENDANT /
11
12 || wiTNEssED: __ 4 /20 200 7. AN
/ COURT SERVICES OFFICER
13
14 ORDER , :
15 || The Court has reviewed Defendant's answers to Financial Inquiry To Determine Eligibility For
Washoe County Public Defender and Application For Appointment Of Public Defender given
16 || and executed under penalty of perjury.
17 Application denied. The Court finds the Defendant is not indigent.
18 || Comment:
19 || The Court finds that the Defendant is without means to emploj an attorney or otherwise determines
that representation by the Washoe County Public Defender is required. Reimbursement may be
20 ordefed by the Justice Court or the District Court at a later time.
21 /;\ 'The Washoe County Public Defender is appointed to represent Defendant.
22 ; 7THE COURT BELIEVES SOME REIMBURSEMENT SHOULD BE REQUIRED
AT A LATER TIME.
23
Thc Washoe County Public Defender is appomted to represent Defendant on’ the
24 following condition(s): :
25
26 || DATED: // /? 5’// 20 27
27 /
28 )| Defendant notified and agrees to condition(s). \/2. 152
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V2. 153 Wash& County Pretrial S_ervics
T Assessment Report -
Case Filing

Filed Name

DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN

Arrest

Booked Name

Arresting Agency

Bocking Number

Arrest Date

DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN RENQ POLICE DEPT 07-06701 03/30/2007
Case Number NOC Type Deseription Counts Court Bail Amt/Type
05-34027 00114 F SEXUAL ASSAULT- NO SUBSTANTIATL BODI 1 RJC 15,000 B
Defendant Information
Sex Race Birthdate Age Height Weight SS Number
M WHITE 07/04/1976 30 5' 05" 150 On File
Address Residence Born
4458 HIGHPLAINS DR . County: 07 Yr 06 Mo CARMEL, NY,
RENO, NV 89523 ‘
Telephone Time at Current Address Primary Language
{775) 787-1961 01 Yr 00 Mo ENGLISH
Lives With Relationship ID Number Type Expiration Date
MORGAN DUNCKLEY WIFE ‘
Marital Status How Long Military Service Discharge
MARRIED NONE
Employment/Support Status How Lang
Employed 00/07
Employer Employer Teiephone
ESSENTIAL PARKING (775) 379-7657
Defendant Justice Identifier Codes/Criminal History
FB1 Number SID Number
Arrests Violent Fels Felonies Viclent Misd  Misdemeanars MMSD Traffic oui Pending
Comments
DEF HAS BEEN IN THE AREA FOR 7.6 YRS AND AT CURRENT ADDRESS FOR 1 YR
DEF HAS BEEN AT CURRENT EMPLOYMENT FOR 7 MONTHS
DEF DENIES SUBSTANCE ABUSE
DEF HAS CRIM HISTORY
NOTHING WAS VERIFIED
O.R. DENIED
Assessment Status
Assessment Initials
FELONY NR WWOLFF

Incident No. H00006505

\Wial 1=
Vo, Loo
Page 1
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Case Number: RCR07-033884 . DATE: Aprl 26, 2007
PD Number: 98628 :

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
CASE CONFLICT NOTIFICATION

Case Name: State of Nevada v. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

Public Defender Client: MICHELLE ANTHONY & ASHLEY VANDERBY

Conflict Attoney: Conilict Client: BRENDAN DUNCKLEY

Dowd 0Mgrg_

Felony

Charges: SEXUAL ASSAULT; LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER 14; STATUTORY
SEXUAL SEDUCTION:; COERCION

Reno Justice Court: D/4

ostiy @ 2 %O
PRELIMINARY HEARING, set for the 2 2MaAY-2007 ar Z-30BM

Renson for Conflict:  Victims

Approved: me \L,CFMA S -7

Received: Date:

cc: Conflict Attorney
File
hmhb
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B, JUL 2§ 2007
=5 RONALD A ACAGTIN, JR., CLERK
£ 4 B&%ﬁkﬂ_—
g52 PUTY
8oo8 |
,@?ggﬁ 6 IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
Swhalf ; IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE ‘
8 e dedle dee sl
o || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10 Plaintiff,
11 VS. Case No. CR0O7-1728
12 || BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, Dept. No. 4
13 Defendant.
/
14
PRETRIAL ORDER
15 :
Good cause appearing and in the interests of justice, the Court hereby notices

16
all counsel of the following supplemental requirements of trial in Department IV, to

17
those found in Nevada Revised Statutes.
18
|.. PRETRIAL MOTIONS
19
A. Counsel will file a stipulation with regard to Discovery and submit it to the

20 Court for Order. If a stipulation cannot be reached between counsel, a motion for

s discovery shall be filed within fifteen (15) days of the date of this Order. Opposing
# counsel shall have ten (10) days to respond. The moving party must formally submit
» the matter to the Court for the Court to consider the motion. If counsel wish an oral

24
hearing on the matter they shall set such hearing after the time for filing an opposition
25

26
1

V2. 155



V2. 156 ¢ N )
! lhas ended or an opposition has actually been filed.
2 B. All motions by any party must be in writing. Any motion which should be
3 addressed prior to trial, including but not limited to motions to dismiss, motions to |
4 suppress evidence, motions in limine, motions to sever, motions for continuance,
5 motions regarding jury selection, and motions regarding prior bad acts or other acts
6 evidence shall be filed, personally served upon opposing counsel no later than
7 September 17, 2007, answers shall be filed and personally served dn opposing
8 counsel no later than September 28, 2007, reply shall be filed and personally served -
’ on opposing counsel no later than October 5, 2007. '_I'he parties are to formally
10 submit all motions they want decided on the record énd a hearing is set for those
! motions counsel specifically request be heard in Open Court for October 19, 2007, at
= -9:00 a.m. .
. C. Except upon a showing of good cause and unforeseen circumstances, the
14 Court will not entertain any pretrial motions, including motions in limine filed or orally
15 presented after this deadline. W-
° Il. TRIAL STATEMENT
a A. A trial statement on behalf of each party shall be delivered to Department
o Four of the Second Judicial District Court no tater than 5:00 p.m. on Thursday of the
P week prior to trial, where it shall be held confidential until such time as the Trial
0 commences. Upocn commencement of the Trial, the Trial Statement shall be filed and
2 served on opposing counsel.
= B. The trial statement will address
> 1. Any practical matters which should be addressed prior to trial (e.g.,
z: suggestions or special requesté. as to the order of witnesses or evidence, view of the
26
2
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premises, availability of audio or visual equipment).

2. All proposed general voir dire questions for the Court or counsel to

ask of the jury shall be included. Failure to include could result in the Court greatly

4 restricting counsel’s verbal participation in the voir dire of the jury panei.
5 R
6
_ lll. JURY INSTRUCTIONS
7 || All proposed jury instructions are required to be prepared and served pursuant to this
8 || Order.
o A. The parties are required to each submit their instructions to the Court in

chambers no later than 5:00 p.m. on Friday of the week prior to trial. The parties

10} shail serve their proposed instructions on the other party at the close of the
11 || Prosecutor’s case.
12 B. All instructions should be short, concise, understandable, and neutral

statements of law and gender. Argumentative or formula instructions are improper,
13 will not be given, and should not be submitted.

C. The parties are required to submit the jury instructions in the below

4 )
1 described format.
15 .
_ 1. All proposed jury instructions shall be in clear, legible type on clean,
16 || white, heavy paper, 8 % by 11 inches in size, and not lighter than 16-lb. Weight with a
black border line and no less than 24 numbered lines.
17 :

2. The last instruction only shall bear the signature line with the words
1g || "District Judge” typed thereunder placed on the right half of the page, a few lines
below the last line of text.

3. The designation "Instruction No. " shall be at line 26, lower left hand
20" || corner of the last page of each instruction.

21 4. The original instructions shall not bear any markings identifying the
attorney submitting the same, and shall not contain any citations of authority.

22
5. The authorities for instructions must be attached to the original

23 1l instructions by a separate copy of the instruction including the citation.

24 6. The parties should also note on the separate copy of the instruction
any modifications made on the instructions from statutory authority, Nevada Pattern
+5 || Jury Instructions, Devitt and Blackmar, CALJIC or other form instructions, specifically
stating the modification made to the original form instructions and the authority

26
3
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1 | supporting the modification.

2 D. Failure to comply with any of the above directions may subject the
noncomplying party and/or its attorneys, to sanctions.

E. Instructions will be settled at the close of the evidence. Jury instructions
4 || offered during the trial will be considered by the Court only in the event that the Court
deems the instruction appropriate in view of unanticipated matters occurring during

5 trial.
o IV. MISCELLANEOUS
7 A. This case has been set for a jury trial of five (5) days, to commence

8 | on March 24, 2008, at 10:00 a.m. A Motion to Confirm Hearing has been set for

March 13, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. The Court expects that all counsel will cooperate to

10
conclude the case within the time set. Trial counsel are strongly encouraged to meet
11 _

12 and confer regarding the order of witnesses, stipulated exhibits and any other matters

13 || which will expedite trial of the case.

14 B. The Court will allow notes to be taken by jurors during the trial unless a

15 party objecting to this procedure includes such objection in their trial statement.

16 ‘
C. All exhibits will be marked in one numbered series (Exhibit 1, 2, 3, etc.),
17y
no matter which side is offering the particular exhibit. Once trial exhibits are marked
18 ' :
19 by the Clerk, they shall remain in the custody of the Clerk. When marking the exhibits

20 || with the Clerk, counsel must advise the Clerk of all exhibits which may be admitted

21 || without objection. In any case which involves fifteen or more document exhibit pages,

22 |l the exhibits shall be placed in a loose-leaf binder behind a tab noting the number of

2 each exhibit. The binder shall be clearly marked on the front and side with the case

24 . '
caption and number, but no identification as to the party producing the binder. Al

25

26
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" 1 || document exhibits shall be in one binder no matter which party is offering the

2 { exhibits.
3 At the time set for marking the trial exhibits, counsel for the Plaintiﬂ‘ shall
provide the Courtroom Clerk with the binder containing the number tabs. Counsel for
all parties shall provide all exhibits, no matter when marked, even if marked during

the course of trial, in a condition appropriate for inclusion in the evidence binder.

8 Dated this 19 day of July, 2007.

theimeR
Tt

10 | DISTRICT JUDGE

11

12
13
i4
15
16
17
18
19

20
2]
22

23

24

25

26
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: CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
2 | certify that | am an employee of the SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

COURT, JUDGE CONNIE J. STEINHEIMER, and that on this 2() day of July,
2007, | deposited for mailihg in the Washoe County mailing bins a true copy of the

Pre-Trial Order to:

Kelli Viloria, Esq.
7 || Deputy District Attorney
Via Inter-Office Mail

David O’'Mara, Esq.

9 || Attorney at Law

311 E. Liberty Street

10 || Reno, Nevada 89501
Via U.S. Postal Service

N MY RN A,

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26
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Code BAIL

DC-9900001296-417

E ¥S. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY ( & Pages
il n7/24/2007 @4:11 PM

ISR R

teron e Surcty 48 Civaaby Imusnee G, Inc.

fg55 IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
grZEg IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
7
s || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9 Plaintiff, ] Case No. CR07-1728
10 vs. Dept. No. 4
11 || BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
12
Defendant.
13 /
14 .
- ‘ BAILBOND POSTED
I WARNING: THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS A COLORAED BACKGROUND AND MICRO PRINT PROTECTION - —
Accredited 2Sumrekavene  POWER OF ATTORNEY POWER NO. A25-00325487 .

WINTER PARK, FL 32789-4320 POWER AMOUNT $ ). r 000,00 .
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY CO., INC., a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the
state of Fiorida and by the authority of the resolution adopted by the Board of Directars at a meeting duly called and held on April 14,7199, which said reselution
hias not been amended or rescinded, does constitute and appaint and by these presents does make, constitute and appoint the named agent its true. and’lawful .
Attarney-in-Fact for it and in its name, place and stead, to execute, seal and deliver for and on its behalf and as its act and. deed, as Surety, a-ball bond:only,
,Authority of such Attarney-in-Fact is imited to appearance bonds and cannat be construed ta guarantee defendant's future fawlful conduct, ‘adherencs to travef, .
iimitaticn, fines, restitution, payments ar penaities, or any cther conditicn impased by a court not specifically related to court appearance: .’ IR o

This Power of Attorney is for use with Bail Bonds only. Not valid if used in connection with Federal or Immiigration- Bonds. -This : power void i 5
altered or erased, void if used with other powers of this company of in combination with powers from any other surety company,: void itused-to "
turnish bail in excess of the stated face amount of this power, and can only be used once. im0
The obligation of the company shail not exceed the sum of JENTY-FIVE: THOUSAND DOLLARS:. . - .-}
and provided this Power-of-Attorney is filed with the bond and retained as a part of the court-records. The said Attorney-in-Fact Is;hefgpy £
authorized to insert in this Power-of-Attorney the name of the person on whose béhalf this bond: was given. TR e

IN'WITNESS WHEREOF, ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALB¥YCO.NC., has caused these presents taﬁ signed bﬁ‘\ts duly authorized bﬁidf_ér.l.pjropér"iior,fh;ef: :

purpase and its corporate seal fo be hereunto affixed this AR of At , Y7 e '
DAY MONTH YEAR . . oo SRR

Bond Amount §__ £ & S & . ' ' o

Dafendant ) & '

:Charges_s;ém_L ASS B, £ /13 ”, 5 5
Cout _ ey g FFc & Y-S0 >
Case No. £, 4

City ) State AL

If rewrite, ariginal No.

Deborah Jallad; President ~

7

VOID IF NOT ISSUED‘.B;(E 06‘/13 /2008
FOR STATE USE ONLY - ..\ .-

Executing Agent NOT VALID IF USED IN FEDERAL COURT * "+

CB-D11{A} (10/05)

B o) PSS | V2. 161

| coPY FOR COURT |
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- Action Annie’s, Tnc,

dba Action Bai] Bonds Bow~

5295 Sun Valley Blvd,, #1 ! zf

g sy | Sun Valley, NV 89433 7
,, | : e
s, | (775) 322-7907 o
“ﬁngpl::gﬁ:ﬂm 7 | .
st | (PLACE BAIL AGENT'S ADDRESS STAMP HERE)
J‘, . f\( o _ _COURT

Municipai, Justica, Jtdicial District

{City, Township, Cuuny’

. STATE OF NEVADA
State of Nevada '
Plaintiff .
BAIL BOND No. /# 2§~ (x> 3 25Y/£ 2
va. (POWER OF ATTORNEY WITH THIS NUMBER MUST BE ATTAGHED)
(BOND NOT VALID IF MORE THAN ONE (1) POWER OF ATTORNEY
) HAS BEEN ATTACHED)
Bagoogy Deankles
/  Defendant
An order having been made on the 22‘ dayof __ Y192 C/L\ . 2027
, by BT 2 o v ‘7/ '@J /'2;?/3.,:@_ -
‘ 74 _ L ~TRRunicIpa] Judge, Justice of the Peace, DTt Judgel
: -} ) £ 722ac_;) Coen /g 4 Co P8 é‘—’ | State of Nevada,

{of the Ciey of Towns In and for the County of}

that the defendant be held to answer {or for examination) upon a charge of g,,a X L A<S, e (/f'
Toccasl ﬂzl-(/_; =Y A7P /;V/ [(Z’ Yo 2 Ve*?‘cij

, upon whic@fé—laxe has been duly admitted

to bail in the sum d%@;.ﬁﬂ&l { 'ﬁ P %Lf_g Mﬂxggllars.

Now we, ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY CO., INC., a Florida corporation;, as Surety, duly authorized
to transact business as Surety in the State of Nevada, hereby undertake that the above named defendant will appear
and answer the charge above mentioned, in whatever court it may be prosecuted, and shall at all times rendmerself
amendable to the orders and the process of the Court, and if convicted, shall appear for judgement and renderdiimberself
in executio fereof, of if gBs8he fails to perform any of these conditions, that we will pay to the State of Nevada the

sumof $

ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY CO., INC

o i
Defendant notified to appear; 29/1 Qgé s

d E | By oo orney-in-Facl
Date(/";’p7@ q;d’ @ /Mt T
. approved by ma this o3 0d

- a :

Ty, Towhship

v
¢
S
r\
7(
Y
X
o
Bl
o
o

NOTE: This is an Appearance Bond and cannot be construed as a guarantee for failure to provide payments, back alimony payments,
FINES, or Wage Law claims, nor can it be as a Bond on Appeal




MW MB8ASHOE COUNTY

HERIFF

Dedicated Service in Partnership with our Community

cR67- ”éﬁ >

Michael Haley,
Sheriff

Washoe County Detention Facility g 16,50 6ib
RIT
'POSTED ON: 32202007 @  6:09:02PM
INMATE NAME: DUNCKLEY,BRENDAN WC INK 0001 BOOKING NUMBER:0706025
DOB: 741976 DRIVER'S LICENSE: 0001025012 OLS STATE: NV
+
BAIL RECEIPT#  B067643 ARRESTING AGENCY /CASE # RPD 070009446  DUNCKLEY.BRENDAN
NOC: 001‘14 CHARGE L[TERAliJ: SEXUAL ASSAULT Level: FELONY PCN: RPD0726524
COURT:  RIC - COURT CASE #:
ONE SOUTH SIERRA ST, RENO, NV 89520

COURT DATE/TIME: 452007 @ 09:30 1
WARRANT # _  WARRANT AGENCY:
BAIL AMOUNT: $ 15,000.00

FOSTED BY: ACTION BAIL BONDS

ADDRESS:
COURT BOND FEE: § 40~ INT:
MICHAEL HALEY, SHERIFF  CLERK: (@ W1910
BAIL RECEIPT#  B067644 ARRESTING AGENCY /CASE # RPD 070009446  DUNCKLEY.BRENDAN
NOC: 08988 CHARGE LITERAL: BURGLARY (SEXUALLYM  Level: FELONY PCN: RPD0726524
COURT: RIC ' COURT CASE #:
ONLE SOUTH SIERRA ST, REND, NV 89520
COURT DATE/TIME: 4572007 @ 09:30
WARRANT #: WARRANT AGENCY:
BAIL AMOUNT: $ 3,500.00

POSTED BY: ACTION BAIL BONDS

ADDRESS:
COURT BOND FEE:s ___ See ¥ | INT:
MICHAEL HALEY, SHERIFF  CLERK: (@ — WI191D

Report Printed on - 3/22/2007
Report Revised on 10/12/2005 by CTU

V2.163
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TOTAL BAIL POSTED: § 18,500.00

- Dispasition of the badl is up to the court in which this case is terminaterd

NOTICE: NRS 1785
: s receipt must be presented to the court for any refund

SIGNED:

Report Printed on~ 3/22/2007
Report Revised on 10/12/2005 by CTU

- V2.164
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V2. 165

-CRIOO7-033884 .

DEPARTMENT NO. 4

In the Justice Court of Reno Township, County of Washoe,

STATE OF NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA PLAINTIFF COMPLAINT OF

VS, Kelll Anne Viloria

BRENDAN DUNCKLEY DEFENDANT DA'S NO. 373085

RPD0O726524C

RPDO726517C ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF

DISTRICT ATTORNEY:
Kelll Anne Viloria

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDENT:

DAVID 0'MARA, E£5Q.
PUBLIC DEFENDER

AGENCY NO:

RPD RP07-005446
RPD RP0O5-034027

CHARGING:

SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a lelony.

DATE
2007

PROCEEDINGS

Mar. 22
Mar. Z3

Mar. 31
Apr. 3

Apr. 16

Apr. 20

May 2

May 7

Bail bond deposited in the amount of §18,500.00 {ACTION}

Probable Cause Affidevit reviewed by Judge.
Prokeble Cause not found.
Bail Bond deposited in the amcunt of $15,000.00. {ACTION){2ND BAIL BOND}

Complaint filed and Defendant bailed.

AMEHDED CRIMINAL CCMPLAINT FILED ADDING AGENCY #: RPD RPOO-
034027; AMENDING THE DA TO:; KELLT ANNE VILORIA:; AMENDING
COUNT I TO READ: SEMUAL ASSAULT ON A CHILD, & viclation of
NRS 200.366, a feleny; ADDING COUNT Il: LEWDNESS WITH A CHILO
UNDER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN YEARS, a violation of NRS 201.230,
g Felony; ADDING COUNT III: STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION, =
violation of NRS Z00.364 and NRS 200,368, a felony: ADDING
COUNT IV: LEWDNESS WITH & CHILD UNGER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN
YEARS, & vicolaticn of NRS 201.230, a felony: ADDING COUNT V&
SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a felony; RDDING
COUNT VI: SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 200.366, a
felony; ADDING COUNT VII: SEXUALLY MOTIVATED COERCION, a
viclation of NRS 207.180 and NRS 207.153, a felony:; AND
ADDING BCHN: RPDOT26517C.

Defendant sppeared before Pro Tem Judge Jenny Hubach was dul]
arraigned, advised of rights and informed of Complaint.
Preliminary Exsmination set for May 2, 2007 =t 2:30 P.M.
Bail continued in full force and effect.

Defendant reqguested aepoiptment of the Washoce Coun;% Public
Defender. Washoe County Fublic Defender appointed, however the Court

believes some reimbursement should be required at a later time.

Upon stipulation of counsel,- the Preliminary Eramination is
continued to May 16, 2007, at 2:30 P,M. Bail continued in
full forge and effect.

tonflict Attorney David 0'Mara appointed to represent Defendant BRENDAN
DUNCKLEY .

{OVER)
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May 1&

July 2

Upon atipulation of Counszel, the Preliminary Examination_is
continued teo July 2, 2007, at 1:30 P.M. Bail continued in

full force and effect.

- Dafendant appeared together with attorney David &'Mara, Es3q.

before the Honorable Hareold Albright and the State waa
repraganted hy Devid Clifton. Preliminary Examination
proceeded. Complaint AMENDED BY INTERLINEATION to conform to
evidence. Defendant WAIVED right teo testify and call
witnessesn,

N
The Court found probable cauae to believe the offenszesa set
forth in the Criminal Complsint Counts I, II, III &nd VI wara
committed and probable cauze Defendant participated ag
principal in such offanazz. Defendant waa bound over TO
answer in the Second Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada.

The Court found INSUFFICIENT prchbable cause to believe the
offenses set forth in the Criminel Complaint Couats IV, V and
VII were commirted and/or INSUFFICIENT probable cause
Defendant participated a=s principal in such offenaes,
Criminal Complaint Counta IV, V and VII were DISMISSED. Bail
continuad in full force and effect.

50 QRDEREL. . /’ﬁf
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JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
DEPARTMENT NO. 4

(

—
hereny ety that e coourmant 10 whic tad i urther certity that this is a copy o!a&?aga

yun ong ol Qriginal and that each page of this copy Is & ttun

vy e mfiad g &l o .
garinpin @ Lhate asumont fsund In the keaorda &nd correct copy of the corrasponding Qriginal

Ay ¢ S ariniie! qucul
ar tWas of the FHeno uatics Sourt.

decumant found in the

: recoras o files of e Rano
Jusice Court.

ierkwwco Coun

Deputy Clark of tha Cou

Jusica Court
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=83 %Code BAIL
=88 INTHE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
=jeris IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
7_
s || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9 Plaintiff, Case No. CR07-1728
10 Dept. No. 4

Vs,
11 || BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

12
Defendant.

13 /

14

1= BAILBOND POSTED

WARNING: THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS A COLORED BACKGROUND AND MICRO PRINT PROTEGTION
POWER NO. A25-00325488

Accred1ted é[EJOITSEO.';Jz](-]H PARK AVENUE POWER OF ATTORNEY
reaien Bty onT Casnady Insarance Cn, e WINTER PARK, FL 32789-4320 POWER AMOUNT $ 25 000 00

| KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY COQ., INC., a corporation duly organized:and existing under the laws of the *
state of Florida and by the authority of the resolution- adopted by the Board of Directors at a meetlng duly called and held on April 14,1999, which said resoldtion

has not been amended or rescinded, does constitule and appoint and by these presents does make, constitute and appoint the named agent ‘its true and: lawful ~

Attorney-in-Fact for it and in its name, place and stead, to execute, seal and deliver for and on s hehalf and as its act and deed; as surety, a bail bond only.”,

Authorily of such Attorney-in-Fact is limited to appearance bonds and cannot be construed to guarantee defendant's future lawful condisct; adherence to travel

]|m|tat|on fines, restitution, payments ar penaities, or any other condition imposed by a court not specifically related o court appearance o 5

This Power of Attorney is for use with Bail Bonds only. Not valld it used in connection with Federal or Immigration Bonds ThIS power vmd If
altered or erased, void if used with other powers of this company or in combination with powers from any other surety cnmpany, void if- used L
furnish bail in excess of the stated face amount of this power, and can enly be used once.

The obligation of the company shall not exceed the sum of TwWENTY -FIVE THOUSAN'D DOLLARS s i
and provided this Power-of-Attorney is filed with the bond and retained as a part-of the court records. The said: Atlorney-m-Faci is. hereby
authorized to insert in this Power-of-Attorney the name of the person on whose behalf this bond was given.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, ACCREDITED SURETY AND cASUA% }@ ’a_gt’ 5 caused these presents to be. ﬁned by, its duly authprized oficer, proper for fhe."
purpose and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed this sV , S e

DAY MONTH B " YEAR

Defendant ‘FW o) Dﬂf\.ﬂtg& ik
Cﬁarges SPxusl /9.(”_5“92‘;’ L‘ff . W
Court e fﬁd‘@ j(w .-»a?@
Case No. 25 = Bye© 7

City _@4 ae) //Stat; W

If rewrite, original No. J—

Deborah Jallad, Erésigeht"_ -

FOR STATE USE ONL

-

Executing Agent ‘ s _ NOT VALID IF USED'IN FEDERAL coun'r BIRERS

CB-011{A} {10/05) NAME. . i

YOID IF NOT ISSUED BY: 6 13,2008

R o7 &2/ v2.. 167

| COPY FOR GOURT |



V2. 168
B&)(07-*OOOL039’ CROT 1794 A“//zolo-z‘@q‘»ao

Annie’s, Ine.

1 Cllo 7. (728 (f ~ dba Action Bail Bonds

szs9jns$1}].v2111§y}31vd., # 1?’”“‘"‘“
alley, NV 89433 .
(775y322.7997 /alcw '

ACCREDITED SURETY AND , 74 ~ Q«’_{ o
CASUALTY CO., INC. . ( ,(2 -
POBO:ZOG‘?’ o T 07_ O :%’y
Winter Park, FL 32790
(407) B418500 FAX (407) B41-4219 : (PLACE BAIL AGENT'S ADDRESS STAMP HERE)

SUsPc e ____GOURT

LA

Munlopal, Justica, Judiclal Distric

STATE OF NEVADA

State of Nevada
Plaintiff ,
BAIL BOND No. A1 - 22 BASH s
Vs, (POWER OF ATTORNEY WITH THIS NUMBER MUST BE ATTACHED)
{BOND NOT VALID {F MORE THAN OHKE (1) POWER OF ATTORKNEY
: HAS BEEN ATTACHED)
B, s Do ah fi2r.
L //' Defendant

« An order having been made on the ,Z Z day of /47/?40& ) ) 20&1

e Tgrie GG e -
1 cipal Judge, Jus ce-¢f {he Peace, Distrt Juage) .
féé - éﬁ:’r) @% o 2 IS € _ State of Nevada,
/ f/ hl {of the City i

.rowp.lb of In and for the County of}

that the defendant be held to answer {or for examination) upon a charge of S W S5 Fer 4. f

, upon whicjeha/he has been duly admitted

- S - — -——_’——“——_——-\—_____,
to bail in the sum of MW dollars.

Now we, ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY CO.,, INC., a Florida corporation,, as Surety, duly authorized
to transact business as Surety in the State of Nevada, hereby undertake that the above named defendant will appear
and answer the charge above mentioned, in whatever court it may be prosecuted, and shall at all times renderdiip/Merself
amendabie to the orders and the process of the Court, and if convicted, shail appear for judgement and renderhimdtrself

in execution therecf, Qme fails to perform any of these conditions, that we will pay to the State of Nevada the
sum of $_~~ —

ACCREDITED SURETY AND CASUALTY CO., INC

e oL Lo

7 Ritarney-In-Fact

. approvad by me this J M

day of QPFJ \ 2007
\ B oG b rda _L—‘:'-“ ct -".:,A_ 1".'.} % 74 '-.‘ bk WE

Ty, Towrisiip

P22 gl “haqni> (]

NOTE: This is an Appearance Bond and cannot be construed as a guarantee for failure to provide payments, back alimorv ;zynﬂaﬁg
FINES, or Wage Law ctaims, nor can it be as a Bond on Appeal
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V GYASHOE COUNTY

HERIFF

Dedicated Service in Partnership with our Community

Michael Haley
Sherigt . -,

Washoe County Detention Facility { CJ
POSZED ON: 3/31/2007 (@ 1:16:16PM
INMATE NAME: DUNCKLEY,BRENDAN WC H04  AGI BOOKING NUMBER: 0706701
DOB:  7/4/1976 - i DRIVER'S LICENSE: 0001025012 OLS STATE: NV
.
BAIL RECEIPT # B067936 ARRESTING AGENCY /CASE #: RFPD 050034027 DUNCKLEY, BRENDAN
NOC: 00114 CHARGE LITERAL: SEXUAL ASSAULT Level: FELONY PCN: RPDO72651%
COURT: RIC COURT CASE #:
ONE SOUTH SIERRA ST, RENO, NV 89520
COURT DATE/TIME: 4/20/2007 @ 0930
WARRANT #: WARRANT AGENCY:
BAIL AMOUNT: ' § 15,000.00
POSTED BY: ACTION BAIL BONDS
ADDRESS: —
SRS T,
COURT BOND FEE: $ INT: ] ‘
MICHAEL HALEY, SHERIFF CLERK: J 3 w2602
TOTAL BAIL POSTED: $ 15,000.00
NOTICE: NRS 178 528: Disposition of the bail is up to the court in which this case is terminated
This receipt must be presented to the court for any refund
Report Printed on~ 3/31/2007
Report Revised on 10/12/2005 by CTU V2 169
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Code No. 4185
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{ 7 Pages
4185
JAMES

DC-9900001477-126

STATE VS. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY
District Court
Washoe County

[s]¢]8]

;IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

P8/16/2007 08:85 AM

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE HONORABLE CONNIE STEINHEIMER, DISTRICT JUDGE

-000-

CRO7-172R2

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No. CRO7-1728

VS, Dept. No. 4

BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

Defendant.

e ! M Nt M e S e S S

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
ARRAIGNMENT
July 17, 2007

RENO, NEVADA

Reported By: STEPHANI L. LODER, CCR No. 862

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534 V2. 170
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APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff: KELLI ANNE VILORIA
Deputy District Attorney
Reno, Nevada

For the Defendant: DAVID C. O'MARA
Law Office of William O'Mara
Reno, Nevada

Parole and Probation: LUPE GARRISON

Capti imi -746-
aptions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534 V2. 172
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RENO, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JULY 17, 2007, 9:11 A.M.

-000-

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.
Brendan Dunckley.
MS. VILORIA: Good morning, Your Honor. Kelli

Anne Viloria on behalf of the State.

MR. O0'MARA: Good morning, Your Honor. I'm David

0'Mara on behalf of Mr. Dunckley, who is present in court

today.
THE COURT: Good morning. This is the time set
for arraignment on Information filed July 12th, 2007.

Mr. Dunckley, I'm going to hand a copy of the

Information to your attorney. I'd ask that you review it

with him.
MR. O'MARA: Thank you very much, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.

MR. O'MARA: Thank you, Your Honor. Mr. Dunckley

has reviewed the Information, and his name is spelled
correctly on line 12, page one.
Mr. Dunckley will be pleading not guilty to all
four counts this morning.
| THE COURT: Okay. Waive the reading at this

time?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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MR. O'MARA: We waive the reading, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Does your client waive the right to

have a trial within 60 days?

MR, O'MARA: Yes, we do, Your Honor. He waived

the right to 60 days, and counsel have agreed on a date to

have this trial on March 24th.

MS. VILORIA: Of 2008, Your Honor.

MR. O0'MARA: Of 2008.

THE COURT: Mr. Dunckley, do you understand
what's going on here today?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions about
what's happening?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you comfortable with the
representation you've had so far from Mr. O'Mara?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: How do you plead to the Information?

THE DEFENDANT: Not guilty, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand you have a right to

have a trial within 60 days of today's date; if you waive

that right, you cannot later complain about continuances
that are required by the Court's calendar or any other

circumstances?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you waive that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll set this matter for
trial. How long of a trial?

MS. VILORIA: It will be five days, Your Honor.
I met with your clerk. We've agreed on a date of
March 24th of 2008.

THE CLERK: That is correct, at 10:00 a.m., with
a motion to confirm, March 13th at 9:80 a.m.

MS. VILORIA: And, Your Honor, we will be having
a motions hearing in this case. I don't know if the Court
wants to set those now or do it by your briefing schedule
as you normally do, but we will be both having motions
filed in this case.

THE COURT: We will set a briefing schedule.
Pretrial motions must be filed no later than
September 17th. Answers to any motions must be filed no
later than September 28th. Replies, if any, must be filed
no later than October 5th. We'll set the hearing date the
week of October 15th, or thereabouts.

THE CLERK: How long do you think you'll need for
the pretrial motion?

MS. VILORIA: On the State's part, the State may

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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need an hour to two hours at the most. I think an hour

would be sufficient for my part of it.

MR. O'MARA: We would only need an hour,

30 minutes, probably.
THE CLERK: October 19th at 9:00 a.m,

MS. VILORIA: Thank you.

THE COURT: Are you okay on that, Mr. 0'Mara?

MR. O'MARA: That would be great, Your Honor.

Thank you.
THE COURT: You're welcome.
MS. VILORIA: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: You're welcome.
MR. O'MARA: Did you say 9:00 a.m.?
THE CLERK: I did.

(Proceedings concluded.)

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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STATE OF NEVADA )

)
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, STEPHANI L. LODER, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do
hereby certify:

That I was present in Department No. 4 of the
above-entitled Court and took stenotype notes of the
proceedings entitled herein, and thereafter transcribed
the same into typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a full, true
and correct transcription of my stenotype notes of said
proceedings.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 13th day of

August, 2007.

< @Q\ hvane ﬁ ﬁ e 1

STEPHANI L. LODER, CCR No. 862

Captions Unlimi , -746-
aptions mited of Nevada, Inc 775-746-3534 V2. 178
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CODE: 1250

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

-

o

9 || STATE OF NEVADA,

10 Plaintiff,

11 VS, Case No. CR07-1728

12 || BRENDAN DUNKLEY, Dept. No. 4
Defendant.

13
/

14
APPLICATION FOR SETTING

CRIMINAL
MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL
September 26, 2007

DAVID CLIFTON

DAVID O'MARA

15
16 || TYPE OF ACTION:

17 ||MATTER TO BE HEARD:

18 || DATE OF APPLICATION:

19 ||COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF:

20 ||COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT(Sj:

21
22
23
24

25

26 || Setting at 9:00 p.m. on the 18" of March, 2007.

27 ||***This vacates the 9:00 a.m. Motion to Confirm hearing on 3/13/07***

28
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RONALD / LOMSTI,
By: Lo

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
VS. Case No. CR07-1728

BRENDAN DUNKLEY, | Dept.No.4 =~

Defendant.

/
- APPLICATION FOR SETTING

TYPE OF ACTION: CRIMINAL
MATTER TO BE HEARD: MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL
DATE OF APPLICATION: October 8, 2007
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF: KELLI VILORIA
COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT(S): DAVID O'MARA

Setting at 9:00 a.m. on the 4™ of March, 2007.
***This vacates the 9:00 p.m. Motion to Confirm Trial Hearing on 3/18/07***
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STATE ¥S. BRENDAN DUNCKLEY ( 3 Pages

CRB7-1728

10/19/2067 09:25 AM

District Court
Washoe County
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THE O’MARA LAW FIRM, P.C.
WILLIAM M. O°MARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 00837

BRIAN O. O°’MARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 08214

DAVID C. O°’MARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 08599

311 East Liberty Street

Reno, Nevada 89501
Telephone:  775-323-1321
775-323-4082 (fax)

FILED

OCT 19 2007

By:
DEPU 3]

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Attorneys for Defendant

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* * &
STATE OF NEVADA, )
) Case No. CR07-1728
Plaintiff(s), )
)} DeptNo. 4
VS. )
)
BRENDAN DUNKLEY, )
)
Defendant(s). )
)

STIPULATION AND ORDER VACATING HEARING
COMES NOW Plaintiff, by and through its counsel, KELLI VILORIA, ESQ., Deputy
District Attorney, and Defendant, BRENDAN DUNKLEY, by and through his counsel, DAVID C.
O’MARA, ESQ., of THE O°'MARA LAW FIRM, P.C., and herewith stipulate to vacate the hearing
currently scheduled for Friday, October 19, 2007.
DATED: October 16, 2007.

RICHARD A. GAMMICK THE O°’MARA LAW FIRM, P.C.

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY M -
BY%/[ /US)/LOL/ BY: e ﬂ COMM\

KELLI VILORIA, ESQ. DAVID@. O'MARAESQ.

. V2. 179
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ORDER
Based upon the Stipulation entered into by and between the parties, through their respective
counsel, and good cause appearing therefor,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the hearing currently scheduled for Friday, October 19,
2007, be, and the same hereby is, VACATED.

DATED: October 1§, 2007,

Cﬂﬂﬂib 4. gﬁn\’mmgg

DISTRICT JUDGE

V2. 180
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1

AFFIRMATION
{Pursuant to NRS 239B.030)

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document filed in Case

No. CRO7-1728

| DATED:

Document does not contain the social security number of any person
-OR-
Document contains the social sccurity number of a person as required by:

A specific state or federal law, lo wit:

-or-
_ lor the administration of a public program
-Or-
For an application for a federal or state grant

=-0r-

Confidential Family Court Information Sheet (NRS 125.130, NRS
125230 and NRS 125B.055)

October 16, 2007 THEQ'MARA LAW FIRM, P.C.
VAL . 777
BY: ﬁ sz f{ / A AAS

DAVID C. O'MARA, ESQ.
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Achard A. Gammick
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2.0. Box 30083
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CRO7-1728

Case No.

No. 4

V.
Dept.

1z BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
Defendant.

/

MOTION TO ALLOW LEAVE TO FILE A BELATED NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK

13
ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL PURPOSES

14

15
16

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through RICHARD A.
17
18
19
20
EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL PURPOSES.

21
and Authorities contained herein.

POINTS & AUTHORITIES

22
STATEMENT OF FACTS OF INSTANT CASE

23
I.
On MarchVIO, 2007, Defendant, BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

24

GAMMICK, District Attorney of Washoe County, and KELLI ANNE VILORIA,

Deputy District Attorney, and respectfully seeks leave to allow the

State to file its NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT
This motion is based upon the Points

{hereinafter

25

26

Defendant) observed a woman, Jessica H., staggering along the side of
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the road in the northwest area of Reno. Defendant claimed Jessica H.
was so drunk she was “smacked into a wail and smacked into a car.”

He offered to assist her into her apartment because he did not want
her to get hurt. While doing so, he claims to have been on his
cellular telephone with his wife to tell her that he was going to
'help the girl because he *didn’t need any accusations.” The girl
continued to stagger home, and Defendant followed her. According to
defendant, he stayed on the phone with his wife the whole time. Once
at the woman’s home, Defendant escorted her up the stairs because she
Could barely walk. They went ingside and Defendant hung up the phone
to be able to get the girl off the ground so that she would not choke
on her vomit.

The next thing Jeasica H. remembers is being on the ground- and
told by Defendant to “suck my dick.” Defendant then shoved his erect
penis into her mouth., Jessica H. bit Defendant’s penis, causing him
to recoil, and her to scream she’d been raped. Jessica H.'s
neighbors came running. Defendant, who had called his wife back,
was cornered at the scene and telling his wife that he’d been set up.

Defendant was extremely cooperative with police, denying,
initially any sexual contact with the victim and claiming to have
been on the cell phone with his wife throughout the whole time and

that nothing of that nature occurred. Defendant even willingly

“allowed his penis to be photographed (which was flaccid and showed no

gigns of injury) and provided law enforcement with a swab of his
penis for DNA analysis. However, following a further investigation,

and a subsequent interview at Defendant’s home, Defendant changed his

2 V2. 183
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story. When asked whether the victim’s saliva would be found on
Defendant’s penis, Defendant became uncomfortable, changed his story,

asked to leave the room and speak outside the presence of his wife,

said Jessica had “come on” to him. On March 22, 2007, at 10:00 a.m.,
Defendant came in for a formal interview, then admitted the act had
occurred, but it was consensual. Defendant, for the first time,
acknowledged he had hung up with his wife for approximately two
mihutes, at which time, the incident occurred.

In an unusual twist, that same day, on March 22, 2007, atﬁlozoo
p.m., Defendant had contact with a Reno Police Officer on an

unrelated incident. Unsolicited, Defendant told the officer about

Jegsica H.’s accusation and that he had put his finger in her mouth
to stop her from choking on her tongue and then urinated, which
involved touching his penis immediately after, which may have caused
her saliva to be deposited on his penis.

Forensic Analysts at the Washoe County Crime Laboratory found no
DNA foreign to Defendant on his penis. There was no sexual assault

exam performed.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS OF OTHER ACTS CASE
On August 20, 2005, Defendant ran into an old friend, Lura S.
Defendant and his wife had known Lura S. since she was a little girl.
By all accounts, those who knew her, considered her a “special needs”
or developmentally disabled girl who has epilepsy. That day,
Defendant obtained Lura S.’s phone number so that they could keep in

touch.
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The next day, Defendant called Lura S. and ran into her with
some of her friends. They were drinking alcohol and Lura S. was.very
intoxicated. She agreed to go with Defendant to his work. Defendant
boots vehicles for a living. While at a vehicle, at a lot in the
northwest area of Reno, Defendant grabbed Lura S. by the threat and
hair, scared her, and had Lura S. perform fellatio on him. Defendant
grabbed Lura S. from the car; pulled her out, pushed her face down on
the hood of the car, and then subjected her to sexual intercourse
from behind. Defendant then drove Lura S. back to her apartment,
which she entered crying and disclosed what had occurred.

During the investigation, conducted by Reno Police Detective Tom
Broome, Defendant admitted the conduct, but claimed it was
consensual. A short time later, Lura S. was admitted to a mental
hospital and became unable to continue any cocoperation with law
enfércement. The case was closed at that time.

In March of 2007, Reno Police Detective Tom Broome remembered
Defendant from the Lura S. case. Detective Broome contacted Lura S.
to see if she was in a better position to assist with the opening of
the case. At that time, Lura S. agreed. However, just prior to the
preliminary hearing, Lura S. had a change of mind, and became unable
to participate with the case again.

On Monday, February 04, 2008, at 11:41 a.m., the State learned
that Lura 8. is stable, and now willing and able to testify, if

needed, in this case.

" ITI. ARGUMENT
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THE STATE HAS SHOWN GOOD CAUSE AND UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES
TO ALLOW IT TO BELATEDLY FILE ITS NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK
ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL PURPOSES

The State has good cause and unforeseen circumstance to allow
the Court to grant leave to file this and it’s NOTICE OF INTENT TO
SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL PURPOSES. In
the Court’s PRETRIAL ORDER dated July 23, 2007, the Court set a
deadline of September 17, 2007 for the filing of all motions. As of
that date, the State had not been able to secure cooperatién with the
witness in the prior bad act case, Lura S. Lura S. was So upset and
concerned about not wanting to appear that she willfully did not
appéar, though‘subpoenaed to the preliminary héaring. This precluded
the State from prbceeding in that heafing on her case.

Lura S. is known to all to be fragile,.mentally unstable,
terrified of Defendant, has moved away from Reno due to her case, has
been treated for medical and mental illness and was not willing, or
comfortable, to testify in this case. As such, the State could not,
in good faith, file any motion relating to her because the State
could not guarantee, and in fact, it was unlikely that she would
appear. Not wanting to risk wasting this Court’s or the Defendant’s
time, the State refrained from filing any motions relating to Lura S.

However, on Monday, February 04, 2008, at 11:41 a.m., the
State’s prosecutor spoke with Lura S. and learned that Lura S.,
though tearful and still scared, is now willing to testifyﬁ The
State immediately filed this and the related other bad acts motion.

‘According to Lura S., though she does not wish to bring all of this

5 V2. 186




V2

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23 .
24
25

26

187 ® ®

up or to relive her experience with Defendant, she feels compelled to
now provide her assistance to ensure there are no other victims. She
now understands that doing nothing only guarantees nothing will be

done. Therefore, under these unique circumstances, the Court should

grant the State leave to file these motions.

IV. CONCLUSICN

The State has shown good cause to belatedly file its NOTICE
OF INTENT TO SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE FOR REBUTTAL
PURPOSES as the State has only just learned that the witness for the
other bad aéts is stable and can testify.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the.preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.
Dated this a%44\,/}day ofﬁkﬁciahAiﬁLti,/’ﬁ 2008.
| RICHARD A. GAMMITK

District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By-j%?{ yosna

KELLI ANNE VILORIA
5872
Deputy District Attorney

03140783
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of
the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,
I deposited for mailing at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, a true copy
of the foregoing document, addressed to:

David O'Mara

311 E. Liberty St.

Reno, NV 838501

DATED thisl%qﬂ”day of , 2008.

(E0 B eox.
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CODE Q\Qm

Richard A. Gammick
#0015190

P.O. Box 30083

Reno, NV 89520-3083
{775) 328-3200
Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF PHE STA OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF /WASH
* k%

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Cagse No. CR07-1728
v
Dept. No. 4
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

Defendant.

/

NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK ADMISSION OF OTHER ACTS EVIDENCE FOR
PURPOSES OF REBUTTAL

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through RICHARD A.‘
GAMMICK, District Attorney of Washoe County, and KELLI ANNE VILORIA,
Deputy District Attorney, and respectfully would like to place
defendant, BRENDAN DUNCKLEY on notice that the State has evidence
that he has engaged in other act conduct related to the charge in
this case and, that if such evidence becomes relevant, the State
would seek its admission in a rebuttal case. This notice is based
upon the Points and Authorities contained herein.

POINTS & AUTHORITIES

I. STATEMENT OF FACTS OF INSTANT CASE

V2.189
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On March 10, 2007, Defendant, BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, (hereinafter
Defendant) observed a woman, Jessica H., staggering along the side of
the road in the northwest area of Reno. Defendant claimed Jessica H.
was so drunk she was “smacked into a wall and smacked into a car.”

He offered to assist her into her apartment because he did not want
her to get hurt. Whilé'doing so, he claims to have been on his
cellular telephone with his wife to tell her that he was going to
help the girl because he “didn’t need any accﬁsations.” The girl
continued to stagger home, and Defendant followed her. According to
defendant, he stayed on the phone with his Qife the whole time. Once
at the woman’s home, Defendant escorted her up the stairs because she
could barely walk. They went inside and Defendant hung up the phone
to be able to get the girl off the ground so that she would not choke
on her vomit.

The next thing Jessica H. remembers is being on the ground and
told by Defendant to “suck my dick.” Defendant then shoved his erect
penis into her mouth. Jessica H. bit Defendant’s penis, causing_him
to recoil, and her to scream she’d been raped. Jessica H.'s
neighbors came running. Defendant, who had called his wife back,
was cornered at the scene and telling his wife that he’d been set up.

Defendant was éxtremely cooperative with police, denying,
initially any sexual contact with the victim and claiming to have
been on the cell phone with his wife throughout the whole time and
that nothing of that nature occurred. Defendant even willingly
allowed his penis to be photographed (which was flaccid and showed no

signs of injury) and provided law enforcement with a swab of his
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penis for DNA analysis. Hoﬁever, following a further invéstigatiOHJ
and a subsequent interview at Defendant’s home, Defendant changed his
story. When asked whether the victim’s saliva would be found on
Defendant’s penis, Defendant became uncomfortable, changed his story,
asked to leave the room and speak outside the presence of his wife,

gsaid Jessica had “come on* to him. On March 22, 2007, at 10:00 a.m.,

Defendant came in for a formal interview, then admitted the act‘had
occurred, but it was consensual. Defendant, for the first time,
acknowledged he had hung up with his wife for approximately two
minutes, at_which time, the incident occurred.

In an unusual twist, that same day, on March 22, 2007, at 10:00
p.m., Defendant had contact with a Reno Police Officer on an

unrelated incident. Unsolicited, Defendant told the officer about

Jessica H.’s accusation and that he had put his finger in her mouth
to stop her from choking on her tongue and then urinated, which
involved touching his penis immediately after, which may have caused
her saliva to be deposited on his penis.

Forensic Analysts at the Washoe County Crime Laboratory found no
DNA foreign td Defendant on his penis. There was no sexual assault
exam performed.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS OF OTHER ACTS CASE

On August 20, 2005, Defendant ran into an old friend, Lura S.
Defendant and his wife had known Lura S. since she was a little girl.
By all accounts, those who knew her, considered her a “gspecial needs”

or developmentally disabled girl who has epilepsy. That day,
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Defendant obtained'Lura S.’s phone number so that they could keep in
touch.

The next day, Defendant called Lura S. and ran into her with
some of her friends. They were drinking alcohol and Lura 5. was very
intoxicated. She agreed to go with Defendant to his work. Defendant
boots vehicles for a living. While at a vehicle, at a lot in the
northwest area of Reno, Defendant grabbed Lura S. by the throat and
hair, scared her, and had Lura S. perform fellatio on him. Defendant
grabbed Lura S. from the car, pulled her out, pushed her face down on
the hood of the car, and then subjected her to sexual intercourse
from behind. Defendant then drove Lura S. back to her apartment,
which she entered crying and disclosed what had occurred.

During the investigation, conducted by Reno Police Detective Tom
Broome, Defendant admitted the conduct, but claimed it was
consensual. A short time later, Lura S. was admitted to a menta}
hospital and became unable to cgntinue any cooperation with law
enforcement. The case was closed at that time.

In March of 2007, René Police Detective Tom Broome remembered
Defendant from the Lura §. case. Detective Broome contacted Lura S.
to see if she was in a better position to assist with the re-opening
of the case. At that time, Lura S. agreed. However, jpst prior to
the preliminary hearing, Lura S. had a change of mind, and became
unable to participate with the case again.

On Monday, February 04, 2008, the State learned that Lura S. is

now willing and able to testify, if needed, in this case.
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III. ARGUMENT

DEFENDANT'S REMARKABLY SIMILAR CONDUCT IS

ADMISSIBLE PURSUANT TO NRS 48.045(1) TO REBUT

DEFENSE CLAIMS AND/OR PURSUANT TO NRS 48.045(2)

FOR OTHER PURPOSES TCO CIRCUMSTANTIALLY ESTABLISH

IN REBUTTAL, THE DEFENDANT'S MOTIVE, IMPEACHMENT,

OPPORTUNITY, INTENT, PREPARATICN, PLAN,

KNOWLEDGE, IDENTITY, MODUS OPERANDI.

Nevada law expressly permits evidence of uncharged conduct
to be admitted “to rebut evidence of a character trait offered by an
accused.” NRS 48.045(1) (a). Such evidence is also admissible for
", ..limited purposes other than showing a defendant's bad character

so long as certain procedural reguirements are satisfied and certain’

substantive criteria met." Tavares v. State, 17 NAO &1 (Septembér 17,

2001); see also Braunstein v. State, 118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002).

This evidence is also ruled admissible in cases involving sexual
conduct as long as the evidence is not offered to establish bad
character or a specific emotional propensity for sexual aberration.

Braunstein at 417.

Admissible other act evidence 1is outlined in NRS 48.045.
Specifically, that statute states:

Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not
admissible to prove the character of a person in
order to show that he acted in conformity
therewith. It may, however, be admissible for
other purposes, such as proof of motive,
opportunity, intent, preparation, plan,
knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or
accident. {(emphasis added.)

Though the use of uncharged bad acts is heavily disfavored

by the Nevada Supreme Court, the Court has held that it is
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appropriate for the Court to admit such evidence as long as the State
",..establishes, at a hearing outside the presence of the jury that:
(1) the incident is relevant to the crime charged; (2) the act is
proven by clear and convincing evidence; and (3) the probative value
of the evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger.of

unfair prejudice." Id.; see also Braunstein; see also NRS 48.035;

see also Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 1176, 946 P.2d 1061, 1064-65

(1997), citing Walker v. State, 112 Nev. 819, 824, 521 P.2d 523, 3926

(1996) . See also Rosky v. State, 111 P.3d 690 (May 2005) and

Ledbetter v. State, 129 P.3d 671 {(March 2006).

It is also well established that such evidence is highly
probative when offered to prove motive, since “...motive generally
applies to establish the identity of the criminal, or to prove malice

or specific intent.” " Richmond v. State, 59 P.3d 1249, 1255 (2002).

The same is true when admitting evidence that suppoits a common plan
or scheme as long as it shows “...an integral part of an overarching
plan explicitly conceived and executed by the defendant.” Id.  “The
test is not whether the other offense has certain elements in common
with the crime charged, but whether it tends to establishes a
preconceived plan which resulted in the commission of the crime.”

Id.; see also Ledbetter at 677.

! procedurally, "[a] prosecutor seeking the motion must do so in the pursuit of
justice and as a servant of the law." Tavares. To protect the defendant’s rights,
the Nevada Supreme Court now also requires the State to reguest the Court to give a
limiting instruction at the time the evidence is proffered. Id.; see also Rosky
and Ledbetter.
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Such evidence is also admissible to prove a distinct modus

operandi by the accused. Williams v. State 95 Nev. 830 (1979); see

also United States v. Baldarrama, 566 F.2d 560 (Sth Cir. 1978} ;

People v. Hasten, 69 Cal.2d 233, 70 Cal. Rptr. 419, 444 P.2d 91

(1968) and People v. Rodriguez 68 Cal.App.3d 874, 137 Cal.Rptr. 594
(1977). Modus Operandi evidence is “...generally proper where a
positive identification of the perpetrator has not been made , and
the offered evidence establishes a crime so clear as to establish the
identity of the person on trial.” Ledbetter at 6€77. The Court must
simply determine whether there is sufficient similarity between the
charged and uncharged crimes to allow evidence of modus operandi

include: (1) the time lapse between the two crimes and (2} the

geographic distance between the crimes. United States v. Farber, 630

F.2d 569 (8th. Cir. 1980); Walker v. State, 588 S.W.2d 920, 924

(Tex.App. 1982); Messenger v. State, 638 S.W. 2d 883 (Tex.App. 1982).

This evidence is especially relevant when identity is at issue.
Ledbetter at 677.

In this case, and only if it becomes necessary and under
NRS 4é.045(1), the State will seek to admit this evidence to rebut
the defendant’'s placing of his character, his lack of motive, his
lack of criminal intent, his lack of criminal design in issue.
Naturally, before seeking admission of any of this evidence, the
State will prove these acts by clear and convincing evidence.

Here, DEFENDANT's conduct with Lura S§. mirrors his conduct with

"Jessica H. and, when made relevant, may be admissible to show

defendant’s motive, modus operandi, common scheme or plan, identity
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and intent. Though sexual in nature, and arguably prejudicial, it is
admissible, as it is relevant to prove the charged conduct here and
any prejudicial effect will be, by far, outweighed by the probative
value of the evidence.

Ldoking closely, the conduct is identical. First of all, the
incidents involve females, who were either intoxicated or mentally
disabled, and a cooperative suspect sex who cléimed the sexual
conduct that occurred was consensual. Both incidents include
defendant being sexually forward, inviting the women to his world, to
initiating physical sexual contact, and when rebuffed, or refused,
agreeing to go along with the women’s rejection, only to truly have
something else on his mind. In both incidents, defendant had a plan
to have sexual relations regardless of their ability to comsent. The
only difference between the two cases is that he actually knew Lura
S., and only observed a drunken Jessica H. on the street. Either
way, it shows defendant’s state of mind, his knowledge that the
conduct is inappropriate, his modus and his criminal_inteht. .This
makes the evidence of defendant'’s conduct with Lura $. relevant for
every single reason listed above if and when Defendant raises the
issues in court.

Motive & Intent
Here, by the very entry of a “not guilty” plea, defendant
has placed his motive and intent at issue in this case. However, in
light of the Nevada Supreme Court’s strong distaste for other acts
evidence, the State believes that this evidence will only become

relevant should Defendant open the door to it.. The evidence that
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defendant committed, and/or suggested, almost an identical act with a
gimilar victim is highly relevant, at the very least to rebut
defendant’s ciaims that this wag consensual conduct by Jessica H.
and/or to establish that the defendant was aware his conduct was
illegal and intended to commit a criminal act.

Common Scheme or Plan &/or Modus Operandi

In addition, the other act evidence is relevant to show
defendant's common scheme or plan to show that he picks on loﬁ—
functioning victims, that he believes he can talk his way out of
criminal culpability, that he uses his wife as an alibi-type witness
to support his consent defense, knowing he fully intended to do with
these women whatever he sexually pleased. Defendant’s choice of
connecting to the women, for a seemingly innocent purpose, then
choosing to have sex with them, when they are not in a position‘to
put up a fight, clearly depicts his criminal design.

The evidence alsc depicts defendant's distinct modus operandi in
how he committed this crime. A look at the other acts evidence
reveals that there is more than gufficient similarity betweenjthe
charged and uncharged crimes. There is a marginal time lapse between
the conduct, all occurring consistently with a low-to-non functioning
female, within a relatively close time, in the same part of time, and
involve the uée of a victim who ig under the influence intoxicating
liquor and/or, in the case of Lura S., mental disease.

Other Purposes: Impeachment and Rebuttal (NRS 48.045(1))

Moreover, and for all the reasons stated above, the other act

evidence is admissible to impeach and/or rebut the defense.
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Defendant will undoubtedly attempt to cast dispersion on the victim’s
character while trying to cast doubt on her credibility. As this
court is aware,‘sex crimes pose unique difficulties when the evidence
is largely of a testimonial nature. Thus, credibility of the victim
is extremely important. Surely, knowing the Defendant has committed
non-consensual sexual conduct will certainly be especially helpful in
assist the ijury in assessing whether or not whét this victim says is
true. |

As with all evidence presented against a defendant in a criminal
case, the State acknowledges Defendant’s other act evidence may seem
prejudicial. However, at worst, énd under the analyses offered
above, the danger of any prejudice is minimal compared to its
probative value and will be cured by a limiting jury instruction
given with the admission of the evidence.

Accordingly, once the evidence becomes relevant aﬁd the State
fulfills its necessary and substantive reguirements, the Court should
admit this other acts evidence.

CONCLUSICN

The evidence relating to the defendant's other acts conduct
may become relevant to rebut the defense character claims, relevant
to prove DEFENDANT’s motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan,
knowledge, identity, modus operandi and'other purposes relevant for

the reasons listed above. Following a Petrocelli hearing in this

matter, the State will respectfully request this Honorable Court to
permit it to introduce the defendant's other acts evidence either if

and when it becomes relevant, or for purposes of rebuttal.

10 - V2.198
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 2338E.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this

03140783

11

L@J}\d/}day of \ELIX§%VLLﬂth4//7 2008.

.
= .
RICHARD A. GAMMIéQ
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

KELLI ANNE VILORIA
5872
Deputy District Attorney
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of.-
the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,
I deposited for mailing at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, a true copy
of the foregoing document, addressed to:

David 0'Mara

311 E. Liberty St.
Reno, NV 89501

DATED this“ﬁ{jf‘day of&ﬁéLéfliJJi;Lz,%nT, 2008.
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STATE VWS. BRENDAN D
District Court
Washoe County
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IN THE SECOND TUDICIAT, DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FCR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

* % %
THE S3TATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Cage No. CEo1~ 1728
V. H
Dept. No.
Ry endan Duncldetj Dafendant.
/

REQUEST, STIPULATION AND ORDER RE PRE-PRELIMINARY HEARING AND PRE-

TRIAL RECIPROCAL DISCOVERY (FELONY AND GROSS MISDEMEANCOR CASES)

- L. DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR PRE-PRELIMINARY HEARTING DISCOVERY

Purpuant to NRS 171.126%, the Dafendant requests copiss of
any and all of the following items which come inte the possession or
custody of the prosecuting attorney not less than two (2) judiciél
days before the scheduled preiiminary hearing: written or recorded
statements or confessions made by the Defendant; written or recorded
statements ma&e by a witness or witnesses; reports of statements or
confessicns; results or reports of physical or mental examinations,
saientific tests or scientific‘experimenﬁs made in connection with

the case; and bocks, papers, doguments ox tangible ckjectz that the

V2. 201

oo NLLE o AAUADNTU U AA A AU SHEIAN T FAAT L e



V27202 o | ®

10
12
12

13

15
la
17
18
15

a0

22
23
24
25

26

prosecuting attorney intends to introduce into evidence during the
tate’'s case in chief at the preliminary hearing.

II. DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR PRE-TRIAL DISCOVERY

fursuant to NRS 174,235 through 174.295 the Defendant
requests coples of any and all of the fcllowing items within the
cugstody of the State, the existence of which is known, or by the
exercice of due diligence may become kmown, to the prosecuting
attorrey: written or recorded statewments or confassions made of the
Defendant; written or recorded statements made by 8 witness the
prosacuting attornéy intends to call during the case in chief of the
State; results or reports of physical or mental examinationa,
scientific tests or scientifiz ewxparimente made in conneckien with
the particular case;.and books, papers, documents or tangible objects
that the prosecuting attorney intends to introduce during the case in

chief of the State.

IIX. STATH'S REQUEST FOR PRE-TRIAL DISCOVERY

Pursuant teo NR3 174,235 through 174.295 the State requests
copies of any and all of the following items within the possession,
custody or control of the Defendant, the existence of which is known,
or by the exercise of due diligence may become known, =o the
Defendant: written or recorded statements made bf a witness the
Defendant intends to call during the case in chief of the Defendant;
results or reports of physiceal or mental examinationsg, scientific
tests or scientific experiments that the Defendant intends te
introduce into evidence during the case in chief of the Defendant ;

and books, peapers, documents or tangible objects that the Defendant
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intends to introduce into evidence during the case in chief of the

Lelendant .

IV. WAIVER OF TIME REQUIREMENTS

- By the exmcution of the instant recuest and stipulation,
both the State and the Defendant expressly waive the requirement that
the parties zequests for pre-trial discovery must be made within
thirty (30) days of the District Court arraignment, pursuant to NRS
174,285, The parties stipulate and agree that said recquests are
timely and satisfacterily made by the execution of the instant
request and atipulation.

V. AUDITIOMAL STIPULATIONS

The parties agree to comply with the witnees notificatien
provisions, including the expert witness notification provisions, of
Chapters 173 and 174 of the Nevada Revized Statutes.

The State agrees to provide the Defendant with all

exculpatory materials pursuant to Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. §3

(1963), and the provisions of this Request, Stipulation, and Order
are not intended to affect any obligation placed on the prosecuting
attommey by the Constitution of thig state or the Conatitution of the
United States to disclose exculpatory evidence, or other materials
required by law, to the defendant.
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The State and the Defendant shall have & continuing duty to

disclcsee copies of all disqovery items noted supra.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRE 238B.030

The undersi¢gned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain the socizl security number of any person.

}%ﬁj¢ﬂﬁhﬂ,/ ¢l g [of

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY DATE{
([8]o8
E ATTORNEY DATE | |

Good cause appearing, the above stipulations are hereby
ratified and approved, The parties shall comply with the terms of
thig document.

IT IS SO CRDEREL.

Congip 4 Bpuohames

DISTRICT JUDRGE

2{4( 0}

DATE

A v ALY e
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DA # 373085

RPD RP0O7-009446, RPD RP0O5-034027

CODE 1800

Richard A. Gammick
#001510

P.O. Box 30083

Reno, NV 89520-3083
(775} 328-3200
Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT CQURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

h KA K
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No. CR0O7-1728
V.
Dept. No. - 4
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
Defendant.
/

AMENDED INFORMATION

RICHARD A. GAMMICK, District Attorney within and for the
County of Washce, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority
of the State of Nevada, informs the above entitled Court that BRENDAN
DUNCKLEY, the defendant above named, has committed the crimes of:

COUNT I. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN

YEARS, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, (F650) in the manner

following:
That the said defendant on or between the 14th day of
August A.D. A.D., 1998, and the 13th day of August A.D. A.D., 2000,

or thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at and

V2. ch@

within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully,
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unlawfully, and lewdly commit a lewd or lascivious act upon or with
the body of ASHLEY V., having a date of birth of August 14, 19286, a
female child under the age of fourteen years at the time that the
sald act was committed, in that tﬁe said defendant engaged the victim
in sexual intercourse at or near Longley Lane, Reno, Washoe County,
Nevada, and/or put his hand down her pants to fondle her genital area
in an elevator at the Atlantis Hotel and Casino, 3800 South Virginia
Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of
himself or the child.

COUNT II. ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS

193.330, being an attempt to violate NRS 200.366, a felony, (F1000) in

the manner following:

That the said defendant on the 10th day of March A.D.,
2008, or thereabout, and before the filing of this Information, at
and within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully, and
unlawfully attempt to subject JESSICA H. to sexual penetration
against the victim’s and/or under conditions in which the defendant
knew or should have known that the victim was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of the defendant's
conduct, to wit, fellatio at 1675 Sky Mountain Drive, #827, Reno,
Washoe County, Nevada.
/17
/1
/7
/17
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All of which is contrary to the form of the Statute in such
case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the

State of Newvada.

RICHARD A. GAMMICK
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

BY(;%(\[/{M/

KELLI ANNE VILORIA
5872
Deputy District Attorney
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The following are the names and addresses of such witnesses

as are known to me at the time of the filing of the within

Information:

RENC POLICE DEPARTMENT

DETECTIVE T.K. BROOME
OCFFICER SCQOTT HEGLAR

ASHLEY V., Silver Springs Conservatidn Camp

JESSICA RAE H.

The party executing this document hereby affirms that this

‘document submitted for recording does not contain the social security

number of any person or persons pursuant to NRS 239B.230.

RICHARD A, GAMMICK
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By

KELLI ANNE VILORIA
5872
Deputy District Attorney

PCN RPDO726517C
PCN RPD0O726524C

070684486

V2. 208
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CODE 4025 HOWARD W. C -' WYERS, CLERK
Richard A. Gammick By. fé@u&ui
#001510 DEPUTY CLERK

P.O. Box 30083

Reno, NV 85520-3083
(775) 328-3200
Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

® % %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No. CRO7-1728
V. Dept. No. 4
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
Defendant.
/

REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE, STIPULATION AND ORDER

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED, by and between the parties herein,
Defendant, BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, by and through his attorney, DAVID C,
O'MARA, and the Washoe County District Attorney, by and through KELLI
ANNE VILORIA, Washoe County Deputy District Attorney, and stipulate
that the HEARING TO CONFIRM TRIAL DATE currently set for MARCH 4,
2008, at 9:00 A.M. be vacated and rescheduled to MARCH &, 2008, at
2:00 A.M.

Said continuance is necessary and not made for the purpose of

delay.

' AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document

V2. 209
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does not contain the social security number of any person.

DATED this 2B  day of CER euse , 2008.

RICHARD A, GAMMICK
District Attormney

By ﬁ%/ub\m@\_/ RQM/» ﬂ CW/M

KELLI ANNE VILORIA DAv‘fB"c O MA
Deputy District Attorney Attorney for Defendant
ORDER

Good cause appearing, and in the interests of justice,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the HEARING TO CONFIRM TRIAL DATE
currently scheduled for MARCH 4, 2008, at 9:00 A.M. be vacated and

rescheduled to MARCH 6, 2008, at 9:00 A.M.

DATED this 3 day of _ Duch , 2008.

4

DISTRICT JUDGE

2 V2. 210
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Richard A. Gammick

#001510
P.O. 30083 MAR 0 6 2008

Reno, NV. B89520-3083
(775)328-3200 HOWEWEHK
Attorney for Plaintiff Y- DERUTY o

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

* *® *
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
: Case No. CR07-1728
V.
Dept. No. 4
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,
Defendant.
/

GUILTY PLEA MEMORANDUM

1. I, BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, understand that I am charged with
the offense(s) of: COUNT I. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF
FOURTEEN YEARS, a‘violation of NRS 201.230, a felony; or in the
alternative, COUNT IXI. ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NﬁS

193.330, being an attempt to violate NRS 200.366, a felony.

2. I desire to enter a plea of guilty to the offense(s) of
COUNT I. LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF FOURTEEN g &
violation of NRS 201.230, a felony—oe—it=the-a-semnabire; COUNT IT.

ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT, a violation of NRS 193.330, being an attempt
to viclate NRS 200.366, a felony, as more fully alleged in the

charge(s) filed against me.

V2. 21]
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3. By entering my plea of guilty I know and understand
that I am waiving the following constitutional rights:

A. I waive my privilege against self-incrimination.

B. I waive my right to trial by jury, at which trial the

State would have to prove my guilt of all elements of the offenses
beyond a reasonable doubt.

C. I waive my right to confront my accusers, that is, the

right to confront and cross examine all witnesses who would testify
at trial.

D. I waive my right to subpoena witnesses for trial on my

behalf.

4. I understand the charge(s) against me and that the
elements of the offense(s) which the State would have to prove beyond
a reasonable doubt at trial are that on or between August 14, 1998,

and August 13, 2000, or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of

‘Nevada, I did, as to Count I. willfully, unlawfully, and lewdly

commit a lewd or lascivious act upon or with the body of ASHLEY V.,
having a date of birth of August 14, 1986, a female child under the
age of fourteen years at the time that the said act was committed, in
that I engaged the victim in sexual intercourse at or near Longley
Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, and/or put my hand down her pants
to fondle her genital area in an elevator at the Atlantis Hotel and
Casiné, 3800 South Virginia Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with
the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,

passions, or sexual desires of myseif or the child.

/11
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I further understand the charge(s) against me and that the
elements of the offense({s} which the State would have to prove beyond
a reasonable doubt at trial are that on March 10, 2007, or
thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
Count II. willfully, and unlawfully attempt to subject JESSICA H. to
sexual penetration against the victim’s and/or under conditions in
which I knew or should have known that the victim was mentally or
physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of the
my conduct, to wit, fellatio at 1675 Sky Mountain Drive, #827, Reno,
Washoe County, Nevada..

5. I understand that I admit thé facts which support all
the elements of the offenses by pleading guilty. I admit that the
State possesses sﬁfficient evidence which would result in my
conviction. I have considered and discussed all possible defenses
and defense strategies with my counsel. I understand that I have the
right to appeal from adverse rulings on pretrial motions only if the
State and the Court consent to my right to appeal. In the absence of
such an agreement, I understand that any substgntive or procedural
pretrial issue or issues which could have been raised at trial are
waived by my plea.

6. I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty
as to Count I. are that I may be impriscned for a period of life in
the Nevada State Department of Corrections with parole eligibility
after ten years, and that I am not eligible for probation unless a
psychosexual evaluation is completed pursuant to NRS 176.139 which

certifies that I do not represent a high risk to reoffend based upon

, V2. 211
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a currently accepted standard of assessment and unless a psychiatric
or psychological evaluation is completed pursuant to NRS 176A.110
which certifies that I do not represent a high risk td reoffend based
upon a currently accepted standard of assessment. I may also be
fined up to $10,000.00. I further understand that I will be reguired
to be on 1ifetiﬁe supervision pursuant to NRS 176.0931.

I further understand that the consequences of my plea of
guilty as to Couﬁt II. are that I may be imprisoned for a period of
two to twenty years in the Nevada State Department of Corrections and
that I am not eligible for probation unless a psychosexual evaluation
is completed pursuant to NRS 176.139 which certifies that I do not
represent a high risk to reoffend based upon a currently accepted
standard of assessment and unless a psychiatric or psychological
evaluation is completed pursuant to NRS 176A.110 which certifies that
I do not represent a high risk to reoffend based upon a currently
accepted standard of assessment. I further understand that I will be
required to be on lifetime supervision pursuant to NRS.176.0931. The
sentence on each count may be concurrent or consecutive fo each
other.

7. In exchange for my plea of guilty, the State, my
counsel and I have agreed to recommend the following: The State will

be free to argue for an appropriate sentence. The State will not

file additional criminal charges resulting from the arrest in thi

case, and/or will refrain from pursuing additional and/or k&ﬁv/ - 2

. 1 chuding atl counds fled and dismissep in RIC (ase Mo 29
transactionally related offensesA I Understand that I am entering my

plea to Count I as a legal fiction, pursuant to plea negotiations,

. V2. 214
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to allow me to avoid the more seriocus charge of sexual assault in the
original Count I}qné + allowme ¥he sppecrunhy e quabdy fov cooahon, which weul
Gtherw e ke unavelahle,

8. I understand that, even though the State and I have
reached this plea agreement, the State is reserving the right to
present arguments, facts, and/or witnesses at sentencing in support
of the plea agreement.

9. I also agree that I will make full restitution in this
matter, as determined by the Court. Where applicable, I additiocnally
understand and agree that I will be responsible for the repayment of
any costs incurred by the State or County in securing my return to
this jurisdiction.

10. I understand that the State, at their discretion, is
entitled to either withdraw from this agreement and proceed with the
prosecution of the original charges or be free to argue for an
appropriate sentence at the time of Sentencing if I fail fo appear at
any scheduled proceeding in this matter OR if prior to the date of my
sentencing I am arrested in any jurisdiction for a vicolation of law
OR if T have misrepresented my prior criminal history. I represent
that I do have a prior criminal record. I understand and agree that
the occurrence of any of these acts constitutes a material breach of
my plea agreement with the State. I further understand and agree
that by the execution of this agreement, I am waiving any right I may
have to remand this matter to Justice Court should I later withdraw
my plea.

11. I understand and agree that pursuant to the terms of .

the plea agreement stated herein, any counts which are to be

5 V2. 21%
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dismissed and any other cases charged or uncharged which are either
to be dismissed or not pursued by the State, may be considered by the
court at the time of my sentencing.

12. I understand that the Court is not bound by the
agreement of the parties and that the matter of sentencing is to be
determined solely by the Court. I have discussed the charge(s), the
facts and the possible defenses with my attorney. All of the
foregoing rights, waiver of rights, elements, possible penalties, and
consequences, have been carefully explained to me by my attorney. I
am satisfied with my counsel's advice and representation leading to
this resolution of my case. I am aware that if I am not satisfied
with my counsel I should advise the Court at this time. I believe
that entering my plea is in my best interest and that going to trial
is‘not in my best interest.

13. I understand that this plea and resulting conviction
may have adverse effects upon my residenéy in this country if I am
not a U. S. Citizen.

14. I offer my plea freely, voluntarily, knowingly and
with full understanding of all matters set forth in the Amended
Information and in this Pléa Memorandum. I understand everything
contained within this Memorandum.

15. My plea of guilty is voluntary and is not the result
of any threats, coercion or promises of leniency.

v
/1
/17

; V2. 216

7




N2

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

217 ® e

16. I am signing this Plea Memorandum voluntarily with
advice of counsel, under no duress, coercion, or promises of
leniency.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 235B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.

DATED this (p#i day of Marciy , ovs,

DEFENDANT

[XQ O u( 4 d /&/ IRANSLATOR/ INTERPRETER

Attdynky Witnessing Defehdant's Slgﬁ\ture

%Tm\

Prosecutl Attornef

07068446
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Howard W. Conyers
1 Code No. 4185 Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 172843

5 |[IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
6 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

7 THE HONORABLE CONNIE J. STEINHEIMER, CHIEF DISTRICT JUDGE
8 -000-

9 STATE OF NEVADA,

10 Plaintiff, Case No. CRO7-1728
11 VS. Dept. No. 4
12 BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

13 Defendant.
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL

THURSDAY, MARCH 6,

BECKY VAN AUKEN, CCR No.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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For the Plaintiff:

For the Defendant:

Parole and Probation:

APPEARANCES:

KELLI A. VILORIA

Deputy District Attorney
75 Court Street

Reno, Nevada 89520

O"MARA LAW FIRM

BY: DAVID C. O"MARA, ESQ.

311 E. Liberty Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

LAURA PAPPAS

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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RENO, NEVADA, THURSDAY, MARCH 6, 2008, 9:03 A_M.

-000-

THE COURT: Brendan Dunckley.

MS. VILORIA: Kelli Viloria on behalf of the
State.

MR. O"MARA: Good morning. David O"Mara on
behalf of Mr. Dunckley. He"s present In court today.

THE COURT: There®s an amended Information in
this file. 1It"s also the time for a motion to confirm.

Do you want to go forward on the amended
Information?

MR. O"MARA: No, Your Honor. We have reached a
agreement -- oh, yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Then I*1l1 hand you a copy of
the Amended Information. You can review it with your
client.

MR. O"MARA: Thank you, Your Honor.

We have received a copy of the Amended
Information. Mr. Dunckley®s name is correctly spelled o
line 12. It states, Count 1, lewdness with a child unde

the age of 14 years, a violation of NRS 201.230, and

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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attempted sexual assault, a violation of NRS 193.330. We
waive the formal reading of this amended Information.

THE COURT: Are you ready to go forward and enter
a plea?

MR. O"MARA: Yes, Your Honor. 1 have provided
you with the original of the Guilty Plea Memorandum that
was signed. Mr. Dunckley desires to enter a plea of
guilty to the offense of lewdness with a child under the
age of 14 years, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, and
Count 11, attempted sexual assault, a violation of
NRS 193.330, being an attempt to violate NRS 200.366, a
felony.

Mr. Dunckley understands that the consequences of
his plea of guilt to Count 1 is that he may be
imprisoned for a period of life In the Nevada Department
of Corrections with parole eligibility after ten years and
that he 1s not eligible for probation unless he satisfies
NRS 176.139, which certifies that he is not a high risk to
reoffend based upon current standards, and a psychiatric
or psychological evaluation to be completed pursuant to
NRS 176A.110. He also could be subject to a $10,000 fine,
and he understands that he"ll be under lifetime
supervision.

He also understands the consequences of his plea

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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of guilty to Count 11, which i1s set forth 1n the Guilty
Plea Memorandum, that he would be -- could be Imprisoned
for a period of 2 to 20 years iIn the Nevada State Prison,
and he"s also not eligible for probation unless he
satisfies the same psychosexual and psychological
evaluations as set forth in Count I.

In exchange for his plea of guilty, Your Honor,
the State and counsel and Mr. Dunckley have agreed to
recommend the following:

The State will be free to argue for an
appropriate sentence. The State will not file additional
criminal charges resulting from the arrest iIn this case
and/or will refrain from pursuing additional and/or
transactionally-related offenses, including all counts
filed and dismissed in Reno Justice Court, Case
No. 2007-033884.

He understands that in entering his plea to
Count I, it is a legal fiction, pursuant to the plea
negotiations, to allow him to avoid the more serious
charge of sexual assault iIn the original Count 1, and this
also allows him the opportunity to qualify for probation,
which would otherwise be unavailable.

THE COURT: [Is that a complete statement of the

negotiations?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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MS. VILORIA: It is, Judge. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Dunckley, do you understand these

plea negotiations?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor, 1 do.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions about them?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you comfortable with the
representation you"ve received from counsel so far?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor, 1 am.

THE COURT: Did you read the Guilty Plea
Memorandum?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor, | have.

THE COURT: Did you understand it?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions about the
document?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma"am.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions about the
modifications to the typed document?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma"am.

THE COURT: And did you initial all of those
changes?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 did.

THE COURT: Did you sign the document?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 did.

THE COURT: Are you aware that you have a right
to plead not guilty, have a trial by jury, be confronted
by the witnesses against you, bring witnesses here on your
own behalf, and testify or not testify at that jury trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

THE COURT: Do you understand you have a right
against self-incrimination, you may assert that right by
refusing to testify, and the State must prove you guilty
beyond a reasonable doubt??

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

THE COURT: Are you aware you"ll be giving up all
of these rights 1f you plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 am.

THE COURT: 1I1"m going to ask the clerk to read
the charge to which you®"re pleading, and then 1711 ask if
you understand 1t.

(Whereupon, the Information was read

by the clerk.)

THE COURT: Is there anything about those charges
you do not understand?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma"am.

THE COURT: Do you understand Count I is a legal

fiction?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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1 THE DEFENDANT: As far as what a legal fiction

2 1S?

3 THE COURT: Yes. What is i1t about Count I that"s
4 a legal fiction?

5 THE DEFENDANT: That per the agreement, we"re

6 changing the original count down to a lower one and

7 pleading guilty to that so that probation can be an

8 option.

9 THE COURT: Are all the facts and circumstances
10 the same?

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma®am.

12 THE COURT: It"s just that 1t"s a lewdness

13 instead of a sexual assault?

14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma®am.

15 THE COURT: Did you do what it says you did iIn

16 the charge?

17 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma®am.

18 THE COURT: And what about Count 11?

19 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.
20 THE COURT: Do you understand that charge?
21 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 do.
22 THE COURT: Did you do what it says you did iIn
23 that charge?
24 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

8

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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THE COURT: Has your attorney told you the
possible maximum penalties?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, he has.

THE COURT: I know he told me that he had, but
now you have to tell me what those are 1In your own words.

What 1s the penalty for Count 1?

THE DEFENDANT: The first count i1s a felony
carrying a sentence of no less than 10 years to a life
sentence, eligible for parole after 10 years iIn the Nevada
State correctional facilities.

Count 11 will carry a felony, as well as Count 1
will carry a lifetime supervision, and Count 11 will carry
a felony with no less than two years served i1n the Nevada
State correctional facilities with a maximum of 20 years,
as well as carrying a lifetime supervision penalty as
well, and a fine in the first count of up to $10,000.

THE COURT: Okay. And a fine iIn the second
count?

MS. VILORIA: There i1s no fine.

THE COURT: Okay.

Now, do you understand, with regard to Count 1,
iIt"s a penalty, a maximum penalty of life iIn prison?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

THE COURT: But you would be eligible for

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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probation after you served 10 years.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 do.

THE COURT: And do you understand that with
regard to Count 1l, 1t"s a maximum penalty of 20 years,
but you could be eligible for probation -- for parole at a
date that I give you, but i1t could be no less than two
years?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

THE COURT: Now, do you understand that probation
is not available on these charges unless you are certified
by a professional pursuant to NRS 176.139 to not represent
a high risk to reoffend as to both counts?

THE DEFENDANT: I understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that with regard to
lifetime supervision, that even if you completed your term
of sentence, you"ve satisfied all your obligations, i1f you
violated the terms of your lifetime supervision, you would
be subject to being back in prison?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am, 1 do.

THE COURT: Do you understand that®"s totally up
to me whether 1 run these charges concurrent or
consecutive?

THE DEFENDANT: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand I"m free to

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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sentence you up to and including the maximum allowed by
law?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Has anyone made any threats to get
you to enter these pleas?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Has anyone told you that you would
guaranteed probation or any other particular result?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Has anyone made any promises or
representations to you to get you to enter these pleas
that you haven®t told me about?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma"am.

THE COURT: Do you have any doubt about what
you"re doing here today?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma"am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you have a
jury trial scheduled for March 24th, and by pleading
guilty, that trial i1s off?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“am.

THE COURT: Do you understand this i1s a permanent

entry of plea?
THE DEFENDANT: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can"t tell me in a week or two

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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that you didn"t understand what was happening. You have
to tell me that now.

THE DEFENDANT: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you won"t be able to change you
mind with regard to these pleas of guilt.

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: With everything 1°ve asked and you
your answers, do you still wish to go forward?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you doing so of your own free
will?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: How do you plead to Count 17?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURT: How do you plead to Count 11?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURT: The Court finds that your pleas are
voluntary, that you fully understand the nature of the

offenses charged and the consequences of your pleas.

Therefore, 1 will accept your pleas of guilt and we"ll set

a date for sentencing.
MR. O"MARA: Your Honor, there"s been
negotiations with the district attorney®"s office to set

this out five to six months so that Mr. Dunckley can get
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sexual offender therapy during that period of time. And
basically the D.A. i1s giving him every opportunity to try
to qualify for probation and to do the things that will be
beneficial for him to present to you at sentencing. So
she®"s allowed for a five- to six-month extension so that
he can get those type of therapy classes, and so we"d ask
for that type of time before sentencing.

MS. VILORIA: Your Honor, my agreement is just to
see if this defendant is worthy of any type of grant of
probation, whether he can earn i1t or not. | want to see
what he does between now and then.

So I do not object to any type of continuance
that Mr. O"Mara i1s asking for to set out the sentencing
date.

THE COURT: Counsel approach.

(A sidebar was held off the record.)

THE COURT: Okay. What are the conditions of
Mr. Dunckley®s release? 1Is he out on bail?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma“"am.

THE COURT: And what"s your bail set at?

THE DEFENDANT: I don"t remember. 1It"s been a
year, Your Honor. | don"t remember off the top of my
head.

THE COURT: We have two bails posted. One may be

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534
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in the Reno Justice Court case.

It looks like 1t"s 15,000 and 18,500, which seems
somewhat sufficient to me with regard to the bail. But I
am going to modify the terms and conditions of his release
to include Court Services supervision.

IT you are going to do some sort of treatment,
then you need to do that and report that to Court
Services. And I want you reporting at least once a week
to Court Services so we know where you are and what you“re
doing.

You must abstain from the use, possession, and
control of alcohol between now and the date you“re
sentenced, and you can®"t use controlled substances.

So 1 just want to make sure you understand these
special conditions of your release. Do you?

THE DEFENDANT: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Then that will be the order,
and 111 see you back at sentencing the clerk i1s about to
give.

THE CLERK: August 5th at 9:00 o"clock.

THE COURT: Between now and that date it"s your
responsibility to make appointments with the Division of
Parole and Probation, to complete the evaluation. 1It"s

further your responsibility to see that the psychological
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evaluation 1s conducted timely. And stay in touch with

Court Services.

MS_. VILORIA: Your Honor, can we vacate the trial

date for March 24, "08?
THE COURT: That will be the order.
(Proceedings concluded.)

-000-
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STATE OF NEVADA, )

)
COUNTY OF WASHOE. )

I, BECKY VAN AUKEN, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, 1n and for the County of Washoe, do

hereby certify:

above-entitled Court and took stenotype notes of the
proceedings entitled herein, and thereafter transcribed

the same i1nto typewriting as herein appears;

and correct transcription of my stenotype notes of said
proceedings.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, 04/02/2008.

/s/Becky Van Auken
BECKY VAN AUKEN, CCR No. 418

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. (775) 746-3534

That 1 was present in Department No. 4 of the

That the foregoing transcript i1s a full, true
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CASE NO. CR07-1728

FILED

Electronically
06-26-2008:12:50:42 PM
Howard W. Conyers

TITLE: THE STATE OF NEVADA VS. BRENDAN DUNCKeHEYthe Court

Transaction # 260887

DATE, JUDGE

OFFICERS OF

COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONT'D TO
3/6/08 MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL DATE/ARRAIGNMENT ON AMENDED

HONORABLE INFORMATION 8/5/08
CONNIE Deputy District Attorney Kelli Viloria, Esq., represented the State. 9:00 a.m.
STEINHEIMER Defendant present with counsel David O'Mara, Esq. Probation Officer Laura Sentencing
DEPT. NO.4  Pappas also present.

M. Stone Defendant handed copy of Amended Information; indicated to the Court that

(Clerk) name as set forth on same was his true name; waived reading and enter a

B. Van Auken plea of guilty to Lewdness with a Child Under the Age of Fourteen Years

(Reporter) and Attempted Sexual Assault as set forth therein.

Negotiations recited to the Court by defense counsel. Court interrogated
defendant, fully advised him of his rights; found plea freely and voluntarily
entered. Defendant advised the Court that he understood the guilty plea
memorandum. Clerk read aloud charge to which the defendant pled. Possible
penalty for offense charged related to defendant. Court accepted plea after
finding defendant had been fully advised by counsel.

COURT ORDERED matter referred to Probation Department for PSI and
continued for entry of judgment, consideration of probation report and
imposition of sentence.

COURT FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant be supervised by Court
Services while released on bail with the following special conditions: That
the Defendant check-in with Court Services 1 time per week; and that he
abstain from the use of alcoholic beverages and controlled substances.
Trial ordered vacated.

Defendant remained out of custody on bail.
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CODE: 2528 AUG 05 2008
HOWAR INYERS, CLERK.
By /¢~
« Y e oIER

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE o

6

" | STATE OF NEVADA, |
’ Plaintiff, Case No. CR07-1728
’ VS, Dept. No. 4
10|l BRENDAN DUNCKLEY,

a Defendant. ,

12
NOTICE OF DOCUMENT RECEIVED BUT NOT CONSIDERED BY THE COURT

13
District Attorney's Office and Defense counsel:

14 TO:
Take notice that the attached document has been received unsolicited by the

15
16 I Court. The Court has not reviewed the document. Further, the Court will not review the

17| document absent an affirmative request to do so from a party.

18 4y
19 01t
20 1 /1t
21 ||/
22 [/
This document was considered by the Court only if initialed and dated by

7/5l8 %

23
Juddes Initials

the Judge below.

24
Date

25
26
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
Case No. CR07-1728

| certify that | am an employee of JUDGE CONNIE STEINHEIMER, and

that on the 5" day of August, 2008, | hand delivered true copy of the Notice of
Document Received But Not Considered by the Court, addressed to:

Kelli Viloria, Esq.
Washoe County Deputy District Attorney
Via Hand Delivery

David O'Mara, Esq.
Via Hand Delivery

:f%%%fiyéékm

'?QANNA [ COTTER
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B8i-ad4-88 A1L:36 Po:

222 Altos Parkway — Sparks, NV 89436
(775) 626-2229 Phone
spanishspringssushi@yahoo.com

Yo: Anne E. Connor From: Cheryl Gallagher

Faxx  775/7839-7150 Pagaes: 2

Phone: 775/789-7100 Date:  8/4/2008

Re; Brendan Dunckley —{ cc: File

We have terminated the employment for the altached employee, 50 can not send any future payments
towards his past-dus child support.

Can you please pass this along to the DA prosecuting his case, Kelll Viloria (Case # CR07-1728), to
ansure the courts are aware that no job, at least at our restaurant, should be considered in case an
ankle bracetet type or release is being considered. The case is scheduled for sentencing tomommow,
August 5, 2008 at9 a.m.

Copy to Connie Steinhammer via Fax at 775/328-3621

V2. 237



Fax from

BE-84-88 ¥1:36 Pg: 2
V2 2838vs 1o5:14 PEYECRY WUDA FAMILY Surm ol :

ORDER/NOTICE TO WITHHOLD INCOME FOR CHILIJ SUPPORT

X dn'mu O Amended ] Terruinstion

Stare NEVADA

Co /City/Dist. of WASHOE COUNTY '
Tribunal/Case Number FV4-01734 ﬂA\:‘\ﬂ \ C—h(l«ry o

Employer/Withholder:

SPANISH SPRINGS SUSH! C o 208 - 20835

JERALD O KIGER -

10575 PALM DESERT DR

SPARKS NV 89441-0000

251140008 - fdGren)'s Name(9): DOB
Erployer/withhglder's Federal EIN Number (if ksurwn) ghUNGKTE\? :4.&1)%) 01/07/1999

RE:__  DINCKIEY, RRENDAN LDUNCKLEY, JESSE, WW18N897

Emiplayee's/Obligor's Name (Last, Fizst, MT)
Erihcaaloblicas Socil Security Number

Obligee Name (Last, First, MI}

B If checked, you azs required 1o enroll the child(een) identified above in any health inurance coverage availabla to the
employse/obligor throupgh hig/ber employment.

ORDER INFORMATION: This Order/Notice i8 bascd on the support order fram NEVADA .
. Yom are requjred by iaw to deduct these amonnts fram the employecsobligor's income until further notice.

- $350.00 per MONTH cument child support
§35.00 per MONTH past-due ¢hild support - Arrcars 12 weeks or greater? X yes Ono
perx cumem madical suppont
per past-due medical support
per spousal eupport

t other (specify)
for a total of $385.00 pchS;lTH to b forwarded to the payee below. g

You do not have to vary yonor pay cycle to e in compliance with the support order. If your pay cycle doas not match the ordered
payment cycle, withhold one of tha fellowing amounts: . . ‘
$38.85 por weckly pay period. $192.50 pér semimonthly pay perind (twica 2 month).
$177.69 per biweekly pay period (every two weeks). $385.00 per monthly pay period.

REMITTANCE INFORMATION: When remitting payment, provide the pay date/date of withholding and the case identifier
538274000B. I the emplayee’s/obligor's priucipz] place of employment is NEVADA, begin withhalding no fater than the first pay
period gccuring 14 dayy after the date of this Order/Notice. Send payment within 7 working days of the pay date/date of
withholding, The total withhe!d amount, including your fe¢, camnot exceed 50% of the employee's/obligor’s ageregate tisposable
weekly earnmps. .

If the cmployee's/obligor's principal place of employment is not NEVADA, for Hmitationa oa withholding, applicsble time
reguiréments, ead sny sllowable employer faes, follow the laws and procedures of the employee's/obligor's priacipal place of
employment (se¢ #4 and #10, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO EMFPLOYERS AND OTHER WITHHOLDERS).

Make check payable to: STATE COLL & DISB UNIT - SCADUJ Case Identifier 5382740008,
Send check to: PO BOX 98950, LAS VEGAS NV 89193-8950

Authorzed by WASH(Q (Y DISTH A : Date _ 07232008
‘ Date

Print Narne and Title _ANNE E CONWOR, cakewarker
Of Authorized Official(s)

TMPORTANT: Tha person copupleting this form is advised that the information e thix Torm may be shared with the obﬂgnr.vz 2 3 8
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AUG 17 Zuu8
HOV/ARD #!. CONYERS, CLERK
By:
E CLER

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

CODE 1850

STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs, Case No. CR07-1728
BRENDAN DUNCKLEY, Dept. No. 4
Defendant.

JUDGMENT

The Defendant, having entered a plea of Guilty, and no sufficient cause
being shown by Defendant as to why judgment should not be pronounced against
him, the Court rendered judgment as follows:

That Brendan Dunckley is guilty of the crime of Lewdness with a Child
Under the Age of Fourteen Years, a violation of NRS 201.230, a felony, as charged
in Count | of the Amended Information, and Attempted Sexual Assault, a violation of
NRS 193.330, being an attempt to violate NRS 200.366, a felony, as charged in
Count Il of the Amended Information; and that he be punished by imprisonment in the
Nevada Department of Prisons for the maximum term of life with the minimum parole
eligibility of ten (10) years, for Count |; and that he be punished by imprisonment in
the Nevada Department of Prisons for the maximum term of one hundred twenty

(120) months with the minimum parole eligibility of twenty-four (24) months, for Count

V2. 239
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I1, to be served concurrently with sentence imposed in Count I; with credit for four (4)
days time served, and by submission to a DNA Analysis Test for the purpose of
determining genetic markers. Defendant is further ordered to pay a Twenty-Five
Dollar ($25.00) administrative assessment fee, a One Hundred Fifty Dollar ($150.00)
DNA testing fee, and a Nine Hundred Fifty Dollar ($950.00) Psychosexual Evaluation
Fee to the Clerk of the Second Judicial District Court.

It is further ordered that the Defendant serve a special sentence of
lifetime supervision to corﬁmence after any term of imprisonment or after any period
of release on parole.

Dated this 5th day of August, 2008.
10

: (onnie 4 .ﬁﬁn\\Am%

DISTRICT JUDGE
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